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Letter from the Board
BEESRMY

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) (the "Directors”)
of Imperial Pacific International Holdings Limited (the “Company”),
| am pleased to report on the financial results and operations of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the "Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2017.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group’s revenue was
approximately HK$13,155,608,000 (2016: approximately
HK$7,488,979,000). The Group's profit attributable to owners of the
Company from continuing operations was approximately
HK$637,473,000 (2016: approximately HK$935,893,000). Basic
earnings per share and diluted earnings per share were HK0.45
cent and HKO0.24 cent respectively (2016: basic and diluted earnings
per share were HKO0.66 cent and HK0.34 cent respectively).

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

APPRECIATION

The Group is well prepared to meet the challenges ahead with our
prudent strategy as well as loyalty and professionalism of our staff. |
would like to thank the professional advisors, my fellow Directors

and our shareholders for their support during the year.

For and on behalf of the Board
Imperial Pacific International Holdings Limited

Cai Lingli

Executive Director

Hong Kong, 28 March 2018
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company is an investment holding company, and the Group is
principally engaged in the gaming and resort business including
the development and operation of integrated resort on the Island

of Saipan.

Gaming and Resort Business

In August 2014, Imperial Pacific International (CNMI), LLC (the
“Licencee”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
and the Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands (“CNMI")
entered into a casino licence agreement in respect of the exclusive
casino resort developer licence on the Island of Saipan (the “Casino
Licence Agreement”).

Best Sunshine Live

On 27 November 2015, the Licencee launched the grand opening
of the "Temporary Casino” in Garapan, Island of Saipan (“Best
Sunshine Live"”). The grand opening of Best Sunshine Live had
supported the Group’s continuous evolution of Saipan into a
diversified and world-leading entertainment and tourism

destination.

On 6 July 2017, the Licencee successfully transferred operations of
Best Sunshine Live to the casino portion of the Initial Gaming
Facility ("Imperial Pacific Resort Hotel ® Saipan”) and commenced
operation on the same day. The operations of Best Sunshine Live
was closed simultaneously. After the transfer, the Company's
gaming capacity was increased from 48 tables and 141 slot
machines at Best Sunshine Live to 77 tables and 243 slot machines
at present with maximum capacity of up to 193 tables and 365 slot
machines upon completion of all casino floor area in Imperial

Pacific Resort Hotel ® Saipan.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEE WA

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Imperial Pacific Resort Hotel ¢ Saipan

The casino portion of the Imperial Pacific Resort Hotel ® Saipan has
opened on 6 July 2017, with operations of Best Sunshine Live
transferred in, Imperial Pacific Resort Hotel ® Saipan was opened

for operations.

On 29 June 2017, the parties to the Casino Licence Agreement
entered into a written amendment to the Casino Licence
Agreement pursuant to which, among other things, the licencee,
upon issuance of all required CNMI government permits and
consent from the Casino Commission, may transfer the operations
of Best Sunshine Live to Imperial Pacific Resort Hotel e Saipan at
any time prior to the completion of the 250 rooms of the hotel

portion of the Imperial Pacific Resort Hotel ® Saipan.

On 31 July 2017, the parties to the Casino Licence Agreement
entered into a written amendment to the Casino Licence
Agreement (the "Amendment Agreement”) pursuant to which,
among other things, the implementation schedules under the
Casino Licence Agreement have been amended and the proposal
requirements thereunder have been set out in more details. Details
of the Amendment Agreement have been disclosed in the

announcement of the Company dated 31 July 2017.

On 31 July 2017, as amended in the Amendment Agreement, the
required date of completion and initiation of operations of the
Imperial Pacific Resort Hotel ® Saipan has been amended to no
later than 31 August 2018, with a minimum of a 329-room four or
five star luxury hotel, 14,140 square meters of gaming area and
other elements and associated support components. As at the date
of this report, due to delay in construction progress of Imperial
Pacific Resort Hotel ® Saipan, the Group has notified the relevant
CNMI government authorities of its intended application to extend

the deadline to complete the Initial Gaming Facility.

Major global construction companies, consulting firms, design and
engineering firms as well as local sub-contractors are engaged. As
of 31 December 2017, approximately US$650 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$5,064 million) (31 December 2016: US$343
million (equivalent to HK$2,662 million) has been invested in the
design, consulting, engineering, construction materials and labour

costs.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Imperial Pacific Resort Hotel ® Saipan (Continued)

For the full year of 2017, the seamless transfer between business
locations has ensured that gaming operations continued to record
strong growth. During the year ended 31 December 2017,
unaudited VIP table games rolling of US$49,507 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$385,856 million) and revenue of approximately
HK$13,156 million (2016: HK$7,489 million) was generated from the
casino gaming operations.

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

Integrated Resort Development

The Imperial Pacific Resort Hotel ® Saipan, perched on the water
front of downtown Garapan, will boast restaurants with Michelin
Stars, in addition to the 193 gaming tables and 365 slot machines,

and 329 hotel rooms and 15 villas upon completion of construction.

An additional US$307 million has been invested in design and
construction of this super luxurious casino resort during the year
which has brought the total investment to US$650 million as at 31
December 2017. The Board does see certain delay in construction
mainly due to labor issue caused by the main contractor and several
subcontractors and to a lesser extent unfavourable weather
conditions; however, with the construction work already back on
track, the Board believes that the issue will soon be resolved and

cease hindering the progress of the project.

The results at Best Sunshine Live has given great satisfaction to the
Board. With the transfer to the new casino completed on 6 July
2017, we believe that new customers will continue to be attracted
to Saipan and hence broaden our customer base. With the gaming
capacity to be further enhanced, we expect to commence
collaboration with gaming promoters after they are granted junket
operator licences to operate on the Island of Saipan. Due to
CNMI's lower tax regime, we believe we will be able to offer very

competitive commission rates to our gaming promoters.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
=] EEJE n—_l- Eﬁgﬁi *ﬁ'

BUSINESS OUTLOOK (Continued)

Integrated Resort Development (Continued)

Supply of hotel rooms continued to be the crucial bottle-neck for
the growth of tourist arrivals to the Island of Saipan. According to
the Hotel Association of the Northern Mariana Islands (the
“"HANMI"), for the calendar year of 2017, average hotel rate
reached a new high of US$145.93 per night with average hotel
occupancy rate of 90.89%, representing growth of US$5.81 (or
4.15%) and 3.36% respectively compared to 2016. We currently
have 3 villas and 5 yachts in place as well as hotel rooms secured
from local high quality hotels to provide better accommodations to
our VIP customers. We also expect the successional opening of
villas and hotels rooms of the Imperial Pacific Resort Hotel ® Saipan
will be to a great extent enhance our capacity to better

accommodate patrons.

Despite the supply shortage of quality hotel rooms on the Island of
Saipan, visitor arrivals to CNM] still recorded a new high in last year.
According to the Mariana’s Visitors Authority (the "“MVA”), for the
calendar year of 2017, total visitor arrival to CNMI grew by 24.3% to
659,741, Korean visitation has become the dominating force with
market share of 50.48% and strong growth of 65.81% for the year.
Though market share slid to the second place, visitor arrivals from
Mainland China still grew steadily by 11.06%, Beijing-based carrier
Capital Airlines officially introduced the Hangzhou-Saipan direct
flight service twice weekly starting from 6 July 2017. Notably,
arrivals from Hong Kong almost trebled with a growth of 177.54%.
Benefiting from Saipan’s favorable weather, stunning attractions,
proximity location and flexible visa policies, with more hotels room
to be built and opened, we believe visitation to the Island of Saipan

still has great potential.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS OUTLOOK (Continued)

Debt/Equity Fund Raising and Refinancing

During the year, the Company had convertible notes which
matured on 20 August 2017 ("CN 2015"). An aggregate principal
amount of HK$205,500,000 had been redeemed during the year. As
at 31 December 2017, the Company was in the process of
redeeming the remaining CN 2015 of an aggregate principal
amount of HK$123,400,000 of which HK$100,000,000 has been
redeemed subsequent to the end of the reporting period.

The Company (as issuer) completed the issuance of the 8.5% per
annum unsecured notes due 2020 in the aggregate principal
amount of US$70 million (equivalent to HK$543 million) on 8

February 2017 to certain independent investors.

In addition, the Company completed the issuance of the 7.8% per
annum unsecured notes due 2019 in the aggregate principal
amount of US$100 million (equivalent to HK$776 million) to
Inventive Star Limited ("Inventive Star”), the controlling
shareholder (as defined in the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"Listing Rules”) of the Company, on 22 February 2017.

On 21 March 2017, the Company completed another issuance of
the 7.8% per annum unsecured notes due 2019 in the aggregate
principal amount of US$50 million (equivalent to HK$388 million) to
Inventive Star. Details of the issuances of these unsecured notes
have been disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated
11 January 2017, 8 February 2017, 22 February 2017 and 21 March
2017 respectively.

On 16 June 2017, the Company entered into a conditional placing
agreement (the “"CB Placing Agreement”) with CIS Securities
Asset Management Limited (formly known as Convoy Investment
Services Limited) (the “Placing Agent”), pursuant to which the
Placing Agent agreed to procure, on a fully underwritten basis, to
not less than six (6) Placees to subscribe in cash for the convertible
bonds of an aggregate principal amount of HK$50 million with
initial conversion price of HK$0.176 per conversion share (the “CB
2017"). The placing was completed on 27 June 2017 and CB 2017
with an aggregate principal amount of HK$50 million were issued,

which are convertible into 284,090,909 conversion shares.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEE WA

BUSINESS OUTLOOK (Continued)

Debt/Equity Fund Raising and Refinancing (Continued)

On 9 August 2017, the Company entered into another placing
agreements with the Placing Agent pursuant to which the Placing
Agent agreed to act as a sole placing agent, on a best efforts basis,
for the purposes of arranging placees to subscribe for (i) bonds A
up to an aggregate principal amount of HK$350,000,000 and (ii)
bonds B up to an aggregate principal amount of HK$50,000,000. As
at the date of this report, bonds A with an aggregate principal
amount of HK$28,500,000 and bonds B with an aggregate principal
amount of HK$28,000,000 were issued under the aforementioned
placing agreements. Details of the aforementioned placing
agreements have been disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 9 August 2017.

The Board does not rule out the possibility that the Company may
carry out further debt and/or equity fund raising plan(s) to further
strengthen the financial position of the Group in the event that
suitable fund raising opportunities arise in support of the
development of the Group, including the casino and the integrated
resort on the Island of Saipan. As at the date of this report, the
Company has not yet identified any other concrete fund raising

opportunities.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group achieved
revenue of HK$13,156 million, representing an increase by
HK$5,667 million which is principally contributed by the rapid
growth of VIP gaming operations. Profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2017 was
HK$637 million, as compared with the profit attributable to equity
holders of HK$936 million in the corresponding period of last year.
The drop of profit is mainly attributable to increase in impairment
losses of trade receivables, operating and administrative expenses
incurred during the year. Basic and diluted earnings per share were
HKO0.45 cent and HKO0.24 cent respectively, as compared with basic
and diluted earnings per share of HK0.66 cent and HK0.34 cent

respectively in the corresponding period of last year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEEWED M

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued) B %5l 8 (&)
Casino Gaming Operations RGBS ERER
The following table sets forth the results of the casino gaming T[RAIHEHE_TE—+tFR_T—F+_A

operations for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016:

=T RULFERESEEB 2 XE

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=1t—HLEE

2017 2016
= ZERF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FET
(unaudited) (unaudited)
(REERZ) (R EZ)

(in thousands, except for number of gaming

tables and slot machines and Electronic

(PAT&F - BEta R AT H# AR

ETREBY((EFREHEE])

Table Game ("ETG") and percentage) HE RBESLLERIN
Average number of VIP gaming tables BEEHERTHEE 23 16
VIP table games rolling EERENENH 385,855,800 251,241,203
VIP gross table games win EEHERERRE 12,728,872 7,130,167
VIP table games win percentage BEERREESL 3.30% 2.84%
Average number of Mass Gaming tables RIS R T IIBE 39 32
Mass games drop PSRRI 926,906 918,019
Mass games gross table games win iSRRI R 302,665 261,880
Mass games win percentage FSERRERS L 32.65% 28.53%
Average number of slot machines and ETG BFHEEFREAEBY I8 165 141
Slot machines and ETG handle AFHNEFREBYRALE 847,511 679,106
Slot machines and ETG gross win ATHEEETFREABRERE 66,861 57,294
Slot machines and ETG hold percentage ATHEETFREEBEYRE 7.89% 8.44%
Commissions B 4,997,103 3,416,342
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Operating Revenue

The following table sets forth the operating revenue for the years
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

Bt #SE B (&)

EE WS
TRANSEEZE—E—tFR T —ARF+=A
—t+—BHIEFEZEBIRES -

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=1t—HLEE

2017 2016

e ZERF

HK$'000 HK$'000

TR FET
_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________|

VIP gaming operations BEHVER 12,728,872 7,130,167

Mass gaming operations RISTE R TS 302,665 261,880

Slot machines and ETG gaming operations ATHEEETREERES 66,861 57,294

Food and beverages Z8R 57,210 39,638

13,155,608 7,488,979

VIP Gaming Operations

A significant portion of our VIP casino customers is sourced through
the Group's own marketing channels. Such high-spending VIP
customers generally receive commission and allowances based on
a percentage of the rolling chip turnover. The allowances can be
utilized for expenses incurred on hotel rooms, food and beverages

and other discretionary customer-related expenses.

VIP gaming operations also include premium mass gaming

operations that do not receive commissions from the Group.

In addition, a minor operation of the Group’s VIP customers has
been sourced via a new licenced junket operator since August
2016. The establishment of a new licenced junket incentive allowed
the Group to bring in new customers which mitigated the Group's
credit concerns for those VIP customers brought in by the junket

operator.

BEEREER

BAESABLEETRREAKEZMIHEH
RE - ZERHBEEERP REREWHEEHEL
B EREE KRR - R AR NEER
B BEREEMESHENERAEE &M -

EEBYERNTEBRSHTSELER  A&E
TeMZEBZHEE -

o B2 -RFNAR  AEE B EE
FERRBAFERNANEER - RN
ABBSAEEFARSIFEP  RELAEEY
FERNAFMERNEERPZEEEE
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

VIP Gaming Operations (Continued)

VIP rolling chip volume for the year of 2017 reached approximately
HK$385,856 million (2016: HK$251,241 million). VIP gaming revenue
was HK$12,729 million (2016: HK$7,130 million) with a win
percentage of 3.30% (2016: 2.84%). The growth in VIP gaming
revenue is attributable to the Group’s effective marketing
campaigns and increasing tourist visitation to CNMI. Our VIP
customers primarily consist of credit players. Geographically, most
of our direct VIP customers are come from China, Hong Kong,

Macau and Korea.

The Company shall announce aggregate unaudited VIP table

games rolling in its interim and annual results announcements.

Impairment

The gross trade receivables increased to HK$13,278 million (2016:
HK$5,881 million), in line with revenue growth from VIP gaming
operations for year ended 31 December 2017. While the scale of
VIP gaming operations had a significant growth during the year, the
Group regularly reviews the recoverability of trade receivables to
ensure that adequate impairments are made for irrecoverable

amounts.

Impairment of the Group's trade receivables was made based on
the management’s individual and collective assessment on the
recoverability of the customers’ outstanding trade receivables. The
Company’'s management has taken into consideration the
collectability of individual customers, debts’ ageing profile, security
provided in the form of front money and guarantee deposits as well
as experience with collection trends in the casino industry and
current economic and business conditions and provided provision

for impairment on certain customers’ trade receivables as follows:

(i) as at 31 December 2017, the provision for impairment of
trade receivables due from the Group's largest and the ten
largest debtors amounted to HK$1,093 million and HK$1,867
million (2016: HK$Nil and HK$83 million) respectively. The
aforementioned provisions were made based on a review of
individual customer’s facts and circumstances (such as
financial position and ongoing dialogue on settlement
arrangements, etc), aging of the outstanding amounts,

securities provided and any subsequent repayments;

BRI WA DA
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Impairment (Continued)

(i) as at 31 December 2017, the provision for impairment of
trade receivables due from the remaining customers of the
Group amounted to HK$2,880 million (2016: HK$464 million)
arising from regular review of the overdue balances by the

management.

The Board considered that the customers’ aging of the trade
receivables are comparable and in line with global industry
standards for customers sourced through own marketing channels
instead of junket operators. The Board has also prudently
benchmarked against its industry peers on provision of bad debt
on trade receivables and considered that the impairment of trade
receivables as estimated by the Company in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the
year ended 31 December 2017 and for the year ended 31
December 2016 to be comparable.

The Board also wishes to elaborate below measures taken by the

Group to recover the trade receivables:

(i) credit terms extended by the Group are generally 30 days for
gaming operations. The Group's credit and collection
department, along with representatives of the VIP marketing
department, regularly meet on a monthly basis to identify
customers whose debts are due and the VIP marketing
department will make contact with customers for recovery of
the outstanding debts; and

(i) once the receivables are overdue for repayment and if the
customers still have not repaid the outstanding debts within
six months of the programme end date, the Group's credit
and collection department will then issue demand letters to
the customers, along with its guarantors (if applicable), for
demand of immediate payments. If no responses were
received thereafter, the Group’s management may consider
bringing legal actions against the customers in order to

collect the outstanding debts.

B B (&)
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Mass Gaming Operations

For the year ended 31 December 2017, revenue from mass gaming
operations amounted to HK$303 million (2016: HK$262 million) and
mass gaming drop reached HK$927 million (2016: HK$218 million).
Customers from the mass gaming operations do not receive

commissions from the Group.

Going forward, we will continue to review our mass gaming areas
to maximize table utilization, to expand our gaming areas, to
innovate our gaming products and to invest in technologies and
analytical capability to enhance table productivity and customer

retention.

Slot Machines and ETG Gaming Operations
Revenue from the slot machines and ETG amounted to HK$67
million (2016: HK$57 million) and hold percentage reached 7.89%
(2016: 8.44%) for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Going forward, we will continue to re-examine the mix of our slot
machines and ETG games in operation to maximize our casino
profitability. We will also aim to develop technologies to enhance
our analytical capability to help us deliver more personal and

precision marketing efforts.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales for the year ended 31 December 2017 was HK$1,216
million (2016: HK$856 million) which comprise principally the direct
casino costs such as casino licence fees of US$15 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$117 million) and Saipan’s business gross
revenue tax of US$82 million (equivalent to approximately HK$637

million).

Other income, gains and losses, net

Other income, gains and losses, net for the year ended 31
December 2017 mainly represent gain on disposal of subsidiaries of
approximately HK$12 million, net off by losses of approximately
HK$34 million from the impairment of available-for-sale investments
and loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment of

approximately HK$26 million.

BRI WA DA
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Operating expenses

Operating expenses increased to HK$5,861 million, which mainly
result from the impairment losses on trade receivables increased to
approximately HK$4,185 million, staff cost increased to
approximately of HK$644 million, and depreciation and
amortization expenses increased to approximately HK$148 million
during the year.

Adjusted EBITDA

The following table reconciles Adjusted EBITDA to its most directly
comparable HKFRSs measurement, profit attributable to owners of
the Company, for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

Bt BB ()

EEMX

BB IBINES I BEEIL  TEHRNFARE
WE SRIRERIBEEN4185FEE L BT
FRANIE 7= 40 644 5 & 78 T DA M 3T B N B R S 1
ER 148 B BB o

L EBITDA
TREFEE—E—EFR T —ARF+=A
=t— Eti&é%ﬂ%EBWDAéﬁiﬁlﬁﬁT%ﬂtm
EAUBHRELERZFTE - ARFEFE AEE R
M2 B8R -

For the year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=t-HLEFE

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET

Profit for the year from continuing operations B E Q& £~ FRER 637,473 935,893
Add/(less): o/ OR) -
Depreciation and amortization HTE N 147,687 112,309
Casino licence fees IR R IR B 116,909 116,438
Interest income B WA (2) 99
Fair value loss on available-for-sale investments  AJfft H &R E AT BEEE 33,855 53,302
Fair value gain on derivative financial TEEMTACZAREE

instruments, net W B HE (549) (69,594)
Finance costs MBER 165,212 57,864
Taxes FRIA 870,960 533,694
Share-based payments VARR 19 7 B 2 AP kB 2 21,635 10,347
Net foreign currency differences BE 5,7 B R 4,155 18,672
Adjusted EBITDA (Note) (unaudited) & B EBITDA (BifaE) CRE &) 1,997,335 1,768,826

Note:

Adjusted EBITDA is used by management as the primary measure of the Group's
operating performance with that of our competitors. Adjusted EBITDA should
not be considered in isolation, construed as an alternative to profit or operating
profit as reported under HKFRSs or other combined operations or cash flow
data, or interpreted as an alternative to cash flow as a measure of liquidity.
Adjusted EBITDA presented in this report may not be comparable to other
similarly titled measures of other companies operating in the gaming or other
business industry sectors.

HAE -

EIEEIRAECAREBITDA - EALBRAEEERFNRS
HFNEERENEIENERIEZ - KHAREBITDATEEE
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Significant Investment and Acquisition

Apart from the development of integrated resort on the Island of
Saipan, the Company did not have any significant investment,
acquisition or disposal during the year that should be notified to
the shareholders of the Company.

Capital expenditure

The Group incurred capital expenditure of approximately HK$2,636
million (2016: approximately HK$2,514 million) during the year
ended 31 December 2017, mainly for construction of the Imperial
Pacific Resort Hotel ® Saipan and acquisition of gaming related

equipment.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

On 8 February 2017, the Company (as issuer) completed the
issuance of the 8.5% per annum unsecured notes due 2020 in the
aggregate principal amount of US$70 million (equivalent to HK$543

million) to certain independent investors.

In addition, on 22 February 2017, the Company completed the
issuance of the 7.8% per annum unsecured notes due 2019 in the
aggregate principal amount of US$100 million (equivalent to
HK$776 million) to Inventive Star.

On 21 March 2017, the Company completed another issuance of
the 7.8% per annum unsecured notes due 2019 in the aggregate
principal amount of US$50 million (equivalent to HK$388 million) to

Inventive Star.

CB 2017 with an aggregate principal amount of HK$50 million were
issued on 27 June 2017.

Bonds A with an aggregate principal amount of HK$28.5 million
and bonds B with an aggregate amount of HK$28 million have
been issued pursuant to the placings agreements with the Placing
Agent entered into on 9 August 2017.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Capital structure

During the year, there was no change to the authorised share
capital of the Company while 1,333,333,333 new shares of the
Company (the “Shares”) were issued and allotted upon exercise of
conversion rights attached to the CN 2015.

As at 31 December 2017, the total number of issued Shares was
142,984,807,678 (31 December 2016: 141,651,474,345).

Risk of Foreign Exchange Fluctuation

The business transactions of the Group are mainly carried in HK$
and US$ meaning that it will be subject to limited exchange rate
exposure given HK$ and US$ are pegged. However, the Group will
closely monitor this risk exposure and would take prudent measures

as and when appropriate.

Capital Commitments
As at 31 December 2017, the Group had capital commitments of
approximately HK$554 million (31 December 2016: HK$2,404

million).

Contingent Liabilities

Save as disclosed in note 36 of the consolidated financial
statements, the Group did not have any other significant contingent
liabilities as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016.

Pledge of Assets
As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not have any pledge of
assets (31 December 2016: Nil).

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES
The total number of staff of the Group as at 31 December 2017 was
1,756 (31 December 2016: 1,560).

Remuneration packages are reviewed annually and determined
with reference to market and individual performance. In addition to
salary payments, the Group also provides other employment

benefits such as mandatory provident fund.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Corporate Governance

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance within a sensible framework with an
emphasis on the principles of transparency, accountability and
independence. The Board believes that good corporate
governance is essential to the success of the Group and the

enhancement of shareholders’ value.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company was in full
compliance with the Code Provisions set out in Appendix 14 of the

Listing Rules (the “CG Code"), except for the following deviation:

—  Code Provision A.6.7
This stipulates that independent non-executive directors and
other non-executive directors should attend the general
meetings. Due to his other important engagements, the
independent non-executive Director of the Company, Mr.
Robert James Woolsey was unable to attend the annual

general meeting of the Company held on 27 June 2017.

Corporate Governance Report
TRER/RE
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises four executive Directors and four
independent non-executive Directors. The brief biographical details
of Board members is set out in the Biographical Details of the
Directors and Senior Management on pages 30 to 32 of this annual
report. The Board has established four board committees, namely
Executive Committee, Audit Committee, Nomination Committee
and Remuneration Committee. Attendance of the board meetings,
the meetings of the board committees and the general meetings
for the year ended 31 December 2017 is given below. The
respective responsibilities of the Board and board committees are
discussed later in this report.

Exg
EXEeRANBRTESRNRABUIFNTES
MK - BEFEREB CBEFBCHNAFRE 30
BEERNEZEFLRSREBEABEEFBER -
EFECRUNEEFEZES  BRATZES
EVLZBE REAZBEELRFHZEE -HE—
E—tFT A=+ HULFERESTLFES
e EEZBRERLBRRAGNREHT
WT-BEFEMEEZEERANBERRAR
EHMERRBIEELHA -

No. of meetings attended/eligible to attend
HE/ AEREEERNAY
Audit  Nomination Remuneration Executive
Board  Committee = Committee =~ Committee ~ Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
BREEE REZEE  HMZEEE #GZ8g
e EE EE EE EE BRRAE
. _________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________|
Executive Directors YTES
Ms. Cai Lingli ("Ms. Cai") ZBRENL([BLL)) 4/6 N/A N/A N/A 0/0 01
ek TEm am
Ms. Xia Yuki Yu ("Ms. Xia") Xia Yuki Yu 2T £
([Xiazt]) 56 N/A N/A N/A 0/0 0/1
ek Tam T~ER
Mr. Teng Sio | (“Mr. Teng") TOERE(T%E)
(appointed on 18 April 2017) (RZE—+F
MATN\REZE) 5/5 N/A N/A N/A 0/0 11
TER TER TER
Ms. Cui Li Jie EBALL
(appointed on 4 May 2017) (R=T—+#&F
hAMBEZE) 0/5 N/A N/A N/A N/A 0/1
Tam Tam TEm TEA
Non-executive Director FUTES
Mr. Eugene Raymond Sullivan Eugene Raymond n N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
(redesignated on 6 January 2017 Sullivan £ gl A TER TER Gl
and resigned on 15 June 2017) (A&
—RARBERE
ERZF—+F
~ATRAET)
Independent non-executive Directors BV FHTEE
Mr. Ng Hoi Yue ("Mr. Ng") mETRE(EEE]) 206 212 17n 11 N/A 171
TEM
Mr. Tso Hon Sai Bosco ("Mr. Tso")  EEBEE4E([EELE]) 46 212 171 /1 N/A 11
@A
Mr. Lee Kwok Leung ("Mr. Lee") FEREA(ZRE]) 3/6 202 17 11 N/A 1
TEA
Mr. Robert James Woolsey Robert James 1/6 N/A N/A N/A N/A 0/1
Woolsey 4 ek TEm ~ER TER
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

All Directors are regularly updated on governance and regulatory
matters. There is an established procedure for all Directors to
obtain independent professional advice at the expense of the

Company in discharge of their duties.

The Board held meetings from time to time whenever necessary.
Notice of at least 14 days has been given to all Directors for all
regular board meetings and the Directors can include matters for
discussion in the agenda if necessary. Agenda and accompanying
board papers in respect of regular board meetings are sent out in
full to all Directors within reasonable time before the board
meeting. Draft minutes of all board meetings are circulated to all
Directors for comment within a reasonable time prior to

confirmation.

Minutes of board meetings and meetings of board committees are
kept by duly appointed secretaries of the respective meetings and
all Directors have access to board papers and related materials,
and are provided with adequate information on a timely manner,
which enable the Board to make an informed decision on matters
placed before it. The Company held six Board meetings and one

general meeting in 2017.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board currently has four independent non-executive Directors,
one of the independent non-executive Directors holds appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial

management expertise under Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors had entered into
an appointment letter with the Company an initial term of one year,
which is automatically renewable for successive terms of one year

upon the expiry of the said term.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has given the
Company an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all
independent non-executive Directors are independent and meet
the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing

Rules.

Corporate Governance Report
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND
DEVELOPMENT

Under code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, Directors of the
Company should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
Each newly appointed Director receives induction on the first
occasion of his or her appointment, so as to ensure that he or she
has appropriate understanding of the business and operations of
the Company and that he or she is fully aware of his or her
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
regulatory requirements. Directors are also regularly updated on
the Group's business and industry environments where appropriate
in the management’s monthly reports to the Board as well as
briefings and materials circulated to the Board before board

meeting.

During the year, all Directors have participated in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills so as to ensure that their contribution to the Board

remains informed and relevant.

DIRECTORS’ INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect

of legal actions against the Directors.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board sets the Group's objectives and strategies and monitors
its performance. The Board also decides on matters such as major
transactions, director appointments, and dividend and accounting
policies and monitors the internal controls of the Group's business
operation. The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility
of overseeing the Group's day to day operations to management

executives.

When the Board delegates aspect of its management and
administration functions to management, clear directions would be
given as to the power of management, in particular, the
circumstances where management should report back to the Board
before making decision or entering into any commitments on
behalf of the Group.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD (Continued)

Principal functions that are specifically delegated by the Board to
the management include (i) implementation of corporate strategy
and policy initiatives; (i) provision of management reports to the
Board in respect of Group's performance, financial position and

prospects; and (iii) day-to-day management of the Group.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has set up a Remuneration Committee to ensure that
there are formal and transparent procedures for setting policies on
the remuneration of Directors. The Remuneration Committee
currently comprises three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Ng, Mr. Tso and Mr. Lee. The Remuneration Committee
is chaired by Mr. Ng.

The main duties of the Remuneration Committee are to: (i) make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration policy and
structure for Directors and senior management; (i) ensure that they
are fairly rewarded for their individual contribution to the Group's
overall performance, having regard to the interests of shareholders;
(iii) determine the specific remuneration packages to all executive
Directors and senior management; and (iv) review and approve
performance-based remuneration by reference to corporate goals

and objectives resolved by the Board from time to time.

During the year, one Remuneration Committee meeting was held
to review the remuneration packages of the Directors and to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
the new Director(s). The Remuneration Committee ensures that no
Director is involved in deciding his own remuneration. The terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee, a copy of which is
posted on the Stock Exchange’s and Company’s website, are
consistent with the terms set out in the relevant section of the CG
Code.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has set up a Nomination Committee to ensure fair
and transparent procedures for the appointment, re-election and
removal of Directors to the Board. The Nomination Committee
currently comprises three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Ng, Mr. Tso and Mr. Lee. The Nomination Committee is
chaired by Mr. Ng.

Corporate Governance Report
TRER/RE

EEEREW
EEeNTRRETEEBZIZRERE)ER
EERBEBEER: (IRNEFSFRIGELE
B2 RHE BHRARAS 2 ERRE - Ri) A
SEHEER -

FHEES
ARFERIFTHES S - ARREHTEEH
MoBEEEEXRBAZER - FHEERR
WEZABUFNTERER  RERLE B
SEERTRE - MEERTHEERZER -

FNEB G2 T ERER  (MEERSMRER
BeHMBRERBRESSREERZES ()
BRRECHASEHASEERRAZAERE
BRFEFE  RRTREIBRZAE (i) EE
ERITEFLRSREREZABHFNGE &
(VE2EESFETHRBRZEXBNMER T
et MEMARRDEE 2 H -

FRABRT-RFTMEZESSE URESZH
B BFh i R ESERBNES ZH MM
B FNEZEERRUEET2RBEEEATN
FH - FHNEZEeRERERMCRERATRA
BB DB IR — 2 - HrIN R B 2RISR E
ETIEEB XA RAR AR EEA o

REZEY

ARRERIBEEZES  URREEERME
EERRREFIRFATRER RAEEE
BHAZ2BUFNTESMAR  BEMEE
BRERTRE -MEERREZERIER -

H

Annual Report 2017

2017 EE®/RE 23



Corporate Governance Report
ERER/KRE

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

The main duties of the Nomination Committee are to: (i) review the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board on a regular basis and make
recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed changes;
(i) make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the appointment or re-appointment and succession
planning of Directors; (iii) identify individuals suitably qualified to
become board members and select or make recommendations to
the Board on selection of, individuals nominated for directorships;
and (iv) assess the independence of independent non-executive

Directors.

In selecting and recommending candidates for directorship, the
Nomination Committee will consider the experience, qualification
and suitability of the candidates. The Board will approve the
recommendations based on the same criteria. During the year, one
Nomination Committee meeting was held to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board, make recommendation for
appointment of Directors and access the independence of each of
the independent non-executive Directors. The terms of reference
of the Nomination Committee, a copy of which is posted on the
Stock Exchange’s and Company's website, are consistent with the

terms set out in the relevant section of the CG Code.

DIVERSIFICATION OF THE BOARD

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board, and sees diversity at Board level as an essential
element in the attainment of its strategic objectives and its
sustainable development. As such, the Board and the Nomination
Committee have adopted the Board Diversity Policy on 24 March

2014 with principles as summarized below.
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DIVERSIFICATION OF THE BOARD (Continued)

The Nomination Committee of the Company reviews and assesses
the composition of the Board and makes recommendations to the
Board on appointment of new Directors. The Nomination
Committee also oversees the conduct of the annual review of the
effectiveness of the Board. In reviewing and assessing the
composition of the Board, the Nomination Committee will consider
the benefits of all aspects of diversity in order to maintain an
appropriate range and balance of talents, skills, experience and
background on the Board. In recommending candidates for
appointment to the Board, the Nomination Committee will
consider candidates on merit against objective criteria and with due
regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board, including but not
limit to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge, length of

service etc.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee currently comprises three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Ng, Mr. Tso and Mr. Lee. The Audit
Committee is chaired by Mr. Ng.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to (i) review and
monitor the preparation of the Group's financial statements and
annual and half-year reports and accounts; (i) monitor, develop and
implement the Group's policy on appointment of external auditor;
(iii) recommend the appointment and reappointment of the
Group's external auditor; (iv) supervise the Group's financial
reporting system, risk management and internal control systems
and (v) develop and review the Company's policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board. The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management
and the external auditors the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and have discussed auditing, internal
controls and financial reporting matters. During the year, two Audit
Committee meetings were held to review the financial reporting
matters and internal control procedures of the Group and
appointment of external auditor. The terms of reference of the
Audit Committee, a copy of which is posted on the Stock
Exchange’s and Company's website, are consistent with the terms

set out in the relevant section of the CG Code.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

The Audit Committee is responsible for making recommendation
to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of
the external auditor and oversees the objectivity and effectiveness
of the audit process in accordance with applicable standards. It also
monitors the integrity of the Company’s financial statements and
their compliance with legal requirements and the Listing Rules in

relation to financial reporting.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
The Executive Committee currently comprises three executive
Directors, namely Ms. Cai, Ms. Xia and Mr. Teng. The Executive
Committee is chaired by Ms. Cai.

The Executive Committee is vested with all the general powers of
management and control of the activities of the Company and its
subsidiaries as are vested in the Board, save and except for the
approval of the Company’s interim and annual reports and
accounts, matters requiring a public announcement or discloseable
or major transactions or other major disposals or acquisitions or
corporate actions outside the ordinary and usual course of business
of the Group which shall require the Board'’s approval.

The Executive Committee may exercise all such other powers and
perform all such other acts as may be exercised and performed by
the Board, save and except for those powers that may only be
exercised by the Board pursuant to the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (the "Companies Act”), the Listing Rules or the bye-laws
of the Company (the “Bye-laws”).

CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS AND RELEVANT EMPLOYEES

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its code of conduct
for securities transactions by the Directors. Following a specific
enquiry, all Directors confirmed they have complied with the
standards set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31
December 2017.
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CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY

DIRECTORS AND RELEVANT EMPLOYEES (Continued)
To comply with the code provision A.6.4 of the CG Code, the
Company has also adopted the Model Code as the code of
conduct for securities transactions by relevant employees of the
Group to regulate the dealings in the securities of the Company by
certain employees of the Group who are considered to be likely in
possession of unpublished price sensitive information of the

Company.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Group. As at 31 December 2017, the
Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the

Group's ability to continue as a going concern.

For the year under review, the Board considered that the Group's
internal control systems are adequate and effective and the Group
has complied with the code provisions on internal control of the CG

Code and report except for the deviations previously disclosed.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
For the year ended 31 December 2017, the independent auditor of
the Company provided audit and non-audit services to the

Company and the Group.

The auditor’'s remuneration in relation to the audit and non-audit
services for the year amounted to HK$12,000,000 and HK$9,916,000
respectively.

The statement of the auditor of the Company regarding their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in
the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 50 to 58.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Lee Yuen Ting ("Ms. Lee”) has been the company secretary of
the Company since 21 November 2013. She reports to the Board
and is responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance
matters and ensuring that board procedures are followed and
board activities are efficiently and effectively conducted. Ms. Lee
has completed not less than 15 hours of relevant professional

training.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convening a Special General Meeting

Shareholders may convene a special general meeting of the
Company according to the provisions as set out in the Bye-laws and

the Companies Act.

Pursuant to bye-law 58 of the Company’s Bye-laws, any one or
more members holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all
times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
company secretary of the Company, to require a special general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be
held within two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in accordance with the provisions of the

Companies Act.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

Pursuant to the Companies Act, shareholders representing not less
than one-twentieth (5%) of the total voting right of all the
shareholders having at the date of the requisition a right to vote at
the meeting to which the requisition relates; or not less than 100
shareholders are entitled to request the Company to give
shareholders notice of a resolution which is intended to be moved
at the general meeting. A written notice to that effect signed by the
requisitionist(s) with details contact information must be deposited
a the Company’s principle place of business in Hong Kong at Suites
7001, 7002 and 7014-7016, 70/F Two International Finance Centre
No. 8 Finance Street Central Hong Kong for the attention of the
Company Secretary. The notice shall contain, inter alia, a
description of the proposed resolution desired to be put forward
the general meeting, the reasons for such a proposal and any

material interest of the proposing shareholder in such a proposal.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (Continued)

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings
(Continued)

The request will be verified with the Company’s share registrar in
Bermuda or Hong Kong and upon their confirmation that the
request is proper and in order, the Company will ask the Board to

include the resolution in the agenda for the general meeting.

Making Enquiry to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board in writing to the company secretary at the Company's
office in Hong Kong at Suites 7001, 7002 and 7014-7016, 70/F Two
International Finance Centre No. 8 Finance Street Central Hong

Kong.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor’s understanding
of the Group’s business performance and strategies. The Company has
established a range of communication channels between itself, its
shareholders and investors, including answering questions through the
annual general meeting, the publications of annual and interim reports,
notices, announcements and circulars on the websites of the Company at

http://www.equitynet.com.hk/1076 and http://www.imperialpacific.com.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year, there has been no significant change to the
Company's constitutional documents. An updated version of the
Bye-Laws of the Company is available on the websites of the

Company and the Stock Exchange.

On behalf of the Board
Imperial Pacific International Holdings Limited

Cai Lingli

Executive Director

Hong Kong, 28 March 2018
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EERGREEAEBBERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Cai Lingli ("Ms. Cai”), aged 36, has been appointed as an
executive Director of the Company with effect from 21 November
2013. She is also a director of a number of subsidiaries of the
Company. She holds a Bachelor Degree in Art and Design and the
degree of Master of Business Administration from Cheung Kong
Graduate School of Business. Ms. Cai has over ten years of
experience in the media and entertainment industry. She was the
marketing director of a gaming corporation in Macau to provide
support on the overall operation and business strategies in the
gaming industry.

Ms. Xia Yuki Yu ("Ms. Xia"), aged 44, has been appointed as an
executive Director of the Company with effect from 21 November
2013. She is also a director of a few key subsidiaries of the
Company. She has over fifteen years of experience in the public
relation and marketing industry. Before joining the Group, Ms. Xia
held executive positions in various enterprise groups operating in
the gaming industry.

Mr. Teng Sio | ("Mr. Teng”), aged 36, joined the Company in
November 2015 and has been appointed as an executive Director
of the Company with effect from 18 April 2017. He is currently the
Senior Vice President — Group Human Resources & Administration
and the director of a certain subsidiaries of the Company and is
responsible for overseeing human resources development.
Specialized in the administration and operation of gaming human
resources functions, Mr. Teng has solid experience in his roles as
senior human resources management in sizable organizations of
different fields. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Teng served as a
senior HR executive at one of Macau’s leading gaming-integrated
resort complex (a complex with over 20,000 current employees).
Under his supervision, he had led the team from pre-opening
planning to successful openings during his years of service as senior
management of the HR department. Mr. Teng is a bachelor degree
holder in management. He is also a qualified trainer certified by
Box Hill Institute and an expert certified by DDI, a global human
resources consulting firm, in target selection.

Ms. Cui Li Jie ("Ms. Cui”), aged 59, has been appointed as an
executive Director of the Company with effect from 4 May 2017.
She has been engaged in real estate projects and building
materials trading, and has gained extensive experience in
investment. Ms. Cui is also the sole director and sole shareholder of
Inventive Star, the controlling shareholder (as defined in the Listing
Rules) of the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ng Hoi Yue ("Mr. Ng”), aged 54, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company with effect
from 21 November 2013. He is a fellow member of The Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. He has been practising as a
certified public accountant in Hong Kong since 1989. Mr. Ng is
currently an executive director and the Deputy Chief Executive
Officer of Asian Citrus Holdings Limited (stock code: 73) and an
independent non-executive director of Emperor Cultural Group
Limited (stock code: 491) and Ulferts International Limited (stock
code: 1711), all are companies listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Tso Hon Sai Bosco (“Mr. Tso"”), aged 53, has been appointed
as an independent non-executive Director of the Company with
effect from 21 November 2013. He is currently a partner with
Messrs. Tso Au Yim & Yeung, Solicitors and has been a Hong Kong
practising solicitor since 1990. Mr. Tso received his Bachelor of
Laws degree from King's College London. He is currently an
independent non-executive director of Legend Strategy
International Holdings Group Company Limited (stock code: 1355),
a company listed on the Stock Exchange. He was an independent
non-executive director of China Fortune Investments (Holding)
Limited (stock code: 8116), a company listed on the Stock
Exchange, for the period from 21 May 2007 to 31 July 2015.

Mr. Lee Kwok Leung (“"Mr. Lee"”), aged 64, has been appointed as
an independent non-executive Director of the Company with effect
from 21 November 2013. He has years of direct investment, fund
management and banking experience. Mr. Lee holds an investment
advisor status from the Securities and Futures Commissions from
2000. He has been appointed as an executive director of China
Internet Investment Finance Holdings Limited (formerly known as
Opes Asia Development Limited) (stock code: 810) since 8 May
2014, and the chairman and executive director of Mayer Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1116) since 9 October 2014.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EERGREEAEBBERE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Mr. Robert James Woolsey (“Ambassador Woolsey”), aged 76, has
been appointed as an independent non-executive Director of the
Company with effect from 16 May 2016, held Presidential
appointments in two Republican and two Democratic
administrations, most recently, from 1993 to 1995, as Director of
Central Intelligence under President Bill Clinton. During his twelve
years of government service, in addition to heading the CIA and
the Intelligence Community, Ambassador Woolsey was
Ambassador to the Negotiation on Conventional Armed Forces in
Europe from 1989 to 1991, Under Secretary of the Navy from 1977
to 1979, and General Counsel to the U.S. Senate Committee on
Armed Services from 1970 to 1973. He was appointed by the
President to serve in Geneva, Switzerland, from 1983 to 1986 as
Delegate at Large to the U.S. Soviet Strategic Arms Reduction Talks
(START) and Nuclear and Space Arms Talks (NST). As an officer in
the U.S. Army, he was an adviser on the U.S. Delegation to the
Strategic Arms Limitation Talks (SALT 1), in Helsinki and Vienna,
from 1969 to 1970. He has served on numerous government and
non-profit advisory boards such as the National Commission on
Energy Policy and chaired the Clean Fuels Foundation and the New
Uses Council. He also served as a Trustee of Stanford University
and chaired the Executive Committee of the Board of Regents of
The Smithsonian Institution. He has been a member of The National
Commission on Terrorism, The Commission to Assess the Ballistic
Missile Threat to the U.S., The President’'s Commission on Federal
Ethics Law Reform, The President’s Blue Ribbon Commission on
Defense Management, and The President’'s Commission on
Strategic Forces. Ambassador Woolsey has also been a law partner
at Shea & Gardner and a Vice President with the consulting firm of
Booz Allen Hamilton. He also served on the boards of directors of a
number of companies, including British Aerospace, Inc., Martin
Marietta and Fairchild Industries. In 2009, he was the Annenberg
Distinguished Visiting Fellow at the Hoover Institution at Stanford
University; and from 2010 to 2011 he was a Senior Fellow at Yale
University, where he taught in the Jackson Institute for Global
Affairs. Ambassador Woolsey received his B.A. degree from
Stanford University, where he graduated Magna Cum Laude and
Phi Beta Kappa; an M.A. from Oxford University, where he was a
Rhodes Scholar; and an LL.B from Yale Law School, where he was
Managing Editor of the Yale Law Journal.

The Board has received annual confirmation of independence from
each of its independent non-executive Directors. The Board
members have no financial, business, family or other material
relationships with each other or with the senior management,
substantial shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) or
controlling shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company.
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The Board hereby presents the annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.

Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries of the
Company are set out in note 1 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Details of the business review and future development of the
Group's businesses are set out in the sections headed "Business
Review” and “Business Outlook” under “Management Discussion
and Analysis” of this report. The discussion forms part of this

directors’ report.

SEGMENT INFORMATION
An analysis of the Group's revenue and segment information for
the year ended 31 December 2017 is set out in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 59 to 40 of this annual report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2017.

The Group understands the success of its businesses depends on
the support from its key stakeholders, including employees,
customers, suppliers, professional advisers and regulators. The
Group will continue to ensure effective communication and
maintain good relationships with each of its key stakeholders.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 172 of this

annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial

statements.

RESERVES

As at 31 December 2017, the Directors were of the opinion that the
distributable reserves of the Company was approximately
HK$1,364,899,000.

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 44 to the consolidated
financial statements and in the "Consolidated Statement of

Changes in Equity” on page 63, respectively.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

Corporate social responsibility and sustainability play an important
role in our everyday business, and it is deeply rooted in our
corporate value. We strive to make a difference in the Northern
Mariana Islands and shoulder the responsibilities of a corporate
citizen to grow with the community. We have a dedicated
Corporate Social Responsibility Team that serves the community
through charitable events, and seeks opportunities to empower the

community by connecting them with education and employment.

In 2017, in order to fully implement the requirements of the
Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG") Reporting Guide in
Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules, the Company has further attached
great importance to organizing and arranging relevant preparation
and disclosure, and the Company’s ESG Report for the year ended
2017 will be published on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.
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COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with
regulatory requirements and the risk of non-compliance of
applicable rules and regulations. The Group has been allocating
system and staff resources to ensure ongoing compliance with rules
and regulations and to maintain cordial working relationships with
regulators through effective communications. During the year, the
Group has complied with, among others, to the best of our

knowledge, the following major laws and regulations:
Hong Kong

—  the Listing Rules;

—  the Securities and Futures Ordinance;

—  the Companies Ordinance; and

—  the Gambling Ordinance.

Saipan

—  The Commonwealth Gaming Act, codified at 4 CMC §§ 2301

et. seq.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The purpose of the Group's existing share option scheme adopted
on 27 June 2013 (the “Share Option Scheme”) is to enable the
Group to attract, retain and motivate talented participants,
including employee, officer, agent, consultant or representative of
any member of the Group to strive for future development and
expansion of the Group. The Share Option Scheme shall be valid

and effective for a period of ten years.

At the beginning of the financial year ended 31 December 2017,
1,462,669,808 share options were outstanding pursuant to the
Share Option Scheme (each option shall entitle the holder of the
option to subscribe for one new Share) and 13,623,880,768 Shares,
being 9.69% of the Shares then in issue were available for issue

under the Share Option Scheme.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The total number of the shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each participant, together with
all options granted and to be granted to him/her under any other
share option scheme(s) of the Company, within the 12-month
period immediately preceding the proposed date of grant
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) shall not
exceed 1% of the total number of the shares in issue as at the
proposed date of grant. The exercise price of the share options is
determinable by the Board, but may not be less than the highest of
(i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on the
date of the offer of the share options; (ii) the average Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company'’s shares for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of the offer; and (iii) the
nominal value of the Company’s shares on the date of the offer.
The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
options must not exceed 30% of the number of shares in issue from
time to time. No options may be granted if such grant would result
in the 30% limit being exceeded.

OTHER INFORMATION
Movement of the share options under the Share Option Scheme

during the year ended 31 December 2017 is as follows:

EBREE(E)

REZEZEH BB 2@ A HER - HTF&2
HidE 7 B IR R AR B AN A R B b B AR R
FEETRERTS20E 2MBERE(RIES
1718 B R M ARTTIE 2 B ) TR B 3
TR TETZRNDEBE  TEBBEREZERD
AHIE BTN B E 2 1% - BBRE 2 1THE N R
EEGET |’§$ﬂ1ﬁﬁ’\‘?§'J:%¢ZEE% (i)
REEREZOE ARG RMO R 2 m
B\ ERREZENZEANAERS B ARRQRK
MREERZ Pz FHAWTE  Rii)VRNR2EENER
RATRRMOOEE - AT EREMAILEITZ
hHaas T EER IR ZEEITROHEE Z
30% ° finj i BB BEZ 30% R EE + BN IR B (E
o] R AR A o

HAit & ¥
RE-F—t&+-A=+-ALFE-
SHEUE FRRE 2 2B

BRE

Asat Asat Exercise
Categories of 1 January Cancelled/ 31 December Price
Participants 2017 Granted ~ Exercised Lapsed 2017 (HKS) ~ Grant Date Exercise Period
i i
s Bid/ . iR
SELEH -A-8 BRH B BEM  tZR=t-B (87)  REAH 8
|
Directors
£
Ms. Cai Lingli 3521212 - - - 3521212 022 18June 2015 18 June 2018 — 17 June 2025
3501212 - - - 3521212 022 18 June 2015 18 June 2019 —17 June 2025
351.m - - - 350.m 02 18June 2015 18 June 2000 — 17 June 2025
3501.212 - - - 3521012 022 18June 2015 18 June 2021 —17 June 2025
- 2,664,000 - - 2,664,000 015 Shprl 2017 5 Apri 2018 — 4 Aoril 2027
- 2,664,000 - - 2,664,000 015 SApil 2017 5 Apri 2019 — 4 April 2027
- 2672,000 - - 2672,000 015 SAprl 2017 5Apn\2020 4 April 2007
REENT “E-RERATIA “NERRTNBEZFZRERATLA
ZE-RERATIR 7T NERRTNBEZ2-0% A TR
ZE-RERATIA ECEEAAT\AEZECREAATLA
“E-RERATIA 7§:_¢/\ﬂ+\5 “EoRERATHA
ZE-YERARA 25 \EMARAZ-E-HEMARA
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OTHER INFORMATION (Continued) HtER @)
Asat Asat Exercise
Categories of 1 January Cancelled/ 31 December Price
Participants 2017 Granted  Exercised Lapsed 2017 (HKS)  Grant Date Exercise Period
It i
ZE-tE BE#/ ZB-tf e
$8ERH -B-8 BEM B BAY  tZA=t-R (Bm)  RHER s
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________|
Ms. Xia Yuki Yu 3521212 - - - 3521212 022 18June 2015 18 June 2018 — 17 June 2025
3501212 - - - 3521212 022 18June 2015 18 June 2019—17 June 2025
35 - - - 35.m 022 18June 2015 18 June 2020 — 17 June 2025
3521212 - - - 3521212 022 18June 2015 18 June 2021 — 17 June 2025
- 2,664,000 - - 2,664,000 015 5SApil 2017 5 April 2018 — 4 April 2027
- 2664000 - - 2664000 015 SApril 2017 5 Apri 2019 — 4 April 2027
- 2,672,000 - - 2,672,000 015 SApil 2017 5 Apn'\ 2000 —4 April 2027
Xia Yuki Yu X T 3= ﬂﬁ/‘\ﬂﬂ “NEARTNBE-E-RERATLA
ﬂg/\ﬂ-‘—) —T HE/\ﬂﬂ'\E;Et T ﬂg/\ﬂ-‘—ta
S-RERATIA CECRERAT\REIRCRERATHA

;’@—ﬂi/ﬂ% JB SRR RIS

ZE-tEMALR 5-\fEATAZ-S-tEMANA
ZE-YEmARA ﬂﬁﬂﬂﬂﬁ ZECtERARA
“E-1EMALRA :T ZEMARAE-E-TENANA
Mr. Teng Sio (appointed - 6,660,000 - - 6,660,000 015 5Apil 2017 5 April 2018 — 4 April 2027
on 18 April 2017) - 6,660,000 - - 6,660,000 015 SApil 2017 5 April 2019 — 4 April 2027
- 6,680,000 - - 6,680,000 015 SAprl 2017 5Apn\2020 4 April 2007
ThErE(R-E- “E-CEmARRA 5-\fMATAZ-S-t5MANA
@ﬂf\ﬂ%i&} ZE-tEMATRA S-NEEATAE-E_tEMANA
“E-1EMALRA :T SEMARRZ-E-tERANA
Mr. Robert James Woolsey - 26,793 - - 26,753 015 5Apil 2017 5 April 2018 — 4 April 2027
- 26753 - - 26753 015 SApril 2017 5 April 2019 — 4 Aprl 2027
- 27614 - - 27614 015 SApil 2017 5Aer 2000— 4 April 2027
Robert James Woolsey “E-CEMARRA 5-\fMATAZ-S-t5MANA
pid ZE-YEmARA E-NEMARAZ-E-LEMARA
“E-1EMALRA :*_Tﬁﬂﬂﬂﬁ _T_tﬁﬂﬂﬂﬁ
Mr. Ng Hoi Yue - 66,600 - - 66,600 015 SAprl 2017 5 Apri 2018 —4 April 2027
. 400 - - 66,400 015 Shprl 007 5 Aprl 2019— 4 Aprl 2007
- 66,800 - - 66,800 015 SApil 2017 5Apn\2020 4 April 2027
i3 “E-CEMARRA 5-\fMATAZ-S-t5MANA
ZE-tEMATRA S-NECATAZ-E_tEMANA
“E-1EMALRA :T ZEMARAE-E-TENANA
Mr. Tso Hon Sai Bosco - 66,600 - - 66,600 015 SAprl 2017 5 Apri 2018 —4 April 2027
. 400 - - 66,400 015 Shprl 007 5 Aprl 2019— 4 Aprl 2007
- 66,800 - - 66,800 015 SApil 2017 5Apn\2020 4 April 2027
EERLE “E-CEMARRA 5-\fMATAZ-S-t5MANA
ZE-YEmARA E-NEMARAZ-E-LEMARA
“E-1EMALRA :T zﬁﬂﬂﬂﬁﬁ_fiﬁﬂﬂﬂﬁ
Mr. Lee Kwok Leung - 66,600 - - 66,600 015 SAprl 2017 5 Apri 2018 —4 April 2027
. 400 - - 66,400 015 Shprl 007 5 Aprl 2019— 4 Aprl 2007
- 66,800 - - 66,800 015 SApil 2017 5 April 2000 — 4 April 2027
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OTHER INFORMATION (Continued) Hig g ()
Asat Asat Exercise
Categories of 1 January Cancelled/ 31 December Price
Participants 2017 Granted ~ Exercised Lapsed 2017 (HKS) ~ Grant Date Exercise Period
R R
ZE-tE Bitg/ IE-tE it
SHEEN -B-8 ERH Bk B&Y  TZA=t-B (B7)  REAH s
|
Employees 18,351,0% - - 5167272 13183784 02 18June 2015 18 June 2018-17 June 2025
18,351,056 - - 5167272 13183784 022 18 June 2015 18 June 2019-17 June 2025
18,351,056 - - 5167212 13183764 022 18June 2015 18 June 2020-17 June 2025
18,351,0% - - 5167272 13183784 02 18June 2015 18 June 2021-17 June 2025
109,445,888 - 338049 73,005,392 015 SApil 2017 5 April 2018-4 April 2027
109,445,888 - 338049 73,065,392 015 SAprl 2017 5 April 20194 April 2027
109,774,604 - 36,489,748 73,8485 0.15 5 April 2017 5 April 2020-4 April 2027
8 “3-RERATIA “E-\ERBTNBECECRERATLA
ZE-RERATIR TE-NERETNRECESRERATHA
ZT-RERATIA CECRERAT/\BECECREAATHA
“Z-145AHNR EC-ERATNRECECREAATLE
“T-+ERATA “5-/\EMARAZE-E-HENANA
ZT-+ERATA “E-NENARAZE-ECtENARA
ZT-tERATA “E-EENARAZCS-+ENANA
Other Participants 1,120,000,000 - - - 1,120,000,000 01055 3December 2014 3 December 2014-2 December 2024
59,311,852 - - 326073 56,049,120 02 18June 2015 18 June 2018-17 June 2025
59,311,852 - - 32627132 56,049,120 022 18June 2015 18 June 2019-17 June 2025
59,311,852 - - 3262132 56,049,120 022 18June 2015 18 June 2020-17 June 2025
59,311,852 - - 3262732 56,049,120 02 18 June 2015 18 June 2021-17 June 2025
950,000 - - - 950,000 0255 26November 2015 26 November 2016-25 November 2025
950,000 - - - 950,000 0255  26November 2015 26 November 2017-25 November 2025
950,000 - - - 950,000 0255 26November 2015 26 November 2018-25 November 2025
950,000 - - - 950,000 0255 26November 2015 26 November 2019-25 November 2025
55,395,119 - - 55,395,119 015 SAprl 2017 5 April 2018-4 April 2027
55,395,119 - - 55,395,119 0.15 5 April 2017 5 April 20194 April 2027
55,561,462 - - 55,561,462 0.15 5 April 2017 5 April 2020-4 April 2027
AfbpEE I “E-MET-BZRZ-T-RET-ACR
“Z-RERATIA “E-J\ERAT\BEZECRE A TR
“Z-RERATIA “E-NEABTNBECECRERATEA
“E-RERATIA CECRERAT\BECECREAATHA
ZE-RERATIA TR -ERET\RECZCRERATHA
ZE-RET-AITRR R ET-ACTRAECRCRET-ACTRA
ZE-RET-ACTRR CECET-ACTRAECECRET-ACTRA
ZE-RET-AITRR B NET-ACTRAECECRET-ACTRA
ZE-RET-AITRR CENET-ACTRAECRCRET-ACTRA
“T-+ERATA “5-/\EMARAZE-E-HENANA
ZT-+ERATA “E-NENARAZE-EC+ENARA
ZT-tERATA “E-EENARAZCE-+ENANA
Total 1462669808 532479220 - 14291075 1852,1782712
Eh

During the year under review, no grantee had exercised any share
options, 532,479,220 share options were granted and 142,970,756
share options lapsed. As at 31 December 2017, there were
1,852,178,272 share options outstanding pursuant to the Share
Option Scheme. Further details of the Share Option Scheme are

disclosed in note 30 to the financial statements.
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Details of the retirement benefit schemes are set out in note 2.5 to

the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, being the jurisdiction
in which the Company was incorporated, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to the existing

shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SHARES
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or

redeemed any of the Company's listed securities during the year.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2017 amounted to approximately
HK$2,493,000 (2016: HK$1,233,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate amount of sales attributable to the
Group's 5 largest customers accounted for approximately 36%
(2016: 32%) of the total sales for the year and sales attributable to
the largest customer accounted for approximately 17% (2016: 9%)
of the total sales for the year. Our suppliers provide products and
services such as food and beverages products, gaming equipment
and machines, and construction services. Purchases from the
Group's 5 largest suppliers accounted for approximately 67% (2016:
72%) of the total purchases for the year and purchases from the
largest supplier accounted for approximately 17% (2016: 43%) of
the total purchases for the year.

None of the Directors, their associates, or any shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company's share capital) has any interest in the Group's five largest

customers and suppliers during the year.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 27 February 2015, Best Fortune Corporation Limited, a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an
employment agreement ("Employment Agreement”) with Mr. Ji
Xiao Bo ("Mr. Ji”) pursuant to which Mr. Ji was appointed as the
Project Director of the casino resort project on the Island of Saipan.
According to the Employment Agreement, Mr. Ji is entitled to a
basic annual salary of US$1 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$7.75 million). The Employment Agreement was fixed to a term
that expires on 31 December 2017 but is, in any event, terminable
on three months’ notice in writing by either party. To cater for the
possibility of discretionary bonus being awarded, the Board had set
a cap on the total amount (inclusive of discretionary bonus) that
may be paid to Mr. Ji under the Employment Agreement for each
of the financial year ended/ending 31 December 2015, 2016 and
2017 of US$2 million (equivalent to approximately HK$15.52
million). On 8 December 2017, Best Fortune entered into a new
employment agreement (“New Employment Agreement”) with
Mr. Ji pursuant to which Mr. Ji will continue to be appointed as the
Project Director of the casino resort project on the Island of Saipan.
According to the New Employment Agreement, Mr. Ji is entitled to
a basic annual salary of US$1 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$7.75 million). The New Employment Agreement was fixed to a
term that expires on 31 December 2020 but is, in any event,
terminable on three months’ notice in writing by either party. To
cater for the possibility of discretionary bonus being awarded, the
Board had set a cap on the total amount (inclusive of discretionary
bonus) that may be paid to Mr. Ji under the New Employment
Agreement for each of the financial year ended/ending 31
December 2018, 2019 and 2020 of US$2 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$15.52 million). Mr. Ji is the son of Ms. Cui Li Jie
(“"Ms. Cui”) and Ms. Cui is a Director of the Company and the sole
shareholder of Inventive Star Limited (“Inventive Star”), the
controlling shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company. Mr. Ji is therefore a connected person (as defined in the
Listing Rules) and the Employment Agreement and New
Employment Agreement therefore constituted a continuing
connected transaction under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and
subject to the reporting, annual review and announcement
requirements, but was exempt from the independent shareholder’s
approval requirement. Details of the Employment Agreement New
Employment Agreement have been disclosed in the
announcements of the Company dated 27 February 2015 and 8
December 2017.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

The independent auditor of the Company, Ernst & Young, was
engaged to report on the Group’s continuing connected
transaction in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing findings and
conclusions in respect of the abovementioned continuing
connected transaction in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided to the Stock
Exchange. The independent non- executive Directors have
reviewed the abovementioned continuing connected transaction
and the auditor’s letter and have confirmed that such transaction
was entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group; (ii) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favorable to the Group than terms available to or from independent
third parties; and (iii) in accordance with the relevant agreement
governing it on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the

interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this annual report were:

Executive Directors

Ms. Cai Lingli

Ms. Xia Yuki Yu

Mr. Teng Sio | (appointed on 18 April 2017)
Ms. Cui Li Jie (appointed on 4 May 2017)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Eugene Raymond Sullivan
(resigned on 15 June 2017)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Robert James Woolsey

Mr. Ng Hoi Yue

Mr. Tso Hon Sai Bosco

Mr. Lee Kwok Leung

Pursuant to bye-law 87(1) of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Robert
James Woolsey, Mr. Ng Hoi Yue and Mr. Tso Hon Sai Bosco shall
retire from office at the forthcoming annual general meeting and
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election as independent non-

executive Directors

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT
The biographical details of the Directors and Senior Management

are set out on pages 30 to 32 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICES CONTRACTS

No Director eligible for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Group which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION
Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 8 of the

financial statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

According to the available information, the Board is not aware of
any contract during the year entered into with the management
and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the

business of the Company.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to bye-law 166 of the Company’s Bye-Laws and relevant
provisions of the regulations stipulated, every Director and other
officers of the Company shall be indemnified and secured harmless
out of the assets and profits of the Company from and against all
losses and liabilities which he or she may incur or sustain in or about
the execution of the duties of his or her office or otherwise in relation
thereto, and no Director or other officer shall be liable for any loss,
damages or misfortune which may happen to or be incurred by the
Company in the execution of the duties of his or her office or in
relation thereto, provided that this Bye-Law shall only have effect in

so far as its provisions are not avoided by the Companies Act.

The Company has taken out and maintained Directors’ and officers’
liabilities insurance throughout the year, which provides

appropriate cover for the Directors.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

To the best knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors has

any interest in competing business to the Group during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

To the best knowledge of the Directors, there was no contract of
significance in relation to the Group's business to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party to and in which a
Director has a material interest in, whether directly or indirectly, or
between the Company, or its subsidiary companies, and a
controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries, and subsisted at
the end of the financial year under review or at any time during the

financial year under review.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions of each
Director and chief executive in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
("SFO")), which are required (i) to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the provisions of Division 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO); (ii) pursuant to section 352 of Part XV of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein; or (i) pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of the Listed
Issuers contained in the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) to be

notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING REHHPzREZRARE (&)
SHARES AND DEBENTURES (Continued)

Long positions in the ordinary shares/underlying shares of the

Company:

Directors’ Report
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Number of Percentage of

Shares/ issued share

Long position/ underlying capital of the

Name of Director Capacity Short position shares held Company

ke, EARRAE

EEpE g9 BR/ %A HEROEE BERTREABAL
|

Ms. Cai Lingli Beneficial owner Long position 22,109,088 (Note 1) 0.02%

HEELL BERfEBA iR 22,109,088 (FfiF 1) 0.02%

Ms. Xia Yuki Yu Beneficial owner Long position 383,109,088 (Note 2) 0.27%

Xia Yuki YuZz + BEREBA iR 383,109,088 (Fif+2) 0.27%

Ms. Cui Li Jie Interest of controlled  Long position 89,998,489,280 62.94%

corporation
EMALL FEHEEmS R 89,998,489,280 6294%
Interest of controlled  Short position 3,268,733,333 (Note 3) 2.29%
corporation
RS EEER KR 3,268,733,333 (H17E3) 2.29%
Mr. Teng Sio | (appointed on Beneficial owner Long position 20,000,000 (Note 4) 0.01%
18 April 2017)
TOHERE(R =T —F ERfEBA iR 20,000,000 (Fff3t4) 0.01%
WA+\BEZM)

Mr. Robert James Woolsey Beneficial owner Long position 861,120 (Note 5) 0.00%

Robert James Woolsey %t 4 EREEA e 861,120 (F7¥5) 0.00%

Mr. Ng Hoi Yue Beneficial owner Long position 200,000 (Note 6) 0.00%

mEFEE ERBEAA R 200,000 (Pt 6) 0.00%

Mr. Tso Hon Sai Bosco Beneficial owner Long position 200,000 (Note 6) 0.00%

EEBELE ERBEAA R 200,000 (Pt 6) 0.00%

Mr. Lee Kwok Leung Beneficial owner Long position 200,000 (Note 6) 0.00%

FTEREE BREBA R 200,000 (Pt 6) 0.00%
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES (Continued)

Notes:

1. On 18 June 2015 and 5 April 2017, 14,109,088 share options (after share
options adjustments) and 8,000,000 share options were granted to Ms. Cai
Lingli pursuant to the Share Option Scheme respectively.

2. On 18 June 2015 and 5 April 2017, 14,109,088 share options (after share
options adjustments) and 8,000,000 share options were granted to Ms. Xia
Yuki Yu pursuant to the Share Option Scheme respectively.

3. Inventive Star Limited had granted options over its shares of the Company
at the exercise price of HK$0.24 per share, exercisable to purchase a
maximum of 3,268,733,333 shares.

4. On 5 April 2017, 20,000,000 share options were granted to Mr. Teng Sio |
pursuant to the Share Option Scheme.

5. On 5 April 2017, 861,120 share options were granted to Mr. Robert James
Woolsey pursuant to the Share Option Scheme.

6. On 5 April 2017, 200,000 share options were granted to Mr. Ng Hoi Yue,
Mr. Tso Hon Sai Bosco and Mr. Lee Kwok Leung respectively pursuant to
the Share Option Scheme.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of the
Directors is a director or employee of a company which has an
interest or short position in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and none
of the Directors, the chief executive of the Company nor their
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had any other interests
or short positions in the shares of the Company, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which (a) were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which any such Director or the chief executive of the
Company is taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO); or (b) were required to be entered into the register
maintained by the Company, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO;
or (c) were required to be notified to the Company or the Stock
Exchange, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transaction

by Directors of Listed Companies contained in the Listing Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER FERK

As at 31 December 2017, in accordance with the register of the R-Z—+F+_-A=+—0  BEAQTER
substantial shareholders kept by the Company under Section 336 EFHNEIE KM EIGIEBEFEZ TEREERL
of the SFO, or to be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2 ffit * kB IEZE A5 R EEEHEXVELE 2 X379 56
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and the Listing Rules, the following 7 {&X & TR BIZBETIHE LW FATHEAELAA
person was interested (including short positions) in the shares or TR BRI 2 iz (BIEAR) ¢

underlying shares of the Company:

Long positions in the ordinary shares/underlying shares of the RARQEEBIK FEEKRMD ZFE
Company:

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________|
Approximate

Long position/ Number of percentage of
Name of shareholder Capacity Short position shares interest
BRREE, HE 55 BE/RE RDEE L =R

Inventive Star Limited (Note 1) Beneficial owner Long position 89,998,489,280 62.94%
Short position 3,268,733,333 2.29%

(Note 2)
Inventive Star Limited (Ff3E 1) BEmfa A ey} 89,998,489,280 62.94%
KR 3,268,733,333 2.29%

(MH3E2)
Ms. Cui Li Jie (Note 1) Interest of controlled Long position 89,998,489,280 62.94%
corporation Short position 3,268,733,333 2.29%

(Note 2)
ERALZL (1) SEGEE R R 89,998,489,280 62.94%
KRB 3,268,733,333 2.29%

(MH3E2)
Mr. Ji Xiaobo (Note 3) Interest of controlled Long position 128,071,500,000 89.57%

corporation
foBeR e A (M3 3) SEEGEEE R e 128,071,500,000 89.57%
Super Champion Global Limited ~ Beneficial owner Long position 128,000,000,000 89.52%
(Note 3)

BERHAR A (HFE3) BEma A oy} 128,000,000,000 89.52%
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER (Continued)

Notes:
1. Inventive Star Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by Ms. Cui Li Jie.
2. Inventive Star Limited had granted options over its shares of the Company

at the exercise price of HK$0.24 per share, exercisable to purchase a
maximum of 3,268,733,333 shares.

3. Super Champion Global Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Ji
Xiaobo and Super Champion Global Limited held the convertible notes
issued by the Company in the principal amount of HK$400,000,000 which
were convertible to 128,000,000,000 conversion shares if the underlying
conversion rights were exercised in full.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, no person (other
than a Director or chief executive of the Company) had registered
an interest or short position in the securities or underlying shares of
the Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintain a high standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 19 to 29 of this annual

report.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited tendered its resignation as the
auditor of the Company with effect from 7 June 2016 and Ernst &
Young was appointed by the Board on 7 June 2016 and approved
by the Shareholders at the special general meeting held on 27 June
2016 to fill the casual vacancy so arising. On 29 June 2017, Ernst &
Young was re-appointed as the auditor of the Company until the
conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company. A
resolution for the reappointment of Ernst & Young as auditor of the
Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of its Directors, the Company has
maintained sufficient public float as required under the Listing

Rules throughout the year and up to the date of this report.

On behalf of the Board
Imperial Pacific International Holdings Limited

Cai Lingli

Executive Director
Hong Kong, 28 March 2018

In the event of any inconsistency, the English text of this report shall

prevail over the Chinese text.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB RS

P>
EY::

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
IMPERIAL PACIFIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Imperial
Pacific International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 59 to 171, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2017, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial

statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 December 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA"”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our

audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The
results of our audit procedures, including the procedures
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our
audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial

statements.

Independent Auditor’s Report
B BATHRE

BREEER
%ﬁﬁﬁ%%%ﬁ%*ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ@%%%@T  BAREAR

REMBRRNBARAEENETH  GFLF
IEEE%JJZ*/\Hﬂ&&%%&‘%ﬁ_ﬁ%uﬁi%ﬂiﬁﬁ
MERNETRERN  RATHELEREHRE
BHNER - ﬁfFﬁxTTLt—$IEE%aﬁPEZZDﬁ
JEE BB A RER -

f‘ifﬁEWEﬁTKﬁiifﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁf%ffﬁé\ﬁjﬁ
WRAEHEE | BORANEE - BIEEELRE
ﬁ%af%ﬁ*ﬁ%@ﬁ'\]ﬁ& M - B EST T
ERRBRITREHF GRS MIERRNERER
BR [ B T R GO BB AT IR T » BAMTBITHRF R
MR BIEEY TARRESSEANITHRE
FFo REEMBHRABBEREFTERRHETE
it o

51

Annual Report 2017 FE#R &



Independent Auditor’s Report
B BATHRE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

BRETEHEW)

Key audit matter
HEETEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BRANETTESRREGFSENSR

Impairment of trade receivables

P B 2 RR R (E

The carrying value of the Group's trade receivables as at 31
December 2017 amounted to HK$8,531 million, representing
54.5% of the Group's total assets as at 31 December 2017.
The impairment provision carried as at 31 December 2017
was HK$4,747 million. An impairment provision of trade
receivables is maintained to reduce the Group’s trade
receivables to their estimated recoverable amounts which
approximate to the fair value. Management evaluates the
estimated impairment based on past collection records,
aging profile of the Group's receivables and specific review
of individual customer accounts as well as experience with
collection trends in the casino industry and current economic
and business conditions. The management’s continued
refinement of the impairment of trade receivables based on
known customer information and changes in a region’s
economy or legal system can provide a significant change in
estimate between periods.
EEERKESRFIN-_ZE—+F+A=+—HOKEE
#38,531,000000& T h EEER_-_T—tF+_H
=+ BMEERENSS% R_FT—tF+_A=+—H
YR (B 7 5 4 4,747,000,000 4 7T o FEUCE 5 BR FRAE 45 R (B B
BEER ESEENEREZIRFEIREREAABERSE
WA O & - ERERBEATHECE - E5EE
WK IR B9 B e Ko 3 181 51 351 P BRI P VB E AR A AR 435517
FERWRBANKR K E BIRE REBIRRE SR
B - ERERBECATFENFEHEKEZRIREEL
BRI E - Uk — A E e BSOERHE LR8I
AR NRMSEN G HIRERE L -

We evaluated and tested the design and operating
effectiveness of the controls over the accounting process
of the impairment of trade receivables. In addition to
assessing the adequacy of the impairment of trade
receivables based on the past collection records and aging
profile, we also performed a specific review on individual
customer accounts which are either significant and/or long
outstanding, discussed their recoverability with the
management and corroborated the management'’s
representation with reference to past collection,
subsequent settlements, security such as front money/
guarantee deposits, and other personal information. We
tested the accuracy of the aging profile, performed ratio
analysis on the Group's impairment of trade receivables,
and re-calculated the impairment of trade receivables
using management’'s model and considered the adequacy
of the impairment.

BAEERAAEERKE ZRFNES T EIEBIZNR
FTREER - RRBEBERRCHLRRTERKE S
RIURERHELIN  BATHEREFPERESRERS
BR/SEREA)EREERE - REREEABRE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Independent Auditor’s Report
B BATHRE

BRETEHEW)

Key audit matter
HEETEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BRANETELSRRESSENS K

We identified the impairment assessment of the trade
receivables as a key audit matter because of (i) the material
amounts involved, and (ii) the significant judgement and
assumptions involved in the determination of impairment
provision.

AP EUE 5 R BB ERH AR AR E FH - VA
ROEFZRNEREHE « k) EETREREBR Y RNE
R K RER -

The Group’s accounting policies and disclosures on trade
receivables and impairment of trade receivables are set out
in notes 3 and 19 to the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
EEERBAEWE S RIIANRERE ZERFBMEN SRR
REEHN BEEENGRSMBEHRRMEIRI19-

Construction in progress — new casino and hotel

EEIR — MRS RBEE

The carrying value of the Group's construction in progress
as at 31 December 2017 amounted to HK$2,915 million,
representing 18.6% of the Group's total assets as at 31
December 2017.
EEEERIRR_Z—+F+_A=+—HNKREER
2,915,000,000/87C * 15 BERER-ZF—tF+-A=1—
HEVEEHE(E18.6% °

We then assessed the adequacy of the Group's disclosures
regarding the impairment of trade receivables.
HFIEEF G EEEMEREZRFBUEMERERSH
JiE R

=

We evaluated and tested the design and operating
effectiveness of the controls over the accounting process
of the construction in progress.
BHAEERASEZTIRESFRIEARNRTREEE R
R -
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B BATHRE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

BRETEHEW)

Key audit matter
HEETEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RANETEEERETESENT X

In July 2017, construction of the new casino was substantially
completed and commenced operations. To assist management
with their assessment of the construction costs included in
construction in progress which related to the casino, the Group
engaged a quantity surveyor to perform a cost segregation
study. Management subsequently transferred an amount of
HK$2,198 million from the construction in progress account
into the respective categories of property, plant and
equipment, and depreciation commenced. The construction in
progress amount carried at the end of the reporting period
represented mainly the hotel portion still under construction.
RITE—tFLA FRESHEETIRABTRIERA L
B o RIHBEIRE LI AZIREES PSR TIZH RS
A BEREZE-—RZTHASMETRNAIAIHARE - B
1B [E H 12145 /& 802,198,000,000 % T ) X IE B HEE T12ARIAHE
BEYXE  BELRREABEMNLMBAEINE - RRED
ANAERIREFIATIZ2/HAERZNEERS -

We identified the transfer of the relevant costs of the
completed casino from construction in progress into the
other categories of property, plant and equipment as a key
audit matter because of (i) the material amounts involved,
and (i) the significant judgement and assumptions adopted
in the determination of the respective portions of the casino
and hotel properties.

BASEEEIRERZHMYE  BELRERMNE %
FXIRSEISABRAPN A BB R FRT FIE - DARNOET IR
WEAREHE K (i) EEEIREES KB E ) 3 PR 8 38 99 B ER 4
BV E R HIET R -

The Group's accounting policies and disclosures on
construction in progress are set out in notes 2.5 and 14 to
the Group " s consolidated financial statements.
EEEAHAERIENSTHRERBERY SXENGF
MR ME25K14 -

o>

We assessed the methodologies and assumptions adopted
by the quantity surveyor in the determination of the
respective portions for the completed casino and hotel
properties still under construction and, in particular, the
bases of allocating costs of common structures between
the casino and the hotel portions. In addition, we assessed
the independence, objectivity and competence of the
quantity surveyor.

BAIETE TRDB S ADERE E O 8 IR EE S RAE BB E ¥ 3
P E80 RERNEY 7505 R AR - U B AR IR 4495 B )F 5 &P
DZEDERARBEY AT KIBAEAE - LI - T
et TEDRI MBI - FEMEREES -

We then assessed the adequacy of the Group's disclosures

regarding the construction in progress.

BPEEFE EREREZIREMERERHES -
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial

statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing

to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of
the Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic

alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee
in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's

financial reporting process.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other

person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of

these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,

or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a

going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that

achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain

solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among

other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and

significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we

have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding

independence and to communicate with them all relationships and

other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public

interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent

auditor’s report is Paul Kai Lung Go.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

28 March 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

meESEREMEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-Z—+tHF+=-A=1+—HILEFE

2017 2016
—E-tF —TRF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
i TER THET
CONTINUING OPERATIONS RECERY
Gross revenue BUEs 5 13,155,608 7,488,979
Less: Commissions W EEe (4,997,103) (3,416,342)
Net revenue W25 =58 8,158,505 4,072,637
Cost of sales SHERK R (1,215,613) (855,940)
Gross profit EF| 6,942,892 3,216,697
Other income, gains and losses, net FEMBA - s RIEBE (45,388) 51,428
Selling and marketing expenses HE RTIGHERERX (64,126) (81,107)
Operating and administrative expenses BERITHRAX (5,775,571) (2,022,004)
Share-based payments PARR 10 BB 2 RS (21,635) (10,347)
Finance costs HBHER 7 (165,212) (57,864)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX FROM RE RS EBRBADRT
CONTINUING OPERATIONS 6 870,960 1,096,803
Income tax expenses FTieRiAY 10 (233,487) (160,910)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM REFECEXRFART
CONTINUING OPERATIONS 637,473 935,893
DISCONTINUED OPERATION BRILER
Loss for the year from a discontinued operation KRB —JEE AR IF¥HKFNER 11 - (318)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE FRTAHE ARG FRET
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 637,473 935,575
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) Htt2EMA/(ER)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) to be REZBEENSEEER
reclassified to profit or loss in Hin2EBA/(BE) :
subsequent periods:
Available-for-sale investments: AftHERE :
Changes in fair value ARBEEEY (19,253) (32,107)
Reclassification adjustments for losses ARG EBEENNE
included in profit or loss AR
— loss on disposal — HERER b 266 53,302
— impairment loss — REEE 6 33,589 =
14,602 21,195
Exchange differences on translation of MEGINEREE 2B R 25
foreign operations 36,675 8,255

H
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

meESEREMEE KSR

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-Z—tF+-A=1+—HILFE

2017 2016
—E—tE —E-RF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
FisE TERT FHEL
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FREMEEBA
FOR THE YEAR 51,277 29,450
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ERRAREAREEREE
FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO PN L]
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 688,750 965,025
EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE ¥\ UNGIE =D 3
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS SREF/(HR)
OF THE COMPANY 13
Basic R
— For profit for the year — EREF HKO0.45 centBfll  HK0.66 cent &1Ll
— For profit from continuing operations — RERBEEER 2 ET HKO0.45 cent 84l HK0.66 cent &1l
— For loss from a discontinued operation — REDKRILERK BB HK(0.0002) cent
N/ATER I
Diluted B
— For profit for the year — EREA HK0.24 centi&fl  HK0.34 cent &l
— For profit from continuing operations — REREEEEB OGN HKO.24 cent Bl HKO0.34 cent /% fll
— For loss from a discontinued operation — REERIEEK 2R N/ATiE N/AiE A

H
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e BRI &R

As at 31 December 2017
RZZE—+F+-A=+—H

2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
ihE=s FHExT T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M BENEE 14 5,468,239 3,058,388
Prepaid land lease payments TERT A & RIR 15 181,967 212,791
Prepayments, deposits and TEFRIE - = REHA
other receivables FEUS Fh1E 16 352,963 593,326
Available-for-sale investments AEHEERSE 17 82,464 103,085
Deferred tax assets FIETR IR & = 28 504,784 24,363
Total non-current assets IEmBEELE 6,590,417 3,991,953
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Prepaid land lease payments TEfS T H A EFRIE 15 4,526 4,115
Inventories eS| 18 25,768 6,786
Trade receivables FEWE R 19 8,531,023 5,333,904
Prepayments, deposits and TENRIR « e REAM
other receivables JE UG FRTE 16 204,030 170,776
Derivative financial asset MESRERE 23 1,010 =
Restricted bank deposit ZIRBIRITIF K 20 - 11,624
Cash and cash equivalents RENBEEEY 20 284,520 93,945
Total current assets mBEEMRE 9,050,877 5,621,150
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBAE
Trade payables BN E S RN 21 78,623 22,061
Accruals, other payables and FEETFRIE - HAERRIBR
deposits received 2 iz e 22 6,931,685 4,293,560
Derivative financial liabilities MTESmAaE 23 1,033 215
Other borrowings E b ER 25 1,189,492 644,917
Loans from related parties KE@E T 2 ER 24 197,593 1,037,241
Convertible notes AR IR 26 - 590,018
Tax payable e R IE 664,775 164,194
Total current liabilities mENE BEE 9,063,201 6,752,206
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e M BARR R

As at 31 December 2017
RZZE—+F+-A=+—H

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
e TExT T
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES RENEEFHE (12,324) (1,131,056)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEABERRBAR
LIABILITIES 6,578,093 2,860,897
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EnBAE
Other borrowings E b ER 25 773,350 -
Loan from a related party RE T 2 ER 24 151,764 -
Convertible bonds Al &S 26 46,713 =
Unsecured bonds and notes EIKHESREE 27 1,753,301 =
Total non-current liabilities IEmE AL 2,725,128 =
NET ASSETS EEFE 3,852,965 2,860,897
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BERRFE
Share capital R& 2R 29 71,492 70,826
Reserves B 31 3,781,473 2,790,071
Total equity o oy 3,852,965 2,860,897
Cai Lingli
B®BE Xia Yuki Yu
Director Director
EFE E

H
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

RERBEHR

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BHE_ZT—+tHF+-_A=1+—HALFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

NGz,
Convertible Share Share
Share notes premium option Exchange Investment  Accumulated Total
capital reserves account reserve reserve reserve losses equity
TRR
i ZEER R EER BRERRE EXGE REGR ZiEE Y 3]
Notes HKS$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
i3 T T T T T T Fhn T
|
At January 2016 A-B-7E-A-B 703 1460332 1,847,279 41811 (10562 B9 (M%) 174155
Profit for the year ERER - B - B = B 935,575 935,575
Other comprehensive income for the year: ~ EREMZEHA :
Changesin fair value of avallable-forsale T HERENAABEEY
investments, net B8 - - - - - 2,195 - 21,195
Exchange differences on translation of BEMIEREL B 2R
foreign operations - - - - 8,255 - - 8,255
Total comprehensive income for the year FREERALE - = = - 8,25 21195 935,575 965,025
Issue of new shares BTk 2 50 = 137,500 = = = = 138,000
Equity-settled share option amangements  ERftEEST Az RHEELH - - - 10,347 - - - 10,347
Transfer of reserve upon the BRESIREERRE
[apse of share options K| = = = (1,444) = = 1,444 =
¢3! Decerber 206 ReZ-RE+=A=t-A nES LI 071 QA (M (M 28089
At1 January 2017 RZF-t5-5-R 70,826 1,480,332 1,984,779 50,714 (2,307) (14,602) (708,845) 2,860,897
Profit for the year FREF - - - - - - 637,473 637,473
Other comprehensive income forthe year: ~ FREMZEHA :
Changes in fair value of available-for-sale THHERENDLEREE
investrents, net et - - - - - 14,602 - 14,602
Exchange differences on translation of RERNEREEZERZS
foreign operations - - - - 36,675 - - 36,675
Total comprehensive income for the year FREZANNEE - - - - 36,675 14,602 637,473 688,750
Issue of shares upon conversion TRREEE S ERRARG
of convertible notes 9 666 - 281,017 - - - - 281,683
Equity-settled share option arrangements Bt ES N RO EESH - - - 21,635 - - - 21,635
Transfer of reserve upon the BREAUERRE
[apse of share options Kl - - - (1,557) - - 1,557 -
At 31 December 2017 R=F-t§+-A=1-A 71492 1,480,332 2,265,796' 70,792 34,368" - (69,815) 3,852,965

* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of  * hEREREBRGEMBRARAZEGEHE
HK$3,781,473,000 (2016: HK$2,790,071,000) in the consolidated statement 3,781,473,0007% 7Tt ( = & — 75 F : 2,790,071,000 7%
of financial position. JT) e

Annual Report 2017 £ E % 63



22

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n _\éiﬁﬁi}iﬁu%%

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-Z—tF+-A=1+—HILFE

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M=t FHT FABT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RECERBRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit/(loss) before tax: BrFi s, (EE) -
From continuing operations KA EK S EE 870,960 1,096,803
From a discontinued operation KE—HE KR IEFET - (318)
Adjustments for: FEIER ¢
Finance costs Bi5E B 7 165,212 57,864
Bank interest income RITF SN 6 (2) (99)
Dividend income from available-for-sale REAJHLEERER
investments A& S WA 6 (14) (172)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of HEWE - BEKE&HE
property, plant and equipment BH BB (W) 6 25,876 (39)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMRBARZ W 6 (11,966) (19,970)
Fair value gain on derivative financial PESBMTEZAREE
instruments, net Wz - R 6 (549) (69,594)
Gain on extinguishment of other BB B R H A 5z e
borrowings 6 - (12,000)
Depreciation e 6 139,741 105,476
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TEA L FH & IR S
payments 6 7,946 6,833
Impairment of available-for-sale At ERE Y RE
investments 6 33,589 -
Fair value loss on available-for-sale AHEERENAAEE
investments (transfer from equity B8 (R SR e mE A)
on disposal) 6 266 53,302
Impairment losses recognized for REKE SRR ZRIE
trade receivables, net BB 6 4,185,431 847,114
Share-based payments PARR D BEME 2 R 30 21,635 10,347
5,438,125 2,075,547
Increase in inventories F &0 (18,881) (3,128)
Increase in trade receivables JEUE 5 BR 3L N (7,333,159) (5,127,49¢6)
Decrease in prepayments, TR IR ~ e R EAM
deposits and other receivables FEMFRIE R > 53,106 6,089
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables JENE SERFIE I, O d) 56,246 (249,630)
Increase in accruals, other payables FEETHRIE - H A FERFIE R
and deposits received Bz E LM 1,554,957 3,163,870
Cash used in operations LIEMAZE® (249,6006) (134,748)
Overseas taxes paid EAEINEIE (213,945) (21,059)
Net cash flows used in operating activities A EKEHA 2B S REFHE (463,551) (155,807)

H
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
n _\éIﬁﬁﬁE%

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-Z—+tHF+=-A=1+—HILEFE

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
ihE=s FHExT FATT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RERERXRBZHERE
ACTIVITIES
Bank interest received BUERITH & 2 99
Dividends received from listed investments R E &R E WAL E 14 172
Purchases of items of property, BEYE  WENMKRIEEEB
plant and equipment (1,543,692) (1,638,819)
Proceeds from disposal of items of LEWE BEMEBEER 2
property, plant and equipment FRiS5k1E - 250
Additions to prepaid land lease payments — FB< + ith 7 & R IE 1 N 15 (73,923) (133,080)
Prepayment for acquisition of B IER B & EE TR IR
non-current assets - (282,188)
Disposal of subsidiaries o &5 B S A 3] 32 110,610 40,801
Purchases of available-for-sale investments B & rJf{t H &K E - (18,505)
Proceeds from disposal of HE a] B E K E W TS 08
available-for-sale investments 1,369 152,195
Decrease in restricted bank deposit ZRBRITIFFORD 11,624 -
Net cash flows used in investing activities HREEEFA B REF5E (1,493,996) (1,879,075)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING REBMEXBRERE
ACTIVITIES
Redemption of convertible notes B Al R R IR (205,500) -
Proceeds from issue of convertible bonds K B 21T R[#2AXEH 2
Fr 185008 46,025 =
Proceeds from issue of unsecured bonds  ZE{TEEIFES K ZE
and notes FriS sk 8 876,415 -
Proceeds from other borrowings R B HA G Z FT{S 508 1,821,295 1,238,917
Repayment of other borrowings BEHEMER (367,952) (444,000)
Loans from related parties REME T 2ER 64,742 1,097,000
Repayment of loans from related parties EEREBH S 2ER (28,390) (349,759
Interest paid ERFLE (59,772) (20,789)
Net cash flows from financing activities REMEXBZREREFHE 2,146,863 1,521,369
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH HERBEESEEY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS #hn, (Rd) B8 189,316 (513,513)
Cash and cash equivalents at FHzReRREeEED
beginning of year 93,945 599,964
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXEH o TE  FHE
changes, net 1,259 7,494
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRZEERESZEY
END OF YEAR 284,520 93,945
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH RERBRESSENERDN
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances & MIRITER 284,520 93,945
22}
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-Z—tF+-A=1+—HILFE

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
Imperial Pacific International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in Bermuda as an investment
holding company with limited liability under the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda. The address of its registered office is
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.
The principal place of business is Suites 7001, 7002 and 7014—
7016, 70/F., Two International Finance Centre, No. 8 Finance
Street, Central, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed
on The Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) are principally engaged in the
gaming and resort business, including the development of an
integrated resort on the Island of Saipan, Commonwealth of
the Northern Mariana Islands (“CNMI").

In the opinion of the directors of the Company (the
“Directors”), Inventive Star Limited (“Inventive Star”), a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, is the
ultimate holding company of the Company and Ms. Cui Li Jie

is the ultimate controlling party.

1.

AR REEEHR

BE R FERERERAR (TEAXT]) T
BEBRE-NN—FRRVER B REZM
PR AB—FRIEEEREBR AT - HEfigis
ik A Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda @ 1 & £ & & 2
WEAEATREMBESHEEESRFP L
H§70#27001 * 7002 52 7014-7016 % > K R
AIRMDREBBERXGMBERA R ([HR
Frl) =R LM ©

FRN - AR LENBAR (58 [A5£6H])
IZRE[/ELERNES - ERERILS
BTHHEEA(LEEDM) EBINSEGES
RARA

KRAFIEZES(EE])RA - Inventive Star
Limited ([ Inventive Star| *+ —RNREBE L
HEEMKZ AR BEAR B REZERA
Al - MEBRAL T R/RLEGIA -

66
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-_T—+tF+-A=+—HLEFE

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries

REAREBESR (@)

FRNBLTNER
ARBEBHBATZFHBLT ¢

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows:

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________|
Percentage of equity

attributable to the Company

ANRELREE 2B
Place of incorporation/
registration and Issued ordinary/
Name business registered capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
SRR, BRITER/
£ BERERBH HMER =83 B FEEH

Best Sunshine International ~ British Virgin Islands US$100 100% - Investment holding
Limited

ERERERAR RERTES 100%7T 100% - RERK

Best Fortune Corporation Hong Kong HK$1 100% — Provision of management
Limited and consultancy services

EHAEERAA BB 187 100% - RUERRFARE

New Praise Ventures Limited ~ British Virgin Islands US$1 100% — Provision of management

and consultancy services

New Praise Ventures Limited ~EBRXHE E 100% - REERREARSE

Imperial Pacific International ~ CNMI US$100 - 100% Development and operation
(CNMI), LLC of a hotel and casino resort

Imperial Pacific International It 24 100%7T - 100% ERRBEDER
(CNMI), LLC REZR BT

Imperial Pacific Properties, LLC CNMI US$100 - 100% Holding of leasehold land

in Saipan

Imperial Pacific Properties, LLC b5 2243 100%7T - 100% RERSHERELH

East Gain Global (CNMI) CNMI US$100 = 100% Holding of leasehold land
Limited in Saipan

East Gain Global (CNMI) plAEAE 1003%7T - 100% RERSHAEELH
Limited

Pride Keen Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 100% - Holding of yachts

HEBERAR RERTES E3 100% - RAER

Annual Report 2017 FE#RE 6 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-Z—tF+-A=1+—HILFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. RAIREEBER (&)
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) EENMBATMNER (&)

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company

ARREEREZADL
Place of incorporation/
registration and Issued ordinary/
Name business registered capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
SR, BRITER/

£ BERERLH A ER HE B TEEH

_____________________________________________________________________________________________________|

Rich Surplus Ventures (CNMI), CNMI US$100 - 100% Holding of leasehold land
LLC in Saipan

Rich Surplus Ventures (CNMI), b5 24 10037T - 100% RERSHERELH
LLC

Colour Palace CNMI LLC CNMI US$100 - 100% Holding of leasehold land

in Saipan

Colour Palace CNMILLC gL 1005%7T - 100% RENSHERE L

Imperial Pacific Macau Limited Macau MOP25,000 - 100% Marketing and promotion
(formerly known as Mariana of a hotel and casino resort
Grand Entertainment Macau
Limited)

BEAFFRFAERAA R 25,0002 7T - 100% TSHEEREGBER
(AT RS B R MRS IRES5 E R
—ANERAT])

Imperial Consultancy Macao ~ Macau MOP25,000 - 100% Marketing and
Limited consultancy services

BERERAMN-ABRAT &M 25,000 P97 - 100% s HE R R ok S AR

|deal Best (CNMI), LLC CNMI US$100 - 100% Holding of leasehold land

in Saipan

Ideal Best (CNMI), LLC gL 100%7T - 100% RENSHERE L

Green Estate Holdings CNMI US$100 - 100% Holding of leasehold land
(CNMI), LLC in Saipan

Green Estate Holdings EHETH 100%7T - 100% RERSHERELH
(CNMI), LLC

Keen State Global (CNMI), LLC CNMI US$100 - 100% Holding of leasehold land

in Saipan

Keen State Global (CNMI), LLC 3t5 B4 1007 - 100% RERSHARELH

H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-_T—+tF+-A=+—HLEFE

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. RAIREEBER (&)
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) EENMBATMNER (&)

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company

ARREEREZADL
Place of incorporation/
registration and Issued ordinary/
Name business registered capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
SR, BRITER/
£ BERERLH HMER =84 B FEEH
______________________________________________________________________________________________________________|
Leading Chief (CNMI), LLC ~ CNMI US$100 - 100% Holding of leasehold land
in Saipan
Leading Chief (CNMI), LLC ~ dtHEm# 100%7T - 100% RERSHEHELH
Proper Grand (CNMI) LLC CNMI US$100 - 100% Holding of leasehold land
in Saipan
Proper Grand (CNMI) LLC EHETH 100%7T - 100% RERSHAEEETH
Unity Sense (CNMI) LLC CNMI US$100 - 100% Holding of leasehold land
in Saipan
Unity Sense (CNMI) LLC gAY 100%7T - 100% RERSHEHELH
Metro Time (CNMI), LLC CNMI US$100 - 100% Holding of leasehold land
in Saipan
Metro Time (CNMI), LLC EHESH 1003%7T - 100% RENSHERE L
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, BEDA - PR AN TINE D T Y
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results AN M ES BT A R AN B S A
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets HWEBHY c BERA - SMEMHEAT
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in U B B S RHAR T E o

the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive

length.

Annual Report 2017 FE#RE 6 9
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-Z—tF+-A=1+—HILFE

2.1

BASIS OF PRESENTATION 21 2HEE

Despite that the Group had net current liabilities of BEAEER-_ZT—tHFTH=1T—80w
HK$12,324,000 and capital commitments of approximately mEN B EFE 512,324,000 78 7T M B AN A IE
HK$553,535,000 as at 31 December 2017 as detailed in note #95 553,535,000 7T (FEL MR & BT SR R
35 to the consolidated financial statements, the Directors fI3E35)  EEERA  BEANEEZ)EF
consider that the Group will have adequate funds available to BRAKRESTERR  AEBBEXTRZES
enable it to operate as a going concern, based on the FEAFESETALE  WEHR(EF
Group's profit forecast and cash flow projection which, inter BR)AEEBEERKERBELTIIRE
alia, take into account the past actual operating performance A% -

of the Group and the following:

(@) subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the (a)
Company has raised new unsecured loans for an
aggregate amount of approximately HK$870,537,000
from independent third parties, of which HK$410,000,000,
HK$214,500,000 and HK$246,037,000 are repayable in
2018, 2019 and 2020, respectively;

(b) subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the (b)
Company has agreed with its lenders to renew certain
loan agreements for borrowings of approximately
HK$842,958,000 outstanding as at 31 December 2017
and which were originally due for repayment in 2018,
and extend the repayment tenure to 2019 and 2020 for
HK$398,000,000 and HK$444,958,000, respectively;

() subsequent to the end of the reporting period, in (c)
addition to its existing available credit facility from an
independent third party, the Company has obtained an
additional unsecured credit facility of approximately
HK$781,000,000 from another independent third party
for its working capital needs;

(d) the ultimate holding company and other related parties (d)
have agreed to provide continuous financial support to
the Group by not demanding repayment of any amounts
due to them until the Group is in a financial position to
repay without impairing its liquidity position; and

(e) the management is in discussion with certain potential (e)
investors with a view to secure long term financing
principally to be used on the construction of the
integrated gaming resort. As at the date of approval of
these consolidated financial statements, Memorandums
of Understanding have been signed with these investors
which are subject to terms and conditions to be
completed and fulfilled.

RMERRE XA EBLE=R
RS EEBRERETEDN AR
870,537,000 7t + £ A 410,000,000 %5
JT * 214,500,0007% 7T K 246,037,000 7
TORMBERZZE—NF - ZT—N&F
NZZT-TFEER
RBEARE  XAFEHEEFHE
—T—+FE+-_A=t+—HZX
£}
ERthz ZSERARERZZ—N
R HRMEE - M H A 398,000,000 7 T
K 444,958,000 JT 2 B K HA D RIE =
—E-NFEREFTF

RBEEHRE  BE—RBILFE=H
MEREEEREIN ARBIRAEE
BETFEER —BBUE=TFIRF
BRHMEHE 7= & 88 /Z 49781,000,000 8
JC

RERERABREMEBRTERER
AEERHFEM BRI TS ER
BEEMNENREZHNE BEAE
Bz SRR R A B R B IR
SEREERDPESMRA/LE R

ERERETEEREEETIW
DUEBGRARE  TERRNEREGS
BEERN - RIt/EZFHRE MR
KA BEZEREERZREES
8% MR IRR R R TR RIERK R
73Rl

i

o

\r
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION (Continued)

Further details are set out in note 42 for events after the

reporting period.

Imperial Pacific International (CNMI), LLC (“IP1”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, is principally engaged in
the development and operation of an integrated gaming
resort facility in Saipan. Pursuant to the Casino License
Agreement Amendment No.5 entered between IPl and the
relevant CNMI government authorities dated 31 July 2017, IPI
is required to complete the construction of, inter alia, a
minimum number of hotel rooms, gaming area, food and
beverages outlets, retail and meeting space, villa hotel etc.
(the “Initial Gaming Facility”) by no later than 31 August 2018.

Due to the termination of construction services by certain
companies and drastic reduction and non-availability of
sufficient construction labours locally in Saipan, as at the date
of approval of these consolidated financial statements, the
Directors are of the opinion that the construction of the Initial

Gaming Facility will not be completed by 31 August 2018.

Given the importance of the Casino License Agreement to
the operation of the Group's only principal activity, the
Directors have confirmed and are already in the process of
preparing for the application to be made to the relevant
CNMI government authorities for an extension of completion
deadline, in accordance with the process as provided under
the Casino License Agreement. As at the date of approval of
these consolidated financial statements, the Company has
notified the Commonwealth Casino Commission of its
intended application to extend the deadline to complete the
Initial Gaming Facility. The Directors are of the opinion that
the necessary approval will be granted for the deadline

extension application.

Accordingly, these consolidated financial statements has
been prepared on the going concern basis which assumes,
among other things, the realisation of assets and satisfaction

of liabilities in the normal course of business.

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_T—+tH&+-_A=+—HILHFE

2.1 2HEEG)

E—THBHAR T 42 2 REREREIR -

K Qa2 &M B A &llmperial Pacific
International (CNMI), LLC([IP1]) = E ¢ =
EEMEFREREE GG ELEBRNERE
MR 4% 1P| B3 AR A 3b 55 B 26 AN UAS &R PI P RT a2
HEAZT —tHFtLtA=T—HZIRESE
BIPZEETESH  IPIER=Z—N\F/\A
=+ —BAlEAEE (KR 81E) EHE
BEEME - BRE - 288  TEREEE
M BIERES ([EEBREE] o

BHRETARKLEERERENLSE A
BRADLREZ BHEETA - BEZFHE
BRI AERH  EXRREEFELRIE
MERETER - N\FNAA=+—HA
FERK °

BENRES R IBEL N REME —FEEH
HEMNERN  EFRBRESERBER
E B TR - HETE N AE S (A1 AR A L 15 B2 SR AU
EHPIRBLERTAEAR c REUEZSGE R
% EZBE  ARREBANEHESEES
(Commonwealth Casino Commission) & &
ERFEREEBERETHKER - EER
7 BRI BAMRAGEEPT R -

E=11%

ERAMBRRCREELERE
e BR(EFEJH)NAEXRGEETE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-Z—tF+-A=1+—HILFE

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs"”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants ("HKICPA"), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for available-for-sale investments and derivative
financial instruments which have been measured at fair value.
These financial statements presented in Hong Kong dollars
("HK$") and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand

except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2017. A subsidiary is an entity (including
a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the
Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the

investee).

2.2 RREE

WEMBRRIBEELEFMAR ((EHE
EFRAAE)EM BBV BREER(EH
BUBHREE ) (BEMERBYBHRE
R B G LR (TEBEFER ] kA
B) BEEBRMZEFRARERBRA
Pl MBREMRE - RIRAS(EEFE
ZAHEERERITASR T AN - tEH
BMERTIRE LKA ERE - R A B AE
S BB RKRTIAE T ([BT]) 25
MmEspEEIHBESROTIT

REEE

HEMBHRREBEBEARFLEMBARNEE
TRt EFT A=+ RLEFEZHER
= MBARREARRERKRAEREFZE
B(ERERER)  EXAKEREBESH
EEXRFAREHRAEEE 2 AR KE
Mo AEESMAIREHREREENZEL R
SR (AREEN A EARE BN R IEE
REHSRNEREE)) - BIKRIUSIEHIE -

72
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in

assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders

of the investee;
(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(o) the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that

such control ceases.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of

the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control described
above. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity

transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i)
the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_T—+tH&+-_A=+—HILHFE

2.2 mREE (@)

ReEE(H)
ERARFEERIERAAREHRINAZ
SRS SRR - REBRFFEE L
REHRERHRERIKSEZRMARESE
BERER - B

(@) EREHRZEMBRERTBAL
ZERIRYE

b) HMENLHPEEZERN &
(@ AEENRERREBGERTRE-

B A B 2 SRR Ty iR AR R RIARE K9 3R
SHE - KA-BWEABRRRER - HBA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-Z—tF+-A=1+—HILFE

2.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the
first time for the current year’s consolidated financial

statements.

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets

for Unrealised Losses

Amendments to HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities:
included in Annual Clarification of the Scope of HKFRS 12
Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle

The nature and the impact of the amendments are described
below:

(a)

Amendments to HKAS 7 require an entity to provide
disclosures that enable users of financial statements to
evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities, including both changes arising from cash
flows and non-cash changes. Disclosure of the changes
in liabilities arising from financing activities is provided
in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 clarify that an entity, when
assessing whether taxable profits will be available against
which it can utilise a deductible temporary difference,
needs to consider whether tax law restricts the sources of
taxable profits against which it may make deductions on
the reversal of that deductible temporary difference.
Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance on how
an entity should determine future taxable profits and
explain the circumstances in which taxable profit may
include the recovery of some assets for more than their
carrying amount. The amendments have had no impact
on the financial position or performance of the Group as
the Group has no deductible temporary differences or
assets that are in the scope of the amendments.

Amendments to HKFRS 12 clarify that the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 12, other than those disclosure
requirements in paragraphs B10 to B16 of HKFRS 12,
apply to an entity’s interest in a subsidiary, a joint
venture or an associate, or a portion of its interest in a
joint venture or an associate that is classified as held for
sale or included in a disposal group classified as held
for sale. The amendments have had no impact on the
Group's consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised

HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in

these consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

HKFRS 9
Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 15
Amendments to HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 40
HK(IFRIC)-Int 22

HK(FRIC)-Int 23

Annual Improvements
2014-2016 Cycle

Annual Improvements
2015-2017 Cycle

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions'

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with
HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts'

Financial Instruments’

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation?

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture*

Revenue from Contracts with Customers'

Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers'

Leases’

Insurance Contracts®

Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures?

Transfers of Investment Property’

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration’

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments’

Amendments to HKFRS 1 and HKAS 28'

Amendments to the following standards:
— HKFRS 3 Business Combination?

— HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangement?

— HKAS 12 Income Taxes?

— HKAS 23 Borrowing Cost’

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

? Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

adoption

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
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e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-Z—tF+-A=1+—HILFE

2.4

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to
be applicable to the Group is described below. The actual
impacts upon adoption could be different to those below,
depending on additional reasonable and supportable
information being made available to the Group at the time of
applying the standards and the transitional provisions and

policy options finally adopted.

The HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS 2 in August 2016
that address three main areas: the effects of vesting
conditions on the measurement of a cash-settled share-based
payment transaction; the classification of a share-based
payment transaction with net settlement features for
withholding a certain amount in order to meet an employee’s
tax obligation associated with the share-based payment; and
accounting where a modification to the terms and conditions
of a share-based payment transaction changes its
classification from cash-settled to equity-settled. The
amendments clarify that the approach used to account for
vesting conditions when measuring equity-settled share-
based payments also applies to cash-settled share-based
payments. The amendments introduce an exception so that a
share-based payment transaction with net share settlement
features for withholding a certain amount in order to meet the
employee’s tax obligation is classified in its entirety as an
equity-settled share-based payment transaction when certain
conditions are met. Furthermore, the amendments clarify that
if the terms and conditions of a cash-settled share-based
payment transaction are modified, with the result that it
becomes an equity-settled share-based payment transaction,
the transaction is accounted for as an equity-settled
transaction from the date of the modification. On adoption,
entities are required to apply the amendments without
restating prior periods, but retrospective application is
permitted if they elect to adopt for all three amendments and
other criteria are met. The Group will adopt the amendments
from 1 January 2018. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group's consolidated

financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final version of
HKFRS 9, bringing together all phases of the financial
instruments project to replace HKAS 39 and all previous
versions of HKFRS 9. The standard introduces new
requirements for classification and measurement, impairment
and hedge accounting. The Group will adopt HKFRS 9 from 1
January 2018. The Group will not restate comparative
information and will recognise any transition adjustments
against the opening balance of equity at 1 January 2018.
During 2017, the Group has performed a detailed assessment
of the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 9. The expected
impacts relate to the classification and measurement and the

impairment requirements are summarised as follows:

(a) Classification and measurement
The Group does not expect that the adoption of HKFRS
9 will have a significant impact on the classification and
measurement of its financial assets. It expects to
continue measuring at fair value all financial assets
currently held at fair value. Equity investments currently
held as available for sale will be measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income as the
investments are intended to be held for the foreseeable
future and the Group expects to apply the option to
present fair value changes in other comprehensive
income. Gains and losses recorded in other
comprehensive income for the equity investments
cannot be recycled to profit or loss when the

investments are derecognised.

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
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e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-Z—tF+-A=1+—HILFE

2.4

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(Continued)

(b) Impairment
HKFRS 9 requires an impairment on debt instruments
recorded at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income, lease receivables, loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts that are
not accounted for at fair value through profit or loss
under HKFRS 9, to be recorded based on an expected
credit loss model either on a twelve-month basis or a
lifetime basis. The Group will apply the simplified
approach and record lifetime expected losses that are
estimated based on the present values of all cash
shortfalls over the remaining life of all of its trade
receivables. Furthermore, the Group will apply the
general approach and record twelve-month expected
credit losses that are estimated based on the possible
default events on its other receivables within the next

twelve months.

The directors of the Company have assessed the impact
based on the 12-month expected credit losses and do
not anticipate that the application of HKFRS 9 will have

a material impact on the Group.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in
HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture.
The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss
when the sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For a
transaction involving assets that do not constitute a business,
a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in
the investor's profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investor’s interest in that associate or joint venture. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous
mandatory effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by the HKICPA in January 2016
and a new mandatory effective date will be determined after
the completion of a broader review of accounting for
associates and joint ventures. However, the amendments are

available for adoption now.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

HKFRS 15, issued in July 2014, establishes a new five-step
model to account for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or
services to a customer. The principles in HKFRS 15 provide a
more structured approach for measuring and recognising
revenue. The standard also introduces extensive qualitative
and quantitative disclosure requirements, including
disaggregation of total revenue, information about
performance obligations, changes in contract asset and
liability account balances between periods and key
judgements and estimates. The standard will supersede all
current revenue recognition requirements under HKFRSs.
Either a full retrospective application or a modified
retrospective adoption is required on the initial application of
the standard. In June 2016, the HKICPA issued amendments
to HKFRS 15 to address the implementation issues on
identifying performance obligations, application guidance on
principal versus agent and licences of intellectual property,
and transition. The amendments are also intended to help
ensure a more consistent application when entities adopt
HKFRS 15 and decrease the cost and complexity of applying
the standard. The Group plans to adopt the transitional
provisions in HKFRS 15 to recognise the cumulative effect of
initial adoption as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained earnings at 1 January 2018. In addition, the Group
expects that the transitional adjustment to be made on 1
January 2018 upon initial adoption of HKFRS 15 will not be

material.

The directors of the Company have assessed the impact on
application of HKFRS 15 and anticipate that the application of
HKFRS 15 in the future may result in more disclosures,
however, the directors of the Company do not anticipate that
the application of HKFRS 15 will have a material impact on the
timing and amounts of revenue recognised in the respective

reporting periods.
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e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-Z—tF+-A=1+—HILFE

2.4

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

HKFRS 16, issued in May 2016, replaces HKAS 17 Leases,
HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases —
Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of
Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The
standard sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and
requires lessees to recognise assets and liabilities for most
leases. The standard includes two elective recognition
exemptions for lessees — leases of low-value assets and
short-term leases. At the commencement date of a lease, a
lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e.,
the lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use
the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-
use asset). The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at
cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses unless the right-of-use asset meets the definition of
investment property in HKAS 40, or relates to a class of
property, plant and equipment to which the revaluation
model is applied. The lease liability is subsequently increased
to reflect the interest on the lease liability and reduced for the
lease payments. Lessees will be required to separately
recognise the interest expense on the lease liability and the
depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset. Lessees will
also be required to remeasure the lease liability upon the
occurrence of certain events, such as change in the lease term
and change in future lease payments resulting from a change
in an index or rate used to determine those payments.
Lessees will generally recognise the amount of the
remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the
right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 is
substantially unchanged from the accounting under HKAS 17.
Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the same
classification principle as in HKAS 17 and distinguish between
operating leases and finance leases. HKFRS 16 requires
lessees and lessors to make more extensive disclosures than
under HKAS 17. Lessees can choose to apply the standard
using either a full retrospective or a modified retrospective
approach. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 16 from 1
January 2019. The Group is currently assessing the impact of
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)
HKFRS 16 upon adoption and is considering whether it will

choose to take advantage of the practical expedients
available and which transition approach and reliefs will be
adopted. As disclosed in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements, at 31 December 2017, the Group had future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases in aggregate of approximately HK$194,820,000. Upon
adoption of HKFRS 16, certain amounts included therein may
need to be recognised as new right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities. Further analysis, however, will be needed to
determine the amount of new rights of use assets and lease
liabilities to be recognised, including, but not limited to, any
amounts relating to leases of low-value assets and short term
leases, other practical expedients and reliefs chosen, and new

leases entered into before the date of adoption.

Amendments to HKAS 40, issued in April 2017, clarify when an
entity should transfer property, including property under
construction or development, into or out of investment
property. The amendments state that a change in use occurs
when the property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of
investment property and there is evidence of the change in
use. A mere change in management's intentions for the use
of a property does not provide evidence of a change in use.
The amendments should be applied prospectively to the
changes in use that occur on or after the beginning of the
annual reporting period in which the entity first applies the
amendments. An entity should reassess the classification of
property held at the date that it first applies the amendments
and, if applicable, reclassify property to reflect the conditions
that exist at that date. Retrospective application is only
permitted if it is possible without the use of hindsight. The
Group expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from
1 January 2018. The amendments are not expected to have

any significant impact on the Group's financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-Z—tF+-A=1+—HILFE

2.4

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22, issued in June 2017, provides guidance on
how to determine the date of the transaction when applying
HKAS 21 to the situation where an entity receives or pays
advance consideration in a foreign currency and recognises a
non-monetary asset or liability. The interpretation clarifies that
the date of the transaction for the purpose of determining the
exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income (or part of it) is the date on which an
entity initially recognises the non-monetary asset (such as a
prepayment) or non-monetary liability (such as deferred
income) arising from the payment or receipt of the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in
advance of recognising the related item, the entity must
determine the transaction date for each payment or receipt of
the advance consideration. Entities may apply the
interpretation on a full retrospective basis or on a prospective
basis, either from the beginning of the reporting period in
which the entity first applies the interpretation or the
beginning of the prior reporting period presented as
comparative information in the financial statements of the
reporting period in which the entity first applies the
interpretation. The Group expects to adopt the interpretation
prospectively from 1 January 2018. The interpretation is not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group's

consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23, issued in July 2017, addresses the
accounting for income taxes (current and deferred) when tax
treatments involve uncertainty that affects the application of
HKAS 12 (often referred to as “uncertain tax positions”). The
interpretation does not apply to taxes or levies outside the
scope of HKAS 12, nor does it specifically include
requirements relating to interest and penalties associated
with uncertain tax treatments. The interpretation specifically
addresses (i) whether an entity considers uncertain tax
treatments separately; (ii) the assumptions an entity makes
about the examination of tax treatments by taxation
authorities; (i) how an entity determines taxable profits or tax
losses, tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and
tax rates; and (iv) how an entity considers changes in facts and
circumstances. The interpretation is to be applied
retrospectively, either fully retrospectively without the use of
hindsight or retrospectively with the cumulative effect of
application as an adjustment to the opening equity at the
date of initial application, without the restatement of
comparative information. The Group expects to adopt the
interpretation from 1 January 2019. The interpretation is not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group's

consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE

BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE_T

2.5

—tEFFT-A=+—BLEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Business combinations and goodwiill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net assets
in the event of liquidation either at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed

as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded

derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in

profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability is
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is

accounted for within equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)
Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group's previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items is
lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss

as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group

are assigned to those units or groups of units.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_Z—+tF+_A=+—HIFE

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 25 TESHBRBE(#)

POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)
Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is

not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with
the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount
of the operation when determining the gain or loss on the
disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is
measured based on the relative value of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit

retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its available-for-sale investments and
derivative financial instruments at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market
for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal
market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must
be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a
liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best

interest.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the

asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable

inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as
follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to

the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 —  based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 —  based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Group determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-Z—tF+-A=1+—HILFE

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 25 TESHBRBE(#)

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
deferred tax assets, properties held for sale, financial assets,
investment properties and goodwill), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit's value in use
and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for
an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which

the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the

impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have
decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss
of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to profit or

loss in the period in which it arises.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

the party is a person or a close member of that person'’s
family and that person

()
(i)
(iii)

or

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is
a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.
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e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-Z—tF+-A=1+—HILFE

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 25 TESHBRBE(#)

POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working

condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in the
period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful

lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment
over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used
for this purpose are as follows:
Leasehold land classified Over the lease terms

as finance leases

Buildings 2.5%4%
Yachts 10%
Motor vehicles 20%

Over the shorter of the lease
terms and 20%

Over the shorter of the lease

Leasehold improvements

Gaming machines and

equipment terms and 20%
Furniture and equipment 20%
Computer hardware and 33%

software
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on
a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and the
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if

appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sales

proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings under
construction, which are stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and are not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct
costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on
related borrowed funds during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed

and ready for use.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance
lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present
value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect
the purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised
finance leases, including prepaid land lease payments under
finance leases, are included in property, plant and equipment,
and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such
leases are charged to profit or loss so as to provide a constant

periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.
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e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-Z—tF+-A=1+—HILFE

2.5

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets
leased by the Group under operating leases are included in
non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating
leases are credited to profit or loss on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals
payable under operating leases net of any incentives received
from the lessor are charged to profit or loss on the straight-

line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the

straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, and available-for-sale financial investments, as
appropriate. When financial assets are recognised initially,
they are measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets, except in
the case of financial assets recorded at fair value through

profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by

regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on

their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as held for trading
if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term.
Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are
also classified as held for trading unless they are designated
as effective hedging instruments as defined by HKAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried
in the statement of financial position at fair value with positive
net changes in fair value presented as other income and gains
and negative net changes in fair value presented as finance
costs in profit or loss. These net fair value changes do not
include any dividends or interest earned on these financial
assets, which are recognised in accordance with the policies

set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the date of
initial recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are
satisfied.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as
separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their
economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to
those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not
held for trading or designated as at fair value through profit
or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the
terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows
that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a
financial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss

category.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-Z—tF+-A=1+—HILFE

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 25 TESHBRBE(#)

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. After initial measurement, such assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs.
The loss arising from impairment of loans and receivables is
recognised in profit or loss in operating and administrative

expenses.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity investments and
debt securities. Equity investments classified as available for
sale are those which are neither classified as held for trading
nor designated as at fair value through profit or loss. Debt
securities in this category are those which are intended to be
held for an indefinite period of time and which may be sold in
response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in

market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value, with
unrealised gains or losses recognised as other comprehensive
income in the available-for-sale investment revaluation
reserve until the investment is derecognised, at which time
the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss in
other income, or until the investment is determined to be
impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from
the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve to profit
or loss in other gains or losses. Interest and dividends earned
whilst holding the available-for-sale financial investments are
reported as interest income and dividend income,
respectively and are recognised in profit or loss as other
income in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue

recognition” below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (Continued)

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be
reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that
investment or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates
within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and used in
estimating fair value, such investments are stated at cost less

any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell
its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are still
appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is unable
to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets, the
Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets if
management has the ability and intention to hold the assets

for the foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale
category, the fair value carrying amount at the date of
reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any
previous gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised
in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life
of the investment using the effective interest rate. Any
difference between the new amortised cost and the maturity
amount is also amortised over the remaining life of the asset
using the effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently
determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded in

equity is reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-Z—tF+-A=1+—HILFE

2.5

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primary
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated

statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have

expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of

the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained
the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the
extent of the Group's continuing involvement. In that case,
the Group also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on
a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group
has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum

amount of consideration that the Group could be required to

repay.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset have an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that
can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may
include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability
that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation and observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate
with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the
Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is,
or continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective

assessment of impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-Z—tF+-A=1+—HILFE

2.5

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The present
value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the

effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use
of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is
recognised in profit or loss. Interest income continues to be
accrued on the reduced carrying amount using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose
of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables
together with any associated allowance are written off when
there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all
collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the
Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by
adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later
recovered, the recovery is credited to other losses in profit or

loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is
objective evidence that an investment or a group of

investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair value,
less any impairment loss previously recognised in profit or
loss, is removed from other comprehensive income and

recognised in profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available for
sale, objective evidence would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment below its
cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of the
investment and “prolonged” against the period in which the
fair value has been below its original cost. Where there is
evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment
previously recognised in profit or loss — is removed from
other comprehensive income and recognised in profit or loss.
Impairment losses on equity instruments classified as available
for sale are not reversed through profit or loss. Increases in
their fair value after impairment are recognised directly in

other comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration or extent to

which the fair value of an investment is less than its cost.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_Z—+tF+_A=+—HIFE

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 25 TESHBRBE(#)

POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans

and borrowings, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly

attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, accruals, derivative financial instruments, other
borrowings, loans from related parties, convertible bonds and

notes and unsecured bonds and notes.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends

on their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate

amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in profit

or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Convertible bonds and notes

If the conversion option of convertible bonds and notes
exhibits characteristics of an embedded derivative, it is
separated from its liability component. On initial recognition,
the derivative components of the convertible bonds and
notes are measured at fair value and presented as part of
derivative financial instruments. Any excess of proceeds over
the amount initially recognised as the derivative component
is recognised as the liability component. Transaction costs are
apportioned between the liability and derivative components
of the convertible bonds and notes based on the allocation of
proceeds to the liability and derivative components when the
instruments are initially recognised. The portion of the
transaction costs relating to the liability component is
recognised initially as part of the liability. The portion relating
to the derivative component is recognised immediately in

profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under

the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the
difference between the respective carrying amounts is

recognised in profit or loss.
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25 FESTBERYE (#)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-Z—tF+-A=1+—HILFE

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 25 TESHBRBE(#)

POLICIES (Continued)

Mandatorily convertible notes

Mandatorily convertible note issued by the Company is an
instrument that, at a certain time in the future, converts into
shares of the Company. A mandatorily convertible note is
recognised as equity in its entirety if the fixed stated principal
will be settled through delivery of a fixed number of the
Company's own shares; the principal of the convertible note
is in the same currency as the functional currency of the
Company; and the interest on the note is payable only at the
discretion of the Company. On initial recognition, the note is
measured at fair value, net of transaction costs, and included
in shareholders’ equity. The carrying amount of the note is

not remeasured in subsequent years.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a

net basis, or to realise and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any

estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash

management.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents (Continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in

nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be

made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to
be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage of

time is included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is
recognised outside profit or loss, either in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices

prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their

carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-Z—tF+-A=1+—HILFE

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable

temporary differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the

accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not

reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible

temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits

and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised

to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be

available against which the deductible temporary differences,

the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses

can be utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor

taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax
assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.

25 FESTBERYE (#)

FR8® (&)
EERBRBEDRABRARTE R ZR T
FERR - A TS AIE FISH :

e EEEHBABIHENSHEREEX
TEEGAMHZRXITHNEEXRAR
MEL  ARRSETHHEHETN
SRR KNEEIELE &

o HFERHBARZRENERHE
REEMS - WAHREERERLZ
BRI E RS - AR E R ZR KA
BEfE AT R R [E

EFERIRE E T RLFT A A AR E R AR
REAPABIRE R K ERAREBHRIEREE
M ERR o FERUEE IR & & PA R R A
RERER  SEARBAHARRERD
RRBEEBBZERTOEM SR - A TIER
RUBHIS -

. ETMIAMEREBAAZETHAL
ENRTREB A 2 X PRITHE
NFRRHAESRETEL - A%
50 FI B BB F LB R
2R

o HNFPRNRWBQRZKENRIR
EREEMs  BEEHREEEEY
5 = 585 A gL FE A S A% 2R3 ] B R AR
BaMERREERASRREERE
B - TR -

104

H

Imperial Pacific International Holdings Limited % K ¥ BB ZRGR A &



22

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax

asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the

end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the same
taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in
each future period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or

recovered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-Z—tF+-A=1+—HILFE

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic

benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be

measured reliably, on the following bases:

(a)

gross gaming revenue, representing the net difference
between gaming wins and losses, with liabilities
recognised for funds deposited by customers before
gaming play occurs and for chips in customers’
possession. Net gaming revenue is arrived at by
deducting commissions rebated directly to customers

from gross gaming revenue;

interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest rate method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of

the financial asset;

from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the
buyer, provided the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold;

and

dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to

receive payment has been established.

Commissions

Commissions are calculated based on certain percentages of

the rolling amounts and are recognised when customers close

their programs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services as consideration for

equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for
grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference to
the fair value at the date at which they are granted. The fair
value is determined by an external valuer using a binomial
model, further details of which are given in note 30 to the

consolidated financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end
of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects the
extent to which the vesting period has expired and the
Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments
that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to profit or loss
for a period represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that

period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken
into account when determining the grant date fair value of
awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is
assessed as part of the Group's best estimate of the number
of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant date
fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but
without an associated service requirement, are considered to
be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an
immediate expensing of an award unless there are also

service and/or performance conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-Z—tF+-A=1+—HILFE

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 25 TESHBRBE(#)

POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met, no
expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service

conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or
is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the

date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not
yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This
includes any award where non-vesting conditions within the
control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled
award, and is designated as a replacement award on the date
that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated
as if they were a modification of the original award, as

described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per

share.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Other employee benefits

Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “"MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to participate
in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme, except for the Group’s employer
voluntary contributions, which are refunded to the Group
when the employee leaves employment prior to the
contributions vesting fully, in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in

connection with the borrowing of funds.

Where funds have been borrowed generally, and used for the
purpose of obtaining qualifying assets, a capitalisation rate of
8.77% (2016: 9.32%) has been applied to the expenditure on

the individual assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_Z—+tF+_A=+—HIFE
2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

25 FESTBERYE (#)

POLICIES (Continued)

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed
final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated

financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’'s memorandum and articles of
association grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and

declared.

Foreign currencies

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional
currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary

items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of
a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line
with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value
of the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair
value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss is also recognised in other

comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of
the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their
statements of profit or loss are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component
of other comprehensive income relating to that particular

foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation
and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at

the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates
of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange

rates for the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE_T

3.

—tEFFT-A=+—BLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial
statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities

affected in the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year, are described below.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. Non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists when
the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The
calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is based on
available data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s
length transaction of similar assets or observable market
prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When
value in use calculations are undertaken, management must
estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or
cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in

order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of trade receivables

Management evaluates the reserve for bad debts based on
specific reviews of customer accounts as well as experience
with collection trends in the casino industry and current
economic and business conditions. As customer payment
experience evolves, management will continue to refine the
estimated reserve for bad debts. Accordingly, the associated
provision for doubtful accounts charge may fluctuate. As
individual customer account balances can be significant, the
reserve and the provision can change significantly between
periods, as customer information becomes known or as
changes in a region’s economy or legal systems occur. Further
details are given in note 19 to the consolidated financial

statements.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and residual
values for the Group's property, plant and equipment. This
estimate is based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives and residual values of property, plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions. The Group will
revise the depreciation charge where useful lives and residual
values are different from previous estimates, or it will write-off
or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets
that have been abandoned or sold. The carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment as at 31 December 2017 was
HK$5,468,239,000 (2016: HK$3,058,388,000). Further details

are given in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

Income tax provision

The Group is subject to corporate income tax in the CNMI. As
certain matters relating to income taxes are subject to the
agreement by the local tax bureau, objective estimation and
judgement based on currently enacted tax laws, regulations
and other related policies are required in determining the
provision for income taxes. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts originally
recorded, the differences will impact on the income tax

provisions in the period in which the differences are realised.

3.

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_T—+tH&+-_A=+—HILHFE

B RS HIE R A5t )

CREOELEEEIC Y

R B 5 fR 5k 2 Bl fE

EEEEANEFPREZHTEES  NBYE
WK B 2 1) A8 B A K B TSR I & B IR IR Y
BRFEEETIG  AREPNRERIE
Tt BREESEEEEEERZ AEHFE -
It RERSH 2 AARE BB AT BE 3R KB © (&
MEPREGHABEAN  BETPERH

et EESORAENE LR EE - &8
Bz RE N R R IR AR RS - E—

FHEHIINERE M IEHRKRM 9 -

Y% BMERZEZEHAER
REEEEAEEYE « BER&E GG
AR F B RFIREE - &bt DR EEL
MERINEZME - BRE RZE 2 BRI E
AERFABEBELRIED - SR
RERFAEELELANGTRR - A&
eI mERY IBEEASLELH
ity 38 By S JE 5 IS & B 1 HH SR SR - A=
T—+FE+ZA=1T—H " Y% BEEX
1% 2 BRI {8 4 5,468,239,00078 70 (=T — /<
£ : 3,058,388,0008 7T ) ° # — A IBE R
RE BRI 14 -

sk
AEBEAHMNILFTBEHERMEH - AR
ERFMGEHNE TEEXENRBE RS
FIRIR - MEEMEHEERARERKEE
BARBUE AR R EMARRRELTE
fhET RAE - M FEENRERBERE
MRERCENTHE  IEEERRYER
HIRHEZ SRR EERTE -

H

113

Annual Report 2017 FE#R &



22

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For th

e year ended 31 December 2017

BE-T—tFT-A=ft—AILEE

4.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. REFHER

The Group is principally engaged in the gaming and resort AEEFBENEBYLERNER - B15%
business, including the development of an integrated resort REMEZRESERN - JEHE DUz L E
on the Island of Saipan. Information about reportable B BENBBZERUKREMDEE RN
segment revenue and results, assets and liabilities and other T

segment information is as follows:

2017 2016
—E—tF e ANCS
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FERT THBTT
|
Segment revenue P 6
Revenue from external customers REINBEF M 13,155,608 7,488,979
Segment results DEPELE 1,624,293 1,471,422
Unallocated: NFRHEEA -
Headquarters and corporate expenses BN PEEH (579,181) (381,929)
Bank interest income HRIT A2 UA 1 71
Fair value gain on derivative financial TESMTEAEZAR
instruments BEWE 549 69,594
Gain on extinguishment of BUBEEEMERZ
other borrowings W25 - 12,000
Net exchange losses bE N B HRERR (5,209) (13,566)
Finance costs B 5 E A (165,212) (57,864)
Depreciation and amortisation e K (4,281) (2,925)
Profit before tax from continuing REFECEER
operations B A5 AT v A 870,960 1,096,803
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-_T—+tF+-A=+—HLEFE

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION REDHER (#)
(Continued)
2017 2016
—E2—tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TAETT
|
Segment assets PHEE
Gaming and resort B & E BN 15,428,741 9,401,285
Unallocated: TTSHEIEE -
Unallocated cash and cash equivalents T~ FHEEHEE RREZEY 49,692 44,560
Available-for-sale investments AEHERE 82,464 103,085
Derivative financial asset PTEERMEE 1,010 =
Other unallocated assets B RDBEEEE 79,387 64,173
Total assets BEHE 15,641,294 9,613,103
Segment liabilities PWEE
Gaming and resort 8% ME AT 7,214,742 4,391,096
Unallocated: T ToBIEE -
Derivative financial liabilities PTESRBE 1,033 215
Other borrowings H M &K 1,962,842 644,917
Loans from related parties REREH 2 ER 349,357 1,037,241
Convertible bonds and notes AR ESRERE 46,713 590,018
Unsecured bonds and notes IR ES R 2B 1,753,301 =
Other unallocated liabilities Hit KA LA & 460,341 88,719
Total liabilities BEER 11,788,329 6,752,206

Annual Report 2017 FE#RE 1 1 5
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-Z—tF+-A=1+—HILFE

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. REHIER(B)
(Continued)
Geographical information EDBER
(a) Revenue from external customers (a) REIBEF WKz
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ExT FHIT
|
Island of Saipan EME 13,155,608 7,488,979
The revenue information of continuing operations ERFEL L EB 2 REER TR E
above is based on the locations of the customers. ZERIEH 2R o
(b) Non-current assets (b) FREEE
|
2017 2016
—E—+F —ERF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
|
Island of Saipan EE 5,976,805 3,832,104
Others Hip 26,364 32,401
6,003,169 3,864,505
The non-current asset information of continuing PuiFEEREER 2 IERBEEELR
operations above is based on the location of the assets (TEFEr M HERENELEHBEEE)
and excludes available-for-sale investments and ThiRIEEEEM 25 -

deferred tax assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-_T—+tF+-A=+—HLEFE

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. REFIER (B

(Continued)

Information about major customers EREEEFZEHR

During the year, revenue from gaming operations of FANEEEIWNZRA2,181,863,000/8 T3 &
approximately HK$2,181,863,000 was derived from a single —REBE—HINEEE -

external customer.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, no revenue HEZZT—"FTA=+T—HLEFE I
generated from a single external customer amounted to 10% mEAMAEERKE 10%HIA FRE E—
or more of the Group's total revenue. INEPRFE 2 s o

GROSS REVENUE 5. #l=

The Group's gross revenue from continuing operations is as REBRBFHELEER 2 BWRIT
follows:

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E—RF

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FHR FHT
I

VIP gaming operations BEEBEER 12,728,872 7,130,167

Mass gaming operations RSB E 302,665 261,880

Slot machines and Electronic ATERETREA

Table Game gaming operations BRERES 66,861 57,294

Food and beverages Z8R 57,210 39,638

13,155,608 7,488,979

Annual Report 2017 FE#RE 1 1 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-Z—tF+-A=1+—HILFE

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX FROM CONTINUING 6. REFHESEXBBRBARR
OPERATIONS
The Group's profit before tax from continuing operations is AR B TSR B AT s A B 3
arrived at after charging/(crediting): B GEA)AT&IA :
2017 2016
—E—tHF AN
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BiteE FTHERT FAT
|
Cost of inventories sold* EHEFE/MA* 27,685 18,521
Business gross revenue tax ("BGRT")* ‘& 48Uk z5 %7 * 637,473 372,784
Depreciation e 14 139,741 105,476
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TAf T A & FRIR
payments 5y 15 7,946 6,833
Casino licence fees* IREEIS R IR 116,909 116,438
Auditor’s remuneration 1% 5B 2 B 12,000 8,700
Minimum lease payments under BELEHE s HEHE
operating leases HRIA 133,466 123,050
Employee benefits expenses EEREAMFX
(including directors’ remuneration) (BREESHM)
Wages and salaries*** ) DNE s 641,669 521,528
Pension scheme contributions RN FT SR 2,441 3,062
644,110 524,590

H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-_T—+tF+-A=+—HLEFE

PROFIT BEFORE TAX FROM CONTINUING 6. REFERKLEKRBANGH (&)
OPERATIONS (Continued)

2017 2016
—E—+tF e ANCS
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
F5E FHET FATT
|
Foreign exchange differences, net BB i ==F - JHZR 4,155 18,672
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of HEE - BENEEIER
property, plant and equipment** E518,(Ygzs) *+ 25,876 39)
Impairment losses recognised for EREWE SRR 2
trade receivables, net WEEE TR 4,185,431 847,114
Impairment of available-for-sale AHEEREZ
investments** LB ** 17 33,589 -
Fair value loss on available-for-sale Al EREH]
investments (transfer from NI EEEE
equity on disposal)** (BHERAREA) * 17 266 53,302
Fair value gain on derivative financial $T£& R TEZ ARXBE
instruments, net** Wizs - FHER 26 (549) (69,594)
Dividend income from REAHEERER
available-for-sale investments** fi% BUR A ** (14) (172)
Bank interest income** HRITHIBA > (2) 99)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries** k=Nl 32 (11,966) (19,970)
Gain on extinguishment of other BUBEZEEMERZ
borrowings** W28 ** - (12,000)

* FtAGRE RS R EM IR ER 2 [HEKA]

Included in “Cost of sales” on the face of the consolidated

statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. A e
= Included in "Other income, gains and losses, net” on the face of e STAGEBRELREMEmRERZ [FEMK
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other A W REE] A -
comprehensive income.
**%  Staff costs of HK$121,975,000 (2016: HK$147,997,000) included in ko S AEXZ B TAN121,975000/8 (=%
the above were capitalised under property, plant and equipment. — 74 147,997,000 7T) IR - BE &
REETERE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-Z—tF+-A=1+—HILFE

7.

FINANCE COSTS 7. MBER
An analysis of finance costs from continuing operations is as REFBEEEB 2YBERLWMOT ¢
follows:
2017 2016
—E—tF =S ANCS
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt = FET T4
|
Interest on other borrowings and RE @ 2 EMmER R
loans from related parties ERZFE 137,114 79,084
Interest on convertible bonds and AR E S N 25 2 A 8
notes 26 22,643 56,376
Interest on unsecured bonds
and notes EIEHEFRREZNE 120,270 =
280,027 135,460
Less: Interest capitalised* B BRI B (114,815) (77,596)
165,212 57,864
* The borrowing costs have been capitalised at the weighted average * HE_ZT—+F+-A=+—HIEFE ' &KX
rate of 8.77% for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: 9.32%). AL NEFE T E8TI% B A EA(ZF

—NEF 1 9.32%) ©

H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f)
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of

Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-_T—+tF+-A=+—HLEFE

EEHM

REBRZAES EMANT LEHRUD - F
A BEBI 2 383(1)(@) ~ (b) * (o) & (A IRA K
NRE(REBEESNRER) ROIFE 28 KEN
AEFEEHFMMT

Fees ke

Hip <

Other emoluments:

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind  Zr& ~ ZEL R BRI

VAR 1 A BT 2 R SX

Share-based payments

Pension scheme contributions RN T BN

During the year ended 31 December 2015 and 2017, certain
directors were granted share options, in respect of their
services to the Group, under the share option scheme of the
Company, further details of which are set out in note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements. The fair value of such
options, which has been recognised in profit or loss over the
vesting period, was determined as at the date of grant and
the amount included in the consolidated financial statements
for the current year is included in the above directors’

remuneration disclosures.

2017 2016

S S
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHT
6,580 6,678
7,063 108
2,190 1,162

156 =

9,409 1,270
15,989 7,948

HE_ZT—AFE=T—+tF+H=1—
HIEFE ATEEHERAERREANR
BRI AR AR B IR ST S AR -
— D BENRE M SRR 30 - 25
RENAABEEESRE RN ®
R IRETHRERE - MERFELE IS
MERPEROSBEREL LMESFHM 2 &

=,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-Z—tF+-A=1+—HILFE

8. DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION (Continued) 8. EEHM&E)
(a) Independent non-executive directors () BIAFHITES
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits  Share-based scheme Total
Fees inkind  payments contributions remuneration
Fe 2 NROGRER Bihe
we REMIE 2AREX HE i3 BEm
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FhER FER FER FER FER
|
2017 8-t
Ng Hoi Yue =5y 180 15 6 - 201
Tso Hon Sai Bosco TER 180 15 6 - 201
Lee Kwok Leung ZHR 180 15 6 - 201
Eugene Raymond Sullivan* Eugene Raymond Sullivan* - - - - -
Robert James Woolsey Robert James Woolsey 79 65 28 - 872
1,319 110 46 - 1,475
2016 “ERF
Ng Hoi Yue BET 180 3% = = 216
Tso Hon Sai Bosco TER 180 36 - - 216
Lee Kwok Leung ZER 180 36 - - 216
Eugene Raymond Sullivan* Eugene Raymond Sullivan* 852 - - - 852
Robert James Woolsey (appointed on  Robert James Woolsey
16 May 2016) (R=E-~ERATAA
BZ{E) 486 - - - 486
1878 108 - - 1,986
(b) Non-executive director (b) FHBITEE
|
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits  Share-based scheme Total
Fees inkind  payments contributions remuneration
Hé 28 DRORER Bihe
we REMIE 2fREX SHEME By
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER THER TER TER
Eugene Raymond Sullivan* Eugene Raymond Sullivan* 461 - 158 - 619
* Mr. Eugene Raymond Sullivan was redesignated as a non- *  Eugene Raymond Sullivan EER =T —+
executive director on 6 January 2017 and resigned as non- FARNBERERIENTES BN
executive director on 15 June 2017. T—+FNA+THBBEENITES -
1 2 2 Imperial Pacific International Holdings Limited &% X ¥ BB ER B R A A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—tF+_A=+—HIFE

8. DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION (Continued) 8. EEHM®
(c) Executive directors (c) HITEE
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits  Share-based scheme Total
Fees inkind ~ payments contributions remuneration
¢ 28 ARDAER Bihe
wE REWAE 2AREx HEEX b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FhER FER FER FER FER
______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________|
2017 —E-tF
Cai Lingli 2EE 2,400 - 698 - 3,098
Xia Yuki Yu Xia Yuki Yu 2,400 - 698 50 3,148
Teng Sio | (appointed on 18 April 2017) T & (R=ZF—+EMA+/\H
. $3:9) - 6,953 590 106 7,649
Cui Li Jie (appointed on 4 May 2017)  EBA(R=Z—+tERANA
- £3:9) - - - - -
4,800 6,953 1,986 156 13,895
2016 ZERE
Cai Lingli “8E 2,400 - 581 - 2,981
Xia Yuki Yu Xia Yuki Yu 2,400 - 581 - 2,981
4,800 - 1162 - 5,962

There was no arrangement under which a director

FR BEEZTATAREXRE

waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the MEEMFMz ZH(ZF—RF -
year (2016: Nil). /) o
Annual Report 2017 FE#R & 1 2 3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-Z—tF+-A=1+—HILFE

9.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. BEIEEReFEE

The five highest paid employees during the year included a FAN BLEHZaFHNEERE—®B(Z
director (2016: Nil), details of whose remuneration are set out T—RF EEE ZBESTHFEBR
in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of EXHiEE8 e A - BIMNUZ(ZF—/RF -
the remaining four (2016: five) highest paid employees who AR)xm i MIERRREZEEE S NE BN
are not a director of the Company are as follows: BT

2017 2016
—E—tF S ANCS
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT T4
|
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind  #4% - 2B R EWFHZ= 53,338 61,268
Pension scheme contributions BRIREETEIE R 18 19
Share-based payments VARGt R ERE 2 AR 3,636 68
56,992 61,355
The number of non-director highest paid employees whose HMEN THEANNIEESESHFRENA
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: HT

Number of employees

REAR

2017 2016
S e

L |
HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000 6,000,001 # 7T & 6,500,000 8 7T - 1
HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000 7,000,001 7 7T & 7,500,000 78 7T - 1
HK$7,500,001 to HK$8,000,000 7,500,001 % 7T Z 8,000,000 7T 1 1
HK$8,000,001 to HK$8,500,000 8,000,001 % 7T Z 8,500,000 /& 7T 1 -
HK$9,000,001 to HK$9,500,000 9,000,001 7 7T £ 9,500,000/ 7T 1 =
HK$16,500,001 to HK$17,000,000 16,500,001 7 7T 2 17,000,000 7 7T - 1
HK$23,000,001 to HK$23,500,000 23,000,001 /& 7T % 23,500,000 /& 7T - 1
HK$31,000,001 to HK$31,500,000 31,000,001 78 7T = 31,500,000 7T 1 -
4 5

H
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSES

ohH
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-_T—+tF+-A=+—HLEFE

10. FIEHRAX

HRASBENFALBERBELTMRR
B (ZF—RF : &) RALEREFEF
SRELERE AFEZAEHREGRERIL
S AE Sl = PN EE 3 E
ZHEHR DREEE_ZFT—LtFR-F
—ANFT A=t BULEFEZERB G
WERRETE

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the
Group did not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong during the year (2016: Nil). Income tax provision for the
current year represents income tax on casino operations for
the subsidiaries operating in the CNMI, which is calculated at
the applicable tax rates on the taxable profits for the years
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

2017 2016

ZE—tF A

Note HK$'000 HK$'000

LiEsg FERT T
|

Current tax expenses ENEAT TR 7 &2 712,485 185,300

Deferred tax credit EETH AR R 28 (478,998) (24,390)

Total tax charge for the year FARIBFR X AR 233,487 160,910

P VNCINE SN B PG R
OB TE B RIZRR B A e A 5T B 2 B IR R 37 R
REERREFE AR A - UK

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before
tax at the statutory rate for the jurisdiction in which the
Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to
the tax expense at the effective tax rate, and a reconciliation
of the applicable rate (i.e., the statutory tax rate) to the T
effective tax rate, are as follows:

2017 2016
—ZT—tfF ZT—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
|
Profit before tax from continuing REFELEED
operations Rt AL A1 870,960 1,096,803
Tax at the statutory tax rate BEEMEGTE 2B 360,425 394,634
Income not subject to tax BANT WA (2,439) (16,875)
Expenses not deductible for tax PRI 2 B2 1,496,867 327,700
Tax losses not recognised RERZHIBEGE 26,419 62,623
Temporary differences recognised EHREREER (494,586) (24,390)
Effect on opening deferred tax resulting it R EB) ¥ BVE LT IE 2 2 &
from a change in tax rate 15,588 —
Statutory tax concessions EERBES (1,168,787) (582,782)
Tax charge at the Group's effective rate I AEBERHRAHE 2 HBER S 233,487 160,910
Annual Report 2017 FE#RE 1 2 5
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-Z—tF+-A=1+—HILFE

10.

INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued)

The Covenant of the CNMI provides for the imposition of the
Internal Revenue Code of the United States as the local
income tax. CNMI legislation provides for income tax rebates
with descending graduated percentages ranging from 90% to
50% on local income tax on CNMI source income. The CNMI
also imposes graduated (1.5% to 5%) BGRT. For casino
gaming revenue, the rebate offset amount shall be 100% of
the income tax imposed on net gaming revenue taxable
income up to United States Dollars (“US$") 15 million. For
casino net gaming taxable income in excess of US$15 million,
the rebate offset amount ranges from 90% to 50% of the

income tax imposed.

The legislation requires the payment of corporate income tax
on CNMI source income only to the extent the pre-rebate
income tax exceeds BGRT. The Group records its income tax
expenses net of the aforementioned BGRT credit, gaming

rebate and income tax rebate.

On December 22, 2017, the U.S. Tax Act (the “Tax Act”) was
signed into law by the U.S. President. The Tax Act significantly
revised the U.S. corporate income tax laws by, among other
things, lowering the U.S. corporate tax rate from a top rate of
35% to a flat rate of 21% effective from 1 January 2018, while
also repealing the deduction for domestic production
activities, implementing a territorial tax system and imposing
a transition tax on deemed repatriated earnings of foreign
subsidiaries (“U.S. Tax Reform”). As a result of the Tax Act,
the Group had recorded tax charge due to a remeasurement
of deferred tax assets and a tax charge on deemed
repatriation of deferred foreign income for the year ended 31
December 2017 (if any). Both the tax benefit and the tax
charge represent provisional amounts and the Group’s
current best estimates. The amounts incorporate assumptions
made based upon the Group's current interpretation of the
Tax Act and may change as the Group receives additional
clarification and implementation guidance from the tax

authorities.

10.

Fr8HiR< (@)

It EEMNRIEREEmEBEEABRET
AERZHAIFN - ILFETHEPIRE -
PRSBUR B AR B 55 B 55 A SRR M A BRI
Z B TS T B 90% IR = 50% 2 A 7t AT
B EF BRI (B 1.5% R = 5%)
LREWHET - MBRIREM S - BT H
ERA/NBERERRBBAFE (LR
#%15,000,000 3% 7T ) B4 2 FT 1542 2 100% °
548 38 15,000,000 35 7T 1O #E 15 1E % M 22 FE AR
BUWAFEEME - BRREHES BN TR
PS5t 2 90% %= 50% °

ZOEBIRE - EERBATAGHERE X2
Wt 2 15 T 77 AL 55 B 35 A RIRIA
BN EMMER - NEBEMREZAEHFE
XEMR bl el atiiie RO
RS BURR

R-ZB—+F+-_A=-+=0  =RE5H%
EXEBBER([BEER] BXAZED -
M ERAERMPEMESRIEEIT AR
B HRBEEERCEREAIISBFHEE
21% BZE—N\F—A—BRBER B
IEUERADBANEEES - BEiEEHRH &
HHNBT BB A B RIAR (BB IR B A UGB
(ZEBHK]) - BB EREME - AEER
HE_Z—tF+-_A=t+—HLEFERE
Mt EREHIEEEMSSHRES L » Wit
RAEBREEIRINRASEF R IE S H (1
B) BBERERTEILAANEERR
EMGNEEERE - AESBIRIBER
SEBRHBEERNZ2EMELORE
WA AR EEUS TR EHANREINGE
EHeigs|mA & -

2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

DISCONTINUED OPERATION

On 29 March 2016, the Company entered into an agreement
with an independent third party to dispose of Supreme Wit
Limited and its subsidiary (the “Disposal”) for a consideration
of HK$2,000,000. The discontinued operation was engaged in
the processing and trading of food products which mainly
include frozen and functional food products. The Group has
decided to cease its food processing and trading business
and focus its resources on the gaming and resort business.
The disposal of the discontinued operation was completed
on 26 May 2016. With the Disposal being classified as a
discontinued operation, the food processing and trading
business was no longer included in the note for operating

segment information.

The results of the discontinued operation for the year ended

31 December 2016 are presented below:

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-Z—+tHF+=-A=1+—HILEFE

1. BRIEER

RZZE—RF=ZAZTNAH ARRE—-F
B % =75 s R {8 2,000,000 7T (1 £
FERARREMEAR (HESEHE] L
HE -  EREEBRERR(ZEBELR
ket Rm) MIREHER - REBR
ETBRERMNIEESEY  YETRE
REBELERNES - HEEKRIEEHE
R-ZE—RFRA-+TRBATK BELE
FEDBER-BECDKRILEESE  REMIKE
BEBTBIALED WBERME -

ERIEEBRBE-_T—AF+_A=1+—
RIEFEZREZ510T

2016

—TREF

HK$'000

T
I —

Revenue Weas =

Cost of sales SHE R -

Other income and losses, net FEA AR EE =

Expenses sz (318)

Loss for the year from the discontinued operation 24 1 & F A E18 (318)

DIVIDENDS

No dividends have been paid or declared by the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

12. RE

AABMBERNXERBEE_T—EF+=
A=1t—HLEFEZBRE(ZF—XRF : §)-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-Z—tF+-A=1+—HILFE

13. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 13. ARG B EAELERERN (&

TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY B)

The calculation of the basic earnings/(loss) per share amounts BERRERREF, (EE) &5 IR B AR 5l
is based on the profit for the year attributable to owners of A A FE L F 5 ) 637,473,0007% 70 ( ==
the Company of HK$637,473,000 (2016: HK$935,575,000), and — 734 £ 935,575,000 7T) © LARFRNE
the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 77 R N #E 39 £0142,977,501,742 (% (=
142,977,501,742 (2016: 140,864,589,099) in issue during the T —X4F 1 140,864,589,099 i% ) 51 & -

year.

The calculations of the diluted earnings per share amount for B Z—tFER_F—RFt+_-_A=1+—
the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 are based on the BIEFEz BRESRNSEDRERAF]
profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company, BEEAEBEFREMNFTE » WIEHARNR
adjusted to reflect the effect of the deemed exercise of or BRET A B EE R DR BTk IRk T B
conversion of all dilutive potential shares into ordinary shares. f% o FEETERFFTER A 2 E @Ak i F 1 & an
The weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the Rt EERERZRFARA L FREBEITE
calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue during BREE - AR ABITEN LIRS BEH
the year, as used in the basic earnings per share calculation, BEBR AT RARERBRRDEERITZER
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares A% AN#EE 5 EY o

assumed to have been issued at no consideration on the
deemed exercise or conversion of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

No adjustment has been made to the basic loss from a A M AR 7T (E BB AR B2 R A AR 2 15 5 BT 271
discontinued operation per share amount presented for the ZERAENSEcEAGREETZE  HE
year ended 31 December 2016 in respect of a dilution as the E-FE—RF+-_A=1+—HItFEME7
impact of the outstanding share options and convertible ZREERIEHFBEEREAREHIESBWER
notes had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss per share HEELAE -

amount presented.

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share GRREARREERT(EBI8) JHIR T 5& 1|
are based on: SHEE

2017 2016
—E—+tF —FRF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHBT
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________|
Earnings Z7
Profit/(loss) attributable to owners of BARFTESRERNEERF
the Company, used in the basic and P /NCIESF S DN
diluted earnings per share calculation: &,/ (&5#8) :
From continuing operations LSRG 637,473 935,893
From a discontinued operation RE—HERIEED - (318)
637,473 935,575

H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

13. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-_T—+tF+-A=+—HLEFE

13. ZARBARKAEANEGEBRERN (B
)@

Number of shares

B2 E
2017 2016
S S
‘000 ‘000
T T

Shares &)

Weighted average number of ordinary ~ IRt EFIEARZF|
shares in issue during the year used in ZFNBEETEBR
the basic earnings per share calculation #1525

Effect of dilution — weighted average BESE S/ am AL g

number of ordinary shares: g
Share options RE AR

QRGeS ACIED)

Convertible notes (note)

Weighted average number of ordinary ~ ARFTEERE S &
shares in issue during the year used in ZFRNBEBITERR
INHE T 15 85

the diluted earnings per share

calculation

Note: The impact of the convertible notes issued on 19 March 2014 had a
dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share amounts presented
for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016. CN 2015 (as
defined in note 26) and CB 2017 (as defined in note 26) had no
dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share amounts presented
as the exercise prices of CN 2015 and CB 2017 were higher than
the average market price of the ordinary shares of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2017. CN 2015 had no dilutive
effect on the basic earnings per share amounts presented as the
exercise price of CN 2015 was higher than the average market price
of the ordinary shares of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2016.

142,977,502 140,864,589

208,451 293,627
128,000,000 128,000,000
271,185,953 269,158,216

Mz : RZZE—MFE=R TN BBETZAREREERSE

HE-T—+tFR-T—"F+=-A=+—H
WEFEM25 s BRERBTSEELETY
2. T —AFIHRRERE(EE R E26)
EZZF—tFraaRESF(EE LK E26) 8
23z BRERRNCEVTEEEBETY
& PHR - T AFBRBREEER-T—+
FARBESFZTEESREE_2—+tF
T A=+ HLEFEARRRLBERZ FHM
BTN - —Z—AF A RRERYMENNZE
BREABFCETEELHELE VAR
T-AFREREEZITEERREBEE=Z
—RNE+ZA=+—ALFEARRLBEB
FITEATER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-Z—tF+-A=1+—HILFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. W% BERRE
Leasehold
land classified Gaming Computer
as finance Motor Leasehold  machinesand ~ Furnitureand  hardwareand  Construction
leases Buildings Yachts vehicles  improvements equipment equipment software in progress Total
AELH
28R 27 & Hi
BEER | =3 i RE BRES e Rk Rt ERIE #it

Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
it TR TR TR TR TERL TEL TR T T TR
. ____________________________________________________________________________________________|

Cost BA

At1 January 2016 RZE-AF-A-H 10347 39303 12726 1272 50,163 64,184 2983 23503 460,158 797,094
Additions AE = 1,566 9217 219 17925 254 25763 10644 2221516 2381377
Transfer 5 - - - - 18,269 - L} - (18.329) -
Disposals HE - - - - (250) - - B - (250)
Exchange differences Exz® - (0] = (W} 49) 151 33 U] (409) (365)

At 31 Decernber 2016 and 1 January 2017

A=R-RETZA=+-BR

“T-t5-f-R 10,347 40,868 172,003 34,849 86,058 86,882 49,773 34,140 2,662,936 3,177,856
Additions BE - 2,94 1,148 11,123 1217 88,860 5,108 11,181 2,441,461 2,562,398
Transfer s - 2,149,811 - - - - 48,018 - (2,197,829) -
Disposals 1E - - - - (34,363) (3,862) (3,742) (2,550) - (44,517)
Exchange differences EXZE 80 2910 - 27 4 724 754 334 8814 14,380
At31 December 2017 RZF-t£+ZR=1-H 10,427 2,195,883 173151 46,259 53,389 172,604 99911 43,105 2,915,388 5710117
Accumulated depreciation RiHE
At1 January 2016 RZE-7"5-A-A = - 409 1073 1,385 385 1,180 2,770 - 14260
Charge for the year Bl 6 20 858 15822 5714 18711 43788 9,082 1231 - 105476
Disposals HiE = = = = 39 - - - = (39
Exchange differences EizE - - - Ul 23 ) (107 69 - 231

At31 December 016 and 1 January 017 W=F-~ETZA=T-HR

—F-+£-A-H 210 858 19,851 6,780 20,094 47,584 10,155 13,936 - 119,468
Charge for the year FRAR 6 206 24,19 17,91 8,195 13,722 39,206 2149 14,253 - 139,741
Disposals i - - - - (12,551) (2,829) (1,570) (1,691) - (18,641)
Exchange differences ERZE 1 58 - 69 3 463 352 274 - 1,310
At31 December 2017 RZF-t£+ZR=1-H 47 25,635 KIALY] 15,044 21,358 84,424 31,086 26,172 - 241,878
Carrying amount Raf
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+E+-A=1-A 10,010 2,170,248 136,009 31,215 32,031 88,180 68,825 16,333 2,915,388 5,468,239
At 31 December 2016 RZE-AE+-A=t+-A 10137 40,010 152,152 28,069 65,964 39,29 39618 20,204 2662,9% 3,058,388

H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—_ZT—+F+_A=+—HIFE

15. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 15. AL BEERIE

2017 2016
—E—tF A
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
=2 FHET T T
|
Carrying amount at 1 January R—RA—BZEEE 216,906 111,455
Additions during the year FRRE 73,923 133,080
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHTE A F 32 (98,640) (20,990)
Amortisation provided FAHREEH
during the year (7,946) (6,833)
Exchange differences [ H =58 2,250 194
Carrying amount at 31 December W+ —-A=+—HZEHEE 186,493 216,906
Less: current portion B RENE S (4,526) (4,115)
Non-current portion FERBE D 181,967 212,791

16. ENRIE - RERHMEKFRE

16. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES
|
2017 2016
ZE—tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
|
Rental and other deposits He hEMigs 165,018 158,369
Prepaid casino licence fees T IREE IS B R E 185,583 187,597
Prepayment for acquisition of BEIFRMEE ZTENFIE
non-current assets 129,558 282,188
Prepayments and other receivables (note) A1 7038 K A g W k8 (F5E) 76,834 135,948
556,993 764,102
Less: Current portion W REE S (204,030) (170,776)
Non-current portion JERENE D 352,963 593,326
Note: Included in prepayments and other receivables is an amount of PHE  FEASTARIE K EL A U R IR B 45 R WOR Bk EE M T

RERAR(TBEREMN] - RAQFIEBRBEERD
B E: 5 Wu Pei Tzux £ ([WuZ £ ]) 89 2.5
Wu Li Wen 4 (TWuk 4k |) A% AR EE)
XA 3,032,000 7 7T (= ZF —754F : 3,032,000 %
L) e BEREAEEE  REREETEE

R o

HK$3,032,000 (2016: HK$3,032,000) due from Worldwide Asia
Engineering Limited (“WWA"), a company in which Mr. Wu Li Wen
(“Mr. Wu"), a sibling of Ms. Wu Pei Tzu (“Ms. Wu") who is a related
party of the Company'’s controlling shareholder, is a director. The
amount is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed terms of

H

repayment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-Z—tF+-A=1+—HILFE

17.

18.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

17. JHEERE

2017 2016

S S
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHBT

Listed equity investments, at fair value

The above investments consist of investments in listed equity
securities which were designated as available-for-sale financial

assets and have no fixed maturity date or coupon rate.

During the year, a gross loss in respect of the Group’s
available-for-sale investments recognised in other
comprehensive income amounted to HK$19,253,000 (2016:
HK$32,107,000), of which HK$266,000 (2016: HK$53,302,000)
was reclassified from other comprehensive income to profit or

loss for the year upon disposal.

There was a significant decline in the market value of a listed
equity investment during the year. The Directors consider that
such a decline indicates that the listed equity investment has
been impaired and an impairment loss of HK$33,589,000
(2016: Nil), which was previously recognised in other
comprehensive income, was reclassified to profit or loss

during the year.

The market value of the Group’s listed equity investments at
the date of approval of these consolidated financial

statements was approximately HK$72,657,000.

BonBEINR EMERARE

82,464 103,085

R REEREEEATHLESRAE
A B 4 L 51 R B SRR 2 A
BHRE -

FRN - REMEEARARERZ ANEE AT
EREFHIB LT A19253008 (=T
— 754 132,107,000 7T ) + H 5 266,000 7%
JE (= —754F : 53,302,000 7T) R &4
HEMEABAETDBEEFANEBE -

FA ETRARETEKRE K - EFR
A BRTHRBR EMBRAKREDRE - M
ERNEMEEE AR ZRERSR
33,589,000/ 8T (—F—RF: E)RFRE
Mo ERR -

AEBRZEHREMEHRERIEB BN EH
f& AR B T {E4) 472,657,000 7T ©

INVENTORIES . B8
|
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT THET
Carrying amount as at 31 December RTZA=+—HBZKEE 25,768 6,786

132
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—tF+_A=+—HIFE

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES 19. BIWE SR

The Group's trading terms with customers are mainly on REFEEF R GIGERTEHBEERR -
credit. The credit term is generally 30 days for gaming BREBEEHR—MKAEIH - FEEFH
operations. Each customer has a maximum credit limit. For REREEERE - IRF—RABLMAK
new customers, payment in advance or certain form of IR EE TR ZFRE o NEBEE S BRISIE
guarantee is normally required. The Group seeks to maintain IR UgE 2 FERFIE - B8 E F Hite st 2
strict control over its outstanding receivables. Overdue BRI e RIFEHR @ AEBERERAEE &
balances are reviewed regularly by the management. At the AEPERAARRD 2 EAESE FEE&ER
end of the reporting period, the Group has certain [E\fs - ﬁ%\]{ﬁz}&’%.réu&zfﬁ%%%\28%(:
concentration of credit risk as 8% (2016: 12%) and 23% (2016: T — NF12%) R23%(ZF — XN F:
33%) of the Group's trade receivables were due from the 33%) ° EWE ZERFRATELE ©

Group's largest customer and the five largest customers,

respectively. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of trade receivables as at the end of the REFEHR - BB SRERIREEEEE
reporting period, based on the program end dates, is as HZ BRI -
follows:

2017 2016
—E—tF e ANCS
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET T
I
Within 1 month —fEARA 1,528,190 1,470,801
More than 1 month but within 3 months ZR—{@EABEBE={EA R 1,785,687 1,108,291
More than 3 months but within 6 months  Z R =1{& A{E/5E A A 2,343,635 1,034,406
More than 6 months but within 1 year ZRNEAE—FRN 5,213,536 2,168,800
More than 1 year LR —F 2,407,012 98,790
13,278,060 5,881,088
Impairment VENIE] (4,747,037) (547,184)
8,531,023 5,333,904
As at 31 December 2017, the Group had received guarantee RZZE—+F+-_A=1+—H AEEBK
deposits of HK$1,881,315,000 (2016: HK$2,050,338,000) (note IREETEP /ERAZRZFERS
22(a)) from certain players/guarantors which can be used to 1,881,315000% 7T( = T — X F:
offset against certain of the above trade receivables in an 2,050,338,00078 7T ) (Mf5E22(a)) » i A& E
aggregate amount of approximately HK$1,649,411,000 (2016: RNEEEBEXBBET RS TSR P WE
HK$1,931,203,000) due from certain casino players in the WEHER2ET L ERE SRR - BIEH
event that the Group cannot recover the trade receivable RERSITAREHELERFER ZEAE
amounts from these players in the normal course of its W& 5 BR R AEFH A0 1,649,411,0008 T (=&
business. — 7~ £ 1,931,203,0008 7T)

H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_Z—t+F+_A=+—HIFE

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

19. BRE SR (&

The movements in provision for impairment of trade %H&fﬁ%ﬁﬁmZdﬁﬂE}%ﬁ@@]ﬁﬂT :
receivables are as follows:
2017 2016
—E—+F T—RF
HK$’'000 HK$ 000
FERT T
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________|
At beginning of year F7) 547,184
Impairment losses recognised EHER O IBERE 4,460,738 847,114
Impairment losses reversed B EREEE (275,307) -
Exchange differences HE 5 =5 14,422 -
Uncollectible amounts written off GG =R I - (299,930)
At end of year FER 4,747,037 547,184

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade
receivables is a provision for individually impaired trade
receivables of HK$4,747,037,000 (2016: HK$547,184,000) with
a carrying amount before provision of HK$10,982,381,000
(2016: HK$2,024,552,000).

The individually impaired trade receivables relate to
customers which management considered that either none or
only a portion of the receivables is expected to be recovered.

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables that are not
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as
follows:

LAl E SRR 2R E e E R
BB JE W E 5 BR 3k B 8 4,747,037,0007%8 JT
(== —7X4 : 547,184,000 1) * BERT 2
BRTEI {8 5 10,982,381,000 78 7T (= T — /< £
2,024,552,0003 7 ) ©

ERIR ERE Y E 7R R E TR ER R TEHY
ERIEF BJEHSZMIET%W@Z%?%% °

I B R sk SR 8818 R (E < R E SRR 2
FRERDATEAT

Neither past due nor impaired B AR 80 B R AR B
Less than 1 month past due DR —1E A 2

1 to 3 months past due —Z =& A2

4 to 6 months past due Py Z= 75 fE A 2 ER

7 months to 1 year past due &A= —F 25
More than 1 year past due —F1&EH

2017 2016
—E—+F ZE—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT T
839,872 1,431,227

- 415,476

33,991 591,487
138,928 372,949
458,100 1,045,397
824,788 -
2,295,679 3,856,536

H
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20.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to
a large number of diversified customers for whom there was

no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of individual customers who have either a good track
record with the Group or the outstanding amounts are
secured with guarantee deposits. Based on past experience,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that no
provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in credit

quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.

RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSIT AND CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

19.

20.

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-Z—+tHF+=-A=1+—HILEFE

FEWE 5 BRK (40)
BEARBEATRARIRE 2 FE MR IR B2 A 8 3 5
HIR ARk TREFER -

E@MERERE  BUKRES TRAEH
A R EBREIAREERBIAREES(E
Bz @EREFER REBELR AR
REERR ANGEEERIESEAESH
BFIDBAR R R BB E - B F 8RR E
AfEHRER R -

EREBTEIARRERAESE
K7

Re RIRTTER
EHIFR

Cash and bank balances

Time deposits

Less: Restricted bank deposit (note)

Note: As at 31 December 2016, HK$11,624,000 was restricted for use to
secure the lease of a property on the Island of Saipan in lieu of a
rental deposit.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. The bank balances and restricted bank
deposit are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent

history of default.

SR HIERTT IR (BRE)

2017 2016
—F—tE T AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHT
284,520 93,945

- 11,624

284,520 105,569

- (11,624)

284,520 93,945

Mz : RZZT—R"F+=ZA=+—H ' 11,624,000
TR ERSRe AEFREENE —8Y
FMPER ©

RITIME HRBRITEFRRITEARME 2T
BRI EREMDAME - RITHEBRIZRHRITHE
RERP A RIFHE A B B S\ R A5 RAD
SXEVIRTT -

135
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-Z—tF+-A=1+—HILFE

21.

22.

TRADE PAYABLES 21. EREZBRX
An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the RBEHAR  BNEFRFIREZEHZER
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: O
2017 2016
ZE—tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TAETT
|
Within 1 month — @A 13,993 7,774
More than 1 month but within 3 months  ZR—{E BB =@ KN 22,866 4,665
More than 3 months but within 6 months  Z R =1{#& BB /<@ B & 24,424 3,986
More than 6 months but within 1 year ZRNEAE—FR 14,355 2,208
More than 1 year ZH—F 2,985 3,428
78,623 22,061
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and have no JENE SRR AR B MERETFEEIEN -

fixed terms of repayment.

ACCRUALS, OTHER PAYABLES AND DEPOSITS 22. fExtZE - EMENZER D WiR

RECEIVED &

|

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E—REF

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000

B 5T TExT TFETT
|

Deposits received BYIRES () 4,136,214 2,884,836

Outstanding chips liabilities KEBEEARE 259,276 183,254

Accrued commission et e 244,901 144,644

BGRT payable e E AR R TR 201,557 33,456

Construction related payables FE R A 1,075,010 664,961

CN 2015 payable BN T —hFAHRKRERE 26 123,400 =

Others payables and accruals L th FE T 5RIB R IERT IR (b) 891,327 382,409

6,931,685 4,293,560

H
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23.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ACCRUALS, OTHER PAYABLES AND DEPOSITS 22.
RECEIVED (Continued)

Notes:

(a) As at 31 December 2017, included in the Group's deposits received
were deposits of HK$1,881,315,000 (2016: HK$2,050,338,000) from
certain players/guarantors who have guaranteed the repayment of
the trade receivables due from certain of the Group’s casino
players (the “Guarantee”). In the opinion of the Directors, based
on independent legal advice, the Group has the enforceable right
to set off the deposits against any irrecoverable trade receivables
due from these casino players under the Guarantee.

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-_T—+tF+-A=+—HLEFE

FEETRE - HEARERE IR
T(#)
GEE

@ RKR-E—+F+-A=+—8 XBETEHE
E/ERAREEETAEEHEEFER L
FEUE 5 BR FRAE H 5 1R 2 2 4 1,881,315,000
770 (= Z — 7N 4 ¢ 2,050,338,000% 75 ) ([ 8
RDEFAAREEZERIZEN - EFRA -
REBEBIARER - AEBEA R 1TH#
gt SRS MEERB TZEREREER
Z AR Uk Bl U E SR o

(b)  As at 31 December 2017, included in the amount was interest b) R-BE—+F+-_A=+—8H ZFEBHEE
payable of HK$105,973,000 (2016: HK$35,247,000) to related 5 BB 5 2 JE 4 F2.105,973,0003 T (= F
parties. — N4 35,247,000 7T) °

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 23. fTEemIT A

|

2017 2016
s NG
Asset Liabilities Asset Liabilities
BE = BE afE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TER THT TAT
|
Derivative financial instruments in HRRESREERAE
relation to convertible bonds and fTESMTHE
notes 1,010 1,033 - 215
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-Z—tF+-A=1+—HILFE

24. LOANS FROM RELATED PARTIES 24. REBABSE 2ER
At the end of the reporting period, the maturity profile of REEER - REBE A 2 EREIHB T
loans from related parties based on the scheduled repayment BIFRA TN E R T E T 22 5K B B
dates set out in the loan agreements is as follows: TE
2017 2016
—E—+tF —ERE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
|
Within 1 year or on demand —F A EEK 197,593 1,037,241
After 1 year but within 2 years —FIRBEMFA 151,764 -
349,357 1,037,241
Except for certain loan amount of HK$169,006,000 (2016: BrE T A 20169,006,0008 L (ZF — R4 :
HK$40,241,000) that is interest-free, all loans from related 40,241,000/ 70) 2 R B EFIN - FTB R A
parties are unsecured, interest-bearing at 7.5%-8% (2016: fal 7y 2 B EIRIR I FEFR75EZES
8%-9.5%) per annum. E(ZE—RF:8EEISE)FE °
During the year, an aggregate amount of HK$876,000,000 ER RBE—ARE+-_A=F+—HZAKE
outstanding as at 31 December 2016 was refinanced into 2 48 % 876,000,000 T EEHEE BT
unsecured notes due to the ultimate holding company. This RN T 2 EBRHEE - EEEEAE
amount is unsecured, interest-bearing at 7.8% per annum and HHE - ZFEFRISEAFBNWER_ZT— N
repayable in 2019. Further details are set out in note 27(a) to FEE - E—TFBHRERE W HEREM T
the consolidated financial statements. 27(a) °

H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—tF+_A=+—HIFE

25. OTHER BORROWINGS 25. HEAER
At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s other REEIR - REEEMEREENAT
borrowings were repayable as follows:

2017 2016
—E—tF —TREF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
|
Within 1 year or on demand —F Aoy fEE K 1,189,492 644,917
After 1 year but within 2 years —HIREMFERA 773,350 —
1,962,842 644,917
The other borrowings are unsecured, interest-bearing at 8%- EMERBEER  IREFEKSEF13EF
13% (2016: 8%—10%) per annum. B(ZZ—XRF :8EE10E)
Subsequent to end of the reporting date, certain of these RIMEBBERE  BETREBR_Z—N
borrowings originally due for repayment in 2018 have been FEENZERACETUEZTER -
renewed and extended to become repayable in 2019 and —NFR_ZE_TFEER - E—FTHFBIHIN
2020. Further details are set out in note 42 to the consolidated MAEMBRERNFEL  ZRBEELER
financial statements. Included in the amount was a borrowing Youth Force Asia Limited (2K R 542 I f% 5=
of HK$130,000,000 (2016: HK$130,000,000) due to Youth Force 2 AR 7T Wu Pei Tzu Z 1B 28% Ikt 2 A
Asia Limited, a company in which Ms. Wu Pei Tzu, who is a A] ) f& 3£ 130,000,000/ ;L ( = & — /N F :
related party of the Company'’s controlling shareholder, has a 130,000,000 7T) °

28% equity interest.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-Z—tF+-A=1+—HILFE

26. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND NOTES 26. TRREBESFREE
CN 2014 “E-NFETRRRERE

On 19 March 2014 (the “Completion Date”), the Company
completed the acquisition (the “Acquisition”) of the entire
issued share capital of and a shareholder’s loan to Excel Earth
Limited (“Excel Earth”) and obtained a profit guarantee
given by the vendor. The principal asset of Excel Earth was its
interests under, and entitlements to, the transfer of five
percent (5%) of the distributable profit of Hang Seng
Sociedade Unipessoal Limitada, for each twelve-month
period, which had commenced on 1 January 2014 and
terminated on 28 October 2015.

The Acquisition was satisfied by issuing zero coupon
convertible notes (“CN 2014") at the conversion price of
HK$0.05 per conversion share (as adjusted from HK$1.00 per
conversion share by the effect of the share subdivision) in the
aggregate principal amount of HK$400,000,000 due on the
sixteenth anniversary of the Completion Date to the vendor in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the acquisition
agreement. The conversion price has been subsequently
adjusted to HK$0.003125 per conversion share after the bonus
issue on 3 July 2015. On the Completion Date, the fair value
of CN 2014 was approximately HK$1,480,000,000, based on a
valuation report issued by an independent valuer, Roma
Appraisals Limited, dated 29 August 2014. Details of the
Acquisition had been disclosed in the circular of the Company
dated 8 January 2014. CN 2014 were recognised as equity in
its entirety without a liability portion in accordance with the

Group's accounting policy for mandatorily convertible notes.

R-ZT-—OF=A+HB(REEKBH] =~
AAEERBREREARAR ([#HE]) 22
MEHTRARBRRER((WBER) X
EEHRATRE - MEZT2EERM
B_Z-—NFEF—-—A—BRRE_Z—HF+A
“HNABRESE+T—@ERBBERAERF—A
BERABBGEADIRGEMNE D2 (5%) Z
o MR -

RIRNEE e < IR G - W EIRE &
Bk H IR E TR A AR 0.05 78 T (B 5t %
DIFH 2 2 B Bk A IRAR%M 1.008 7T T A
FEE) [ E 75 1T A& #8584 400,000,000 74
LR TR B BB M TN BEF R B2 T B AT
BREE(ZZ—NETRREE]DEMN - R©
TR AZBETARETE L
BEEEHAERETR LB H0.003125%8
7T o PATERK B B - BB (L ERE S B
EERARMBETYERA-ZS—WFENA
“+ABZEERS  — - EABRE
B2 AR EEH51,480,000,00078 7T » Ui
EHHBERAARBHA-ZT —HNF—
RANBZBEHNIEE - REBEASEE @R
ARRER 2 SFTBER - —Z T —HFAHRR
SEERRTEWEB G 2Em o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

26. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND NOTES (Continued)

CN 2015

On 21 August 2015, the Company issued zero coupon
convertible notes in the aggregate principal amount of
HK$841,900,000 (“CN 2015"). CN 2015 matured after 24
months from the date of issuance and were convertible into
ordinary shares of the Company at any time between the date
of issue of the notes and their settlement date. CN 2015 were

convertible at the conversion price of HK$0.225 per share.

The interest amortised for the year was calculated by applying
an effective interest rate of 10.06% to the liability component

for the 24-month period from the notes’ issue date.

CN 2015 matured on 20 August 2017 and an aggregate
principal of HK$205,500,000 has been redeemed during the
year. As at 31 December 2017, the Company was in the
process to redeem the remaining CN 2015 of an aggregate
principal of HK$123,400,000 of which HK$100,000,000 has been

redeemed subsequent to the end of the reporting period.

CB 2017

On 27 June 2017, the Company issued convertible bonds in
the aggregate principal amount of HK$50,000,000 which bear
interest at 4% per annum (“CB 2017"). CB 2017 will mature
after 24 months from the date of issuance and are convertible
into ordinary shares of the Company at any time between the
date of issue of the bonds and their settlement date. CB 2017

are convertible at conversion price of HK$0.176 per share.

The interest amortised for the year was calculated by applying
an effective interest rate of 8.82% to the liability component

for the 24-month period from the bonds’ issue date.

26.

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_T—+tH&+-_A=+—HILHFE

ABRESRERE#)
—E-HFEABREE
RZZE—RAFNAZ+—H » NARETAE
& 4R FE A841,900,0008 L2 TEE A MR E
BIZ2—HAFWEREE] - —T—1F
AR IR A BT B HAB R 24 @ B & 285
ARETREHHRELASE A 8RR
FREEBRAARREER —F—AFAIH
IREIE iR H AR E SR 0.225 8 L H i -

FRBBENENRERRITHHE24EA
HIFE B A EE D EAERNE10.06%

S o

—E-RFEABRREER=_Z—tFN\A
Z+ HEE - A& 2% H A 205,500,000 74
TERFEFANEBR - R—_FE—+F+ A
=+—H ARFIEEBER =T —RAFAHK
=8 N AN & #2%E123,400,0008 7 H A
100,000,000 /& T ¥ 5 AR & FEE] ©

TE-LFURRES
R-E—EFRNAZTLER  ARREITR
FHMEA4EF B R 45 550,000,000 %
TZAgBREF(Z2-—tFTRKRE
1) e —T L FAHBRESFNETHHE
Ar2AEAREIE  AIRBETESFRREES
FHHIIHREARELRRARARER
B —T—tFRBRREFARARESR
0176 BT HIA

FRBBENENMEFRITH L 24EA
HifE BB E R AR D B A ERA X8.82%5t

s
H o
=
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-Z—tF+-A=1+—HILFE

26. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND NOTES (Continued)
CB 2017 (Continued)
The net proceeds received from the issuance of CN 2015 and
CB 2017 have been split into the liability and derivative

components and their movements are as follows:

KpTHERR S

26. TRREFRRE &)
=B LEARBRES ()
T T—AETRBEERR T —
ik E% 2 BN REFER A AR A
HBBIT -

+FA]

Derivative Derivative
Liability financial financial
component asset liabilities Total
DS T
&S CRERE cREE )
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tz Tz T T
I —
At 1 January 2016 RZZE—~"¥—HF—H 533,642 - 69,809 603,451
Interest expense MERY 56,376 = = 56,376
Fair value gain DA EERKE - - (69,594) (69,594)
At 31 December 2016 N-ZE—R"E+-_A=+—H
and 1 January 2017 NZZE F—H—H 590,018 - 215 590,233
Interest expense MERY 22,643 - - 22,643
Coupon interest paid ENEE (1,033) - - (1,033)
Conversion of CN 2015 A TR RREE (281,683) - - (281,683)
lssuance of CB 2017 BT LFBRRES 45,668 (4,316) 4,673 46,025
Fair value (gain)/loss AhER k&) EE - 3,306 (3,855) (549)
Maturity of CN 2015 S-RFARREEEIH (328,900) - - (328,900)
At 31 December 2017 R-ZE—tF+-HA=+—H 46,713 (1,010) 1,033 46,736
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e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-_T—+tF+-A=+—HLEFE

27. UNSECURED BONDS AND NOTES 27. BEEARBESRERE

31 December 2017
—E-tH+-RA=t-H

Effective

interest
Notes rate (%) Maturity HK$'000
st ERRFIE (%) R FTHET

Non-current — repayable in the ¥R — BRBE_FEHEE
second year
- 2017 Notes — 7.8% - T tERER—78% (a) 7.8 2019 1,164,000

Non-current — repayable in the R — ERE=ZRF

third to fifth years, inclusive (BEERME)HE
- 2017 Notes — 8.5% -ZT—+FEE —85% (b) 8.65 2020 541,306
- 2017 Bonds Al — 5.25% -2t FEHA —525% () 9.53 2020 12,091
- 2017 Bonds All — 6.0% - tLFBEHFAI—60%  (d) 9.56 2022 13,126
566,523
Non-current — beyond five years  Fifi& — ZFHU L
- 2017 Bonds B — 6.0% -“Z—tFEHFB—60% (o) 9.56 2025 22,778

1,753,301
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e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-Z—tF+-A=1+—HILFE

27. UNSECURED BONDS AND NOTES (Continued) . BIKHESREE(E)

(@)  On 22 February 2017 and 21 March 2017, the Company (a)
issued the 2017 Notes — 7.8% with principal amounts of
US$100,000,000 (approximately HK$776,000,000) and
US$50,000,000 (approximately HK$388,000,000),
respectively to Inventive Star, which are interest bearing
at 7.8% per annum and repayable on 21 February 2019
and 20 March 2019, respectively. Further details are set
out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

(b)  On 25 January 2017, 27 January 2017 and 7 February (b)
2017, the Company issued the 2017 Notes — 8.5% with
an aggregate principal amount of US$70,000,000
(approximately HK$543,000,000) to certain independent
third parties, which are interest bearing at 8.5% per
annum and repayable on 24 January 2020, 26 January
2020 and 6 February 2020.

(c)  On 15 September 2017, 20 September 2017, 13 October ()
2017, 3 November 2017 and 17 November 2017, the
Company issued the 2017 Bonds Al — 5.25% with an
aggregate principal amount of HK$13,500,000 to certain
independent third parties, which are interest bearing at
5.25% per annum and repayable in 2020.

(d) On 15 September 2017, 3 November 2017 and 9 (d)
November 2017, the Company issued the 2017 Bonds
All — 6.0% with an aggregate principal amount of
HK$15,000,000 to certain independent third parties,
which are interest bearing at 6% per annum and
repayable in 2022.

(e) On 12 September 2017, 6 November 2017 and 20 (e)
November 2017, the Company issued the 2017 Bonds B
— 6.0% with an aggregate principal amount of
HK$28,000,000 to certain independent third parties,
which are interest bearing at 6% per annum and
repayable in 2025.

RZBE—+F_AZ+ZHAR=Z
—t&F=ZA=-_+—8B' ARAFMA
Inventive StarZ 1T A & B 8 7 Bl &
100,000,000 3= 7T, ( #9776,000,000 % 7T )
250,000,000 7T (#7388,000,0007%8 7T )
L_E—EFERE —T78% EEEE
BEFERISEFERDFIENR-E
—NF_A-+—BE-_ZE—h&F=
AZ+HEZ - E—THBIREE
B R R MIFE 33 ©

RZZFE—+tF—HA=_+HAH "
—+F—A-"+tER_T— ti_
AtH ARARIMEFTBILFE=77%
17 X %€ 48 %8 /70,000,000 7T( 4
543,000,000 7)) 2 =T — L FEE
—8.5% - ﬁ%mﬁﬁiﬂﬁﬁsrﬁg
MER T -_THE—F_+MA -
-l R RS Rl VAN = ) k=~ f¢
—HA/NHEE -

R-ZT—+FNLA+HB  —T—+
FEAAFTHE —ZZE—+E+A+=
B —Z—+t&+—A=ZBkK_F
—tF+—A++tH KRARAET
BN = 51T 4858 A 13,500,000
BILZZE—EFEHFA-S255% " B
BEAIEERN RS BEFBERENR
TRFEERE -

R-ZF—LtFNA+HEB  ZF—L
Ft—AZHR=F—tHF+—AN
A ARFRETBLE=TRTA
E#E /1500000008 L2 —F—+
FEFAN-6.0%  BRARFRFRN RS
B ERAR T _FEE -

RZE—+tFNA+ZH Z—FT—+t
F+—AANEBRZZE—tF+—A
Zt+H ARBRETELE=FE
177K & 4258 428,000,000/ L 2 —
— L FEHB-6.0% ' BREEBEHIEER
ROBABRAR-ZT -_RFEE -

The unsecured notes issued by the Group are denominated REE BT 2 BEBRBE AR E - A%
in US$. The unsecured bonds issued by the Group are B 217 mERESOBIITEHE

denominated in HK$.

H
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e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-_T—+tF+-A=+—HLEFE

28. DEFERRED TAX 8. EELEBH
The movements in deferred tax assets during the year are as RIEFRIBEERNFAZEEHNT :
follows:
Provisions
BE
HK$'000
TBT
|
At 1 January 2016 R_T—XRFE—H—H =
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss RERNT ABRAELERIE
during the year 24,390
Exchange differences M =58 (27)
At 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 R-EBE—XRFE+-_A=+—"H8BxK
—ET—+F—H—H 24,363
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss RENGT ABRAELERIE
during the year 478,998
Exchange differences M =58 1,423
As at 31 December 2017 R-ZB—+F+-_A=+—H 504,784
The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of IRE BN E B E AT IEEE 5 474,983,000
HK$474,983,000 (2016: HK$346,581,000) that are available I (=T — N4 : 346,581,000 7T) © W]
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the R IS E A A SRR A B Z KK FE
companies in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets have BEHET c AR EEREEE —REEA
not been recognised in respect of these losses as they have REEHERT R M B AR A & B 2 Fi18
arisen in these entities that have been loss-making for some e MBS EEnS  WARERIELR
time and it is not considered probable that taxable profits will THEEE o
be available against which the tax losses can be utilised.
29. SHARE CAPITAL &N
|
2017 2016
—E—tF —T-RE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FHT
Authorised: SETE
300,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 300,000,000,000 &%
HK$0.0005 each FARMEE 0.0005 87T 2 & Ak 150,000 150,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRER
142,984,807,678 (2016: 141,651,474,345) 142,984,807,678 % (ZZF— /N4 ¢
ordinary shares of HK$0.0005 each 141,651,474,345 %)
SARE{E0.0005 8 L2 & @R 71,492 70,826
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

HE-Z—tFE+-_A=1+—HILFE

29. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 29. BA& (&)
A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital is KRR ARz SEHENT -
as follows:
Share
Number of Share premium
shares in issue capital account Total
ERTRAHE e R EER &5t
Notes 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt T THL TR TAT
I —
At 1 January 2016 W=E—7~%—A—-H 140,651,474 70,326 1,847,219 1,917,605
Issue of new shares BITHRM @) 1,000,000 500 137,500 138,000
At 31 December 2016 and RZB-—RE
1 January 2017 TZA=t-Hk
“E—tF-f-H 141,651,474 70,826 1,984,779 2,055,605
Issue of shares upon conversion SETRREER
of convertible notes BIRG (b) 1,333,333 666 281,017 281,683
At 31 December 2017 RZB—t%
+-A=1-H 142,984,807 71,492 2,265,796 2,337,288
Notes: BE
(a) On 14 October 2016, 1,000,000,000 shares were issued to an (a) RZZE—XRF+A+ITA - XARIEFA0.15

independent third party at

HK$0.15 per share, for the settlement of

other borrowings with an outstanding principal of HK$150,000,000.
The fair value of the shares on 14 October 2016 was HK$0.138 per
share and resulted in a gain on extinguishment of other borrowings

of HK$12,000,000 credited
December 2016.

to profit or loss for the year ended 31

T

On 3 January 2017, the conversion rights attaching to CB 2015 with
a principal amount of HK$300,000,000 were exercised at the
conversion price of HK$0.225 per share, resulting in the issue of
1,333,333,333 new shares in the Company.

Share options

Details of the Company's share option scheme and the share

options issued under the scheme are included in note 30 to

the consolidated financial statements.

BLTZERR - ZBBILE=FH BT
1,000,000,000 % f& 17+ AEEREEARE A
150,000,000 7T 2 E B R - ZERHBR =
T—ANE+ATHABZAREEAEERO0.138
PE I  BEREUH (B8 H b & 5 UK 2 12,000,000
B ABE—E—"F+_A=1+—HLHF
BBk o

R-Z—tF—HA=H ' &£ % 4300,000,000
Bz — T — A AR ES T AR
(B T BR0.225% T # 17 F 18 B B 1T
1,333,333,333 R AR R FTILD ©

fBRE
AR RE AR T &) R R IR L AT BIRTTRE A
ZRIBHNERE MR RMTES0
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Equity-settled share option scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme"”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success
of the Group's operations. Eligible participants include the
full-time and part-time employees, executives, officers,
directors, business consultants, agents, legal and financial
advisers of the Company and the Company's subsidiaries.
The Scheme became effective on 3 December 2014 and,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force

for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. The maximum number of
shares issuable under share options to each eligible
participant in the Scheme within any 12-month period, is
limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time. Any further grant of shares options in excess of this limit

is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any share
options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to
any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate value
(based on the price of the Company'’s shares at the date of
the grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month
period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a

general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
30 days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable by the
directors, and commences after a certain vesting period and
ends on a date which is not later than five years from the date
of the offer of the share options or the expiry date of the

Scheme, if earlier.

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_T—+tH&+-_A=+—HILHFE

0. BBRAESHE

EEaEEREE
AARRBRETE (TRHE)) - B&Y
A REEKRDEEELERRZAER
ERHEBNOE - ABNAER2EER
RARBRARAIMBER R Z 28 & RBE
B-fTRAB -EEABR EF EXBRE
A~ IR AR RV EER - BRIET 82
HEEIER] BB T —mOF+-A=H
AR - W A% AR T FRDRER -

21

~

B HLERIRRT &I AT R 2 RITEBAIRER
BT TR ZRARRTREEHITRMHK
10% - REA+ —EAREAEEEERKS
EEREE SR B A ER1T 2D
ReHE  UARFTKEHTRMD 1% R
IR - #E— SR A Z LR 2 BRARALK
RERRAE LA -

AARNRIES TRTBRAE - TERRN
MEZEMBEALTREBRE  BAELB
MIEMITE R - tbs - RER+ @A
HEANRARREERRIBIIFATES
HIREF 2 B EA LR HBERE - hATS
N BB AR B AR E TR 0.1% 3K
REMRERRL AR AR RBREE) #
BSEEBT MALERRERRERRE L
BOAE -

RERENBERE 2 ZHANZHOE BB
IVEAREM  ARALAXNEHK1EBTH
KBMERE - FIRONBERENTEHNRE
ERET  YHETHEBHMEHAK  mEm
BN REREEBAE B HREs A F et
B2 FHEMRFE -

H
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e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-Z—tF+-A=1+—HILFE

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 30. IBRMESTE(2)
Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued) EaGEBRETS (2
The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the BREZITHEETHRESEE  ENAER
directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i) the Stock TH=FhzHEaE  (VR2BREZENE
Exchange closing price of the Company's shares on the date HZARR AR P 2 W B : (i) BEER
of the offer of the share options; (ii) the average Stock SEAZ AT AER S B AR AR R
Exchange closing price of the Company's shares for the five FrzFHKmE: RilWNREZENEBAR
trading days immediately preceding the date of the offer; and NI HEE ©
(iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares on the date of
the offer.
Share options do not confer rights on the holder to dividends BB AN N T A A WEAR B E R - TR
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings. EHEERRAS ERE -
The following share options were outstanding under the STEIE T W ARITEERAENT ¢
Scheme:

2017 2016
“B-tF B RE

Weighted Weighted
average exercise Number of ~ average exercise Number
price per share share options price per share of options

=1 Bk
METSTEE BRERE  ETIOERE BREHA

(HKS) (HKS)

(E7) ()
|
QOutstanding as at 1 January R—B—BHAFE 0.132 1,462,669,808 0.137 1,547,918,384
Granted during the year EREH 0.150 532,479,220 = =
Lapsed during the year EREY 0.167 (142,970,756) 0.220 (85,248 576)
Outstanding as at 31 December W= A=+ —BRAE 0135  1,852,178,272 0.132 1,462,669,808
Exercisable at 31 December RTZA=+—-BAFf 0.106 1,121,900,000 0.105 1,120,950,000
No option was exercised during the year ended 31 December HE—"ZT—+F+-_A=+—HIEELTE
2017 (2016: Nil) AR (CE—AF 1)

H
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-_T—+tF+-A=+—HLEFE

. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 30. IBRMESTE(2)
Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued) EREEBRESTE ()
Share options outstanding as at the end of the reporting RS A BAZK i AR AT BB I AE 2 1T B R 171
period have the following exercise periods and exercise BT :
prices:

Share options Share options

Grant Date Exercise period Exercise price 31 December 2017 31 December 2016
R-B—+tF RZT—RF

+=A=+-A  +=A=t-A

RHBH 1728 17EfE ZBRE BB

(HK$)
(A7)
1

3 December 2014 3 December 2014 -

2 December 2024 0.105 1,120,000,000 1,120,000,000

—E-mFE+-A=R —E-EFE+T-A=RZE

“FMF+ZAZA

18 June 2015 Note (a) 0.220 305,149,792 338,869,808

—Z-RFRA+TN\R P 5 (a)

26 November 2015 Note (b) 0.255 3,800,000 3,800,000

—2-mE+-A-tAR KEW

5 April 2017 Note (c) 0.150 423,228,480 -

—Z—+tHFNARHA PHEE (o)

Total st 1,852,178,272 1,462,669,808

Weighted average remaining contractual life of options outstanding 6.94 years 7.36 years

at end of period

RIS BIR W ARITERBREER T IHEF 19/ A FH 6.94F 7.365

Notes: Bt et -

(a) 25% of the options granted will be vested on the third (@) Eﬁtﬁﬁﬁﬂ&ﬁ%ZZS%Hé}ﬁéﬁﬂj Hﬁﬂ%E?@
anniversary of the date of grant, another 25% of the options SRS - ET%&E%H&%Z%QI\ZS% R
granted will be vested on the fourth anniversary of the date of H A gﬁ%@?@iﬁ%% CERNBREZS
grant, another 25% of the options granted will be vested on the N25% G IR i B gﬂ%ﬂ?@iﬁ% BR
fifth anniversary of the date of grant and the remaining 25% of B R 2 88T 25% A th B IS8 /A
the options granted will be vested on the sixth anniversary of FHRE BEE_T_AFAATERABL-
the date of grant, up to 17 June 2025.

(b) 25% of the options granted are vested on the first anniversary of (b) BERHEREZ 25% R BEE—B
the date of grant, another 25% of the options granted are FHRE Eﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%Z%ﬁl\ZS%Hﬁéﬁ
vested on the second anniversary of the date of grant, another = ﬂﬂﬁ%:%@iﬁ%% ' Eﬁﬁ,ﬁﬁﬁﬁgz;—j
25% of the options granted are vested on the third anniversary SN25% AR B gﬂ’%??@iﬁ%% =R
of the date of grant and the remaining 25% of the options B AR 2 BR T 25% S AR B BRSSP0
granted will be vested on the fourth anniversary of the date of BB BEE_T-_AF+—AZ+7H
grant, up to 26 November 2025. =11k

H
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-Z—tF+-A=1+—HILFE

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 30. BRRERE (&)

Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

() One-third of such share options are vested on the first
anniversary of the date of grant; another 33.3% of the options
granted will be vested on the second anniversary of the date of
grant, the remaining 33.4% of the options granted will be
vested on the third anniversary of the date of grant, up to 4
April 2027.

The fair value of the share options granted during the year
was HK$35,277,000 (approximately HK$0.067 each) (2016: Nil),
of which the Group recognised a share option expense of
HK$12,470,000 (2016: Nil) in respect of the share options
granted during the year.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group also
recognised a share option expense of HK$9,165,000 (2016:
HK$10,347,000) in respect of the share options granted in the
prior years.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during
the year was estimated as at the date of grant using a
binomial model, taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted. The following table
lists the inputs to the model used for the year ended 31
December 2017:

Share price (closing price of grant date) 0.137
Exercise price 0.15
Expected volatility 47.2%
Expected dividend yield 0%
Risk-free interest rate 2.26%

Expected volatility was determined by calculating the
historical volatility of the share price of comparable listed
companies to the Company over the previous 10 years. The
expected life used in the model has been adjusted, based on
the Group's best estimate, for the effects of non-
transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural
considerations.

Share options granted to consultants were incentives for
helping the Group expand its business network, acquire and
explore new business projects and opportunities. The fair
value of such benefit could not be estimated reliably and, as a
result, the fair value was measured by reference to the fair
value of share options granted.

BacEBRET 8 (®)
GERNC)

() EREREN =22 REBEHEHE—A
FREBE BERLEREZ ZI333%ERN
FREBHRF_AFTHR BEREBREZ
BT BABER R L BRE=ZRAFRES
BEE T +FWOAMHEAIL -

FAKHBRRE 2 AR EEA35277,000%
T (B H0.067%8T) (ZE—RF : &) -
H AR 7R £ Bk 4 A 45 () B I e B A e
12,470,000 L (ZZF—NF : £) o

BE_ZT—tF+-_A=+—HIEFE &
£ B 54 58 A 4F J2 B 1% 1 B AR i e R s AR A R
9,165,000 7T ( =& — 7< £ : 10,347,000
BTT) e

F BRI S  E AR A EERE
HH B SR B S A 5 S A
2R R AIE TS - TRBSIBRE 2
— Lt AS+—RLFEAERERY
CIN R

A& (8 (B B B ) 0.137
TEE 0.15
T HAR 1@ 47 2%
T8 HA AR B [ 3R 0%
42 [ gz 7 2 2.26%

BRI EARA A BB EH AR
BRBETFZELRRBETE - EAKEK
ERET B 2 BHERNC AEBEK
Rz TAEEE  TRERHIRTAEEER
RZXEMBMBEE -

BRTERZBRREII B A EEERELE
B WENSHHEBRE Rge 2 &
B > BRARA 2 At BETER SEfhat
Bt - EARBELSZEMRLBREZA
RAEEE-
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

31.

Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
1,852,178,272 share options outstanding under the Scheme.
The exercise in full of the outstanding share options would,
under the present capital structure of the Company, result in
the issue of 1,852,178,272 additional ordinary shares of the
Company and additional share capital and share premium
amounts of approximately HK$926,000 and HK$248,540,000,

respectively.

Share options offered by controlling shareholder on
14 December 2015

On 14 December 2015, the controlling shareholder of the
Company offered 3,191,666,665 share options (the “Option
A") to independent investors and 77,066,668 share options
(the “"Option B") to consultants and employees (collectively
the "Offerees”) enabling the Offerees to subscribe for an
aggregate of 3,268,733,333 shares under the Share Option
Scheme. The exercise price is HK$0.24 per share. Under the
Option A, the vesting period commenced 16 days after the
grant date and grantees can exercise 100% share options.
Under the Option B, grantees can exercise 25% share options
3 years after the grant date, 25% share options 4 years after
the grant date, 25% share options 5 years after the grant date
and 25% share options 6 years after the grant date.

At the end of the reporting period, none of the options
offered by the controlling shareholder have been taken up by
the Offerees. Correspondingly, the Group's consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017

have not reflected the effects of such share-based payments.

RESERVES
The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity.

30.

31.

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_T—+tH&+-_A=+—HILHFE

BREE (#)

EREEBRESTE ()

RIEER - AARIREEIE T HARITEZ
RERRAE 5 1,852,178,27210 - TE AR FIIRABE
REBT - MARITEBREEREITEEE
QA EBEITREINE BA%1,852,178,272 /% + %
177 & 9 Bl 49926,000 7 7T & 248,540,000 78
=

ERRRNR-_ZF—HF+-ATHBER
o B B iR A

RZZE—RAF+ZATEAE - NARZERARE
RHARIMBIIREEARBERERES (518
[ A ) 3,191,666,665 17 & A% & ([ B8
BRAEA]) K 77,066,66817 B8 A% 1 ([ 58 IR #&
Bl) AR AR RIBERETSRES K
3,268,733,333 &Mt 0 © 1T{EE R EAX0.24 7%
T o IRIBEREA - BEHERLAHE 6
HFE - A ARITEE 100% 8B R 4E - RIR
FERRFEB - A AR AL B HIE 3F MG
1T 25% AR #E - IR B HAR 4 FRRTT
F25% AR - ML BB S FRARITE
5% B RERRIR N BB FRBITE
25% HE R HE -

REREHR - AR A R BRI R IR
hz2BBERE Bt AREHE-F
—tF+ A=t BLEFEZEAMER
KRB RRZFABRN BER 2R 2

S 488
rE °
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AL ERAEERIBEEE Y RERERE
BH2FRNGAMBEBER -
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e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-Z—tF+-A=1+—HILFE

32. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 32. HEMBAR
(@) Year ended 31 December 2017 (a) B=z=ZE—tH&+=-H=+—HL
FE

On 20 June 2017, the Group entered into a series of R-ZE—+FEB=-+H KEHHE
sale and purchase agreements with an independent —EZBIE=FFIL—RINEEW=
third party to dispose of its entire equity interests in LAHEERE THBAR) 2 2 5RA%HE
certain subsidiaries for an aggregate consideration of RRER110,610,000&TT - KHER
HK$110,610,000. The transaction was completed on 20 —E—tFAZ+THTEK -
June 2017.
Details of the net assets of the subsidiaries disposed of BRABELEENB AR ZEEFENI
and the financial impact are summarised as follows: B EFBR M T ¢

2017
—E—tF
Notes HK$'000
BfaE THET
' |
Net assets disposed of: EHEEESE :
Prepaid land lease payments TS T AR EFIE 15 98,640
Prepayments, deposits and other TARTRIR « 1=e KA M EIGRIE
receivables 12
Accruals and other payables JE ST 7R IE K E b fE < 738 (8)
98,644
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HE B AR 2 Was 6 11,966
110,610
Satisfied by: EEBIA T HER
Cash Be 110,610
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents HEHEMBARAZHE e RREEEY
in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries is as follows: MAFREZ DI
2017
—E—+F
HK$'000
FTET
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents REEMBARIZEERRESE
in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries ERA R 110,610
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e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—_ZT—+F+_A=+—HIFE

32. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 32. HEMBAR(#)
(b) Year ended 31 December 2016 by BE=E—XR"FE+ZHA=+—HL
FE
(i)  Additional information regarding the disposal of () BEALECKRIEESGLOME
the discontinued operation as detailed in note 11 11 Fr&ral) 2 BEINERHAT -
is as follows:

2016
—ERF
HK$'000
TETT

Net assets disposed of: BHEEEFE
Cash and bank balances e MIRTTAEER 1,199
Accruals and other payables FE 5T 5RI8 & B Ath FE A 3R (159)
1,040
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEME A Rz e 960
2,000
Satisfied by: BEEBA T ER
Cash H&e 2,000
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash HEEMBEARIZREeRBESSE
equivalents in respect of the disposal of BEYMRANFEZAONAT -

subsidiaries is as follows:

2016

—T—REF

HK$'000

FATT
|

Cash consideration HERE 2,000

Cash and bank balances disposed of BHEZH S KIRITAR (1,199

Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents REEHBRARZRE MRS
in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries ZEDRAFRE 801

H
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e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
tE+= A=+ ALEE

BE-—T—

32. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
(b)

Year ended 31 December 2016 (Continued) (b)

(ii)

32. HEMBLRE (&)
BE_®-AF+-ASt—AL
FEE)

On 9 September 2016, the Company entered into iy MRZZTE—ARFENANILHE  &AAQF]

an agreement with an independent third party to
dispose of Loyal Fame Global Limited and its
subsidiary (the "Loyal Fame Group”) for a
consideration of HK$40,000,000.

H-2BUE=TREAE
40,000,000/ T & BB IRIRE
RARREMBLR(BAEE

W) £Tsr i -

2016
—TRE
Note HK$'000
BaE T
I
Net assets disposed of: EHEEEFE -
Prepaid land lease payments TEfT A EFIB 15 20,990
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB ARz W 19,010
40,000
Satisfied by: EBEAUAT AN ER
Cash and net cash inflow in respect  FLHEHBARIZRES K
of the disposal of subsidiaries WEMAHEE 40,000

33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS

(a)

Major non-cash transactions

(i)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Company issued certain unsecured notes with an
aggregate principal amount of US$112,887,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$876,000,000) to
the ultimate holding company to refinance certain
loans from the ultimate holding company and a
related party with an aggregate amount of
approximately HK$876,000,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, a loan
due to an independent third party with a principal
amount of HK$147,450,000 and interest payable of
HK$4,314,000 was assigned to a related party.

33. ZERERERME

(a) EEFBEERSH

i)

HEZZ—+F+=-A= + E
IEFE - KRR RRLZER
%ﬁ%$$§%%ﬁﬂz%zmo
F 70 (FHE #49876,000,00078 7T)
MERIFZE  UEMEES T
B S ARERR A 7 o — & R EE 75 B
1§ 2 A #£ #7876,000,0007% T &
/TA"

HE-_ZT—+HF+-_A=1+—H
IEFE BER—R2BIE=AX
% %8 /5 147,450,000 7T 2 E &K
K E FE 5 7 84,314,000 T B
BER S — A R
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e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-_T—+tF+-A=+—HLEFE

33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 33. ZKEBEREXRNT &)
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) MEXBEEZEEETH
activities
Loans from Convertible Unsecured
Interest related Other bonds ~ CN2015 bonds
payables parties borrowings  andnotes  payables  and notes
REBEA mgk —E-1f RER

EfAE A% HMfER G5REE TERRE G5LREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
ThL TiEn TiEn ThL TiEn TiEn

At 1 January 2017 RZE-t£-5-H 58,296 1,037,241 644,917 590,018 - -
Changes from financing cash flows BERETE (59,772) 36,352 1,453,343 (159,475) - 876415
Other changes Rt
— Interest expenses —FEREY 257,531 - - 21,610 - 886
— Changes in derivative financial —fESRIAR
instruments - - - (357) - -
— Refinance of loans from related parties — B H EF ERE - (876,000) - - - 876,000
— Assignment of aloan and its related ~ — EEEFHREEEAE
interests (4,314) 151,764 (147,450) - - -
— Refinancing of a loan —ERBERE (12,032) - 12,032 - - -
— Maturity of CN 2015 — - nEABREEHS - - - (1234000 123,400 -
— Conversion of CN 2015 — BB E-RFETBRER - - - (281,683) - -
At 31 December 2017 RZB-tE+ZA=+-8 239709 349,357 1962842 46713 123400 1,753,301
34. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 34, REFHFEERE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total future RIRE IR - NEERERE 2 Nl HUEL
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating SHE 2 RRXEHEFEEENOT -

leases falling due as follows:

2017 2016
—E—tF ZERF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THETT
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________|
Within one year —FNR 78,521 104,370
In the second to fifth years, inclusive FEEZERF(REEREMS) 81,724 66,234
After five years AFI% 34,575 28,399
194,820 199,003
Except for operating leases of leasehold land on the Island of BRRERESZHE T 2 EEHE RIS
Saipan which have a period of 25 and 55 years, the leases FRE5FIN  ZERE 2V —RAE—
typically run for an initial period of one to five years. None of ZRFEANE - AR EEEESESAR
the leases includes contingent rentals. & o

H
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e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-Z—tF+-A=1+—HILFE

35. COMMITMENTS

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in

35. &iE
B b SB35 34 SEi > 4R TR B AR SN - A
BRIRE IR Y AENT

note 34 above, the Group had the following commitments at
the end of the reporting period:

2017 2016
—E—+tF e ANCS
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
|
Capital commitments EREYE
Contracted, but not provided for: BET4) - [BERERE
Property, plant and equipment M - WE REE 474,368 2,180,636
Prepaid land lease payments TEf T A BRI 79,167 223,461
553,535 2,404,097
Other commitments Hith A& 4E
Casino licence fee: IREEIZ IR IR B -
Within one year —FR - 116,310
In the second to fifth years, inclusive FEFRF (BEEEME) 468,840 348,930
After five years AF% 1,875,360 1,977,270
2,344,200 2,442,510
Community development fund fees: HEERESER :
Within one year —FR 156,280 155,080
2,500,480 2,597,590

H
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36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Unasserted claims and assessments

The Group may be exposed to payment of damages assessed
by the United States Equal Employment Opportunity
Commission (EEQC). As at 31 December 2017, several former
employees of a subsidiary had filed discrimination claims
against that subsidiary for alleged violation of EEOC
regulations. Violations of EEOC regulations may expose the
subsidiary to payment of damages, civil and administrative
fines or penalties, court costs and fees in excess of
US$200,000 (approximately HK$1,563,000).

In the opinion of the Directors, after taking into account of
the respective legal advices, as the aforementioned matters
are possible unasserted claims and assessments and the
likelihood of the Group making any significant amount of
payments in respect of claims for damages is remote, the
Group has not made any provision for loss in the consolidated

financial statements.

Regulatory oversight

The Group is subject to the jurisdiction of various state, local
and federal regulatory agencies (the “Regulatory
Authorities”) in the conduct of its casino operations.
Specifically, the Group is required to comply with the rules
and regulations of the Commonwealth Casino Commission in
the conduct of its gaming operations. The Group is also
under the jurisdiction of the Financial Crimes Enforcement
Network (“FinCEN") in terms of its compliance with the anti-
money laundering provisions of the Bank Secrecy Act (the
"BSA Compliance”). Should the Group violate the
requirements of the Regulatory Authorities, it could be
subject to various sanctions and disciplinary actions including
monetary fines and penalties, restrictions and conditions on
the scope of its operations, and the potential revocation of its

gaming licence.

36.

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_T—+tH&+-_A=+—HILHFE

HAAE

RN 2B ERFE
REEKEHANTHEMKESE B E(EEOC)
FEBAEMBEEEE RS —1F
+TZA=1+—H ' —RHBRARSHER
EEOC 7 #8151 1 i& E &2 Al 2 B [ H 1% 1
REAR - EREEOCZBHIESLZMIBA
A [E &% %8 18 200,000 2 7T (49 1,563,000 % 7T )
ZEERE  RERTERINR  ERKAR
B -

EXRA REESEARERR AR
P EBRAEEREL 2 BR NG - AR
SETAAER BT AR L ERARN
R MARERERN L EGEEMBEREAE
1BYEH T o

REEE
REBPNETHRBISEBREZTEMN - #H75
LR E M ((EEEME ) mEs - A2
MmE @ A& BN ETTEER FE 52 B R
B 35 £ B g (Commonwealth Casino
Commission) < # Bl & AR o @ RIRIT IR
A RO BEEX ([RITREEZER D A
H AEBNZITESRETHERAS (£
RIBITHEREB ) TEE - WAREERE
EWeNE 23T - BIE AT BEE R T [R 6l £k R BT
S BEBKENR  BRHROREXLEES
B - DA ATBe S B ISR AR AR o
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e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE_T

36.

37.

—tEFFT-A=+—BLEE

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued)

Other matter

In March 2017, an accident occurred at the Group's hotel
construction site that resulted in the death of a worker
employed by a contractor. The accident resulted in
investigations performed by various government agencies,
and it was determined that the contractors and sub-
contractors employed workers who did not possess
appropriate work visas. Management of the Group denies any
knowledge of illegal hiring practices of the contractors and
sub-contractors. Furthermore, management asserts that there
will not be any material adverse impact to the Group's results
and financial position as a result of this matter. Accordingly,
no provision for loss, if any, has been included in these

consolidated financial statements.

Other litigation matters

As at the end of the reporting period and up to the date of
approval of these financial statements, apart from expressly
stated above, the Group is a party to a number of civil
litigations cases, as either a plaintiff or defendant. In the
opinion of the Directors, after taking into account of the
respective legal advices, these cases are either premature
and/or the Group has a very high likelihood of success in its
action and, therefore will not have any adverse impact on the
Group's results and financial position. In the opinion of the
Directors, adequate provision has been made in these

consolidated financial statements.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS
As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not have any pledge
of assets (2016: Nil).

36. IREE#E)

37.

HittEH
RZB—+F=H  AEEBERZEMBRE
EEIN BEEERERAN —RBIAFH -
ZE BT ERFIst B ANETTRE - WRRAE
EEkDBEEERACIALEREEELIES
o AEEEREARFTAEE RS BA
ERIELT - o - BEBERTEBEN
“EHARRE Y XFE LM B ERERE
ARPFZE - At - ZFLEEPBEBRERIE
BIESER (WA (EH 2 B -

Mﬁ%%ﬁ
BERARLEEHFTHBRREER
Hﬂ - REAERTRES  AERBEERREHMK

EYRBBAREFARNS - EEZRAS - &F
BEBOERERR  BERHHENEH
BEERE/ RAEEREFRZIKDERE
= BT EHARE 2 XE NI BARE
REMTNTZE - EFRA - ERULFHRA
MBmRIEM TN BUE

EEEH
RZB—+F+ZRA=+—H KEELE
EABEEER(ZE—RF &) -
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

22

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

In addition to the transactions disclosed elsewhere in (a)
the consolidated financial statements, the Group had
the following transactions with related parties during

the year:

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-_T—+tF+-A=+—HLEFE

38. ARG

BRENSFEEMBHRREMBELHNE

ZR B REERFRA T5I6EH
TR

2017 2016
—E—tF —T—REF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt EE FET FAT
|
Continuing connected FHEBER S -
transactions:
Salary paid to Ji Xiaobo S P AR
("Mr. Ji") (TREEDZFHE (i) 7,793 7,763
Exempted connected BEARHELS -
transactions:
Interest expense on loans from REm@Eg LT ER R
and notes issued to related BITEEZABERAY
parties (i) 97,560 46,619
Project management service XA TFIRREIM 2
fees to WWA HE ERRGE (iii) 34,881 48,326
Project management service fees i FWu b4 2
to Mr. Wu BEERRGE (iv) 1,670 3,260
Notes: FfzE -

(i) On 27 February 2015, Best Fortune Corporation Limited, a
direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
an employment agreement (the “Employment Agreement”)
with Mr. Ji, the son of the ultimate controlling party of the
Company, pursuant to which Mr. Ji was appointed as the
Project Director of the casino resort project on the Island of
Saipan. According to the Employment Agreement, Mr. Ji is
entitled to a basic annual salary of US$1,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$7,750,000) and a discretionary bonus. The
aggregate amount of remuneration has a cap of US$2,000,000
(equivalent approximately to HK$15,520,000).

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2017, interest expense
of HK$97,560,000 (2016: HK$46,619,000) was charged on
loans from and notes issued to related parties. The interest
rates ranged from 7.5% to 9.5% (2016: 8% to 9.5%) per

annum.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, service fees of
HK$34,881,000 (2016: HK$48,326,000) were payable to WWA
for the project management services rendered to the Group.
The amount mainly included reimbursements of staff costs
and office overheads.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, service fees of
HK$1,670,000 (2016: HK$3,260,000) were payable to Mr. Wu
for the project management services rendered to the Group.

(i) R-ZZE—RE-_A=-++H  xAFZ
HEE2EWBRARIRMEEGRA A HE
ARARRRIEFAZ BT ERT B
B ((EABE]) Bt - dxss
SERNERSEITZIREISE BRNE
BrEBAE - RIZERDS  LhE
B S F WEEAF £ 1,000,000 7T
(FBEFAH7,750,0005% 7T ) R BYISIEAT ©
M4 %8 R /& 2,000,000 % 7T (A& A
#915,520,0003 7T ) °

iy #HEZZE—+tF+-_A=+—HILHF
B RERNBBHTERRBETEERZF
BB 497,560,000 T (=B —7/N4 ¢
46,619,000/ 7T ) © FFENF7.5% %=
9.5% (ZF—7"F : 8% E9.5%) °

HE-ZE—t&+-A=+—RHIF
£ ANSEIREZEE SRRSE
3z BRER M 2 AR 7% & 4 34,881,000 78 7T
(ZZ— 74 : 48,326,000/87C) © %K
BXEREE TRARBAZMAZ MR

HE-_Z—+t&+-_A=+—RHIF
E - pRAASEREZEB ERREE
Wu st 4 2 BR7%E 51,670,000 7T (=
Z— N4 3,260,000 7T) ©

(iii)

H
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e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-Z—tF+-A=1+—HILFE

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 38. BABEARZ (&)

(b) Details of the Group’s interest payable to related (b) AEERRERENBE S 2FE
parties, loans from related parties and unsecured notes REBE T ZER LA BT EITZ
issued to related parties as at the end of the reporting IR EE 7 FBHNGRE T IERE
period are included in notes 22, 24 and 27 to the Mi5E22 - 24 ]2 27 °

consolidated financial statements.

Compensation of key management personnel of the © AEEFEEEASZHMS :

Group:

Remuneration for key management personnel of the AEBETEEBABZHFM(BIELN
Group, including amounts paid to the Company's FARBEELSREEEBZ &) M0
directors and the senior management, is as follows: T

2017 2016
—E2—tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
|
Short term employee benefits e HE B E R 66,981 68,054
Post-employment benefits BEER 12 12 7 174 19
Share-based payments AR D BERE 2 SR 5,826 1,230
72,981 69,303
Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in EEMe v E—THFBIHRGRETTE
note 8 to the consolidated financial statements. HWRMIFES ©
39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 39. ZERE s zEe@mIA
Other than the available-for-sale investments and derivative AR A BTSRRI 517 K239 Rl & 2 7]
financial instruments as disclosed in notes 17 and 23 to the HEERERTESHMIT AN XEBRKRZ
consolidated financial statements, respectively, all financial T+ FERZE—RFTZA=t—BZM
assets and liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2017 BemEERARD AR EBFRIEN
and 2016, are loans and receivables, and financial liabilities at DI R At 22 S RAaE -

amortised cost, respectively.
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40. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that
reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows:

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-_T—+tF+-A=+—HLEFE

40. EMIAZAAREBERAAEBER
Bl
AEBEeRTAZEEERALEBENT
HEREEEABESEHETERID

Carrying amounts Fair values

BREE AAEE
2017 2016 2017 2016
—E—tF —TRF —E—tE —T-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THL TER THL

Financial assets SREE
Available-for-sale investments A HERE 82,464 103,085 82,464 103,085
Derivative financial assets ITESREE 1,010 = 1,010 =
83,474 103,085 83,474 103,085

Financial liabilities tREE
Derivative financial liabilities EERERE 1,033 215 1,033 215
Other borrowings Hip e 1,962,842 644,917 1,927,824 644,917
Loan from related parties REBHH ZEX 349,357 1,037,241 322,111 1,037,241
Convertible bonds and notes AR ES LR 46,713 590,018 45,816 590,018
Unsecured bonds and notes BEIFESREE 1,753,301 = 1,726,710 =
4,113,246 2,272,391 4,023,494 2,272,391

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, restricted bank deposit, trade receivables,
trade payables, financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, financial liabilities included in
accruals, other payables and deposits received approximate
to their carrying amounts largely due to the short term
maturities of these instruments.

The Group's finance department headed by the Chief
Financial Officer is responsible for determining the policies
and procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. The Chief Financial Officer reports directly to the
Chief Executive Officer and the Audit Committee. At each
reporting date, the finance department analyses the
movements in the values of financial instruments and
determines the major inputs applied in the valuation. The
valuation is reviewed and approved by the Chief Financial
Officer. The valuation process and results are discussed with
the Audit Committee twice a year for interim and annual
financial reporting.

EEECE  REMREFED - XRH
RITER - BRE SRR BHESERR
FEATRNFIR - e AW EKIE 2 2R
BE  FEAER R - AMENFEERER
RerzeMABEMNANEEREREER

AW

o EZ2HNUETARNEHARIEME -

AEERERFVHERENMBEHFIARR
EERMTAAREBEFEZHRIERF &
FUYBEERATHRARNERZEQE
H-NEHREAY UHHALTERTA
ZBEEZS VYEEHRETERNEZHA
B BEMBEEFREME At
REEVHHRENGESERGEREEZZ
BEEBFETMRW °
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e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-Z—tF+-A=1+—HILFE

40. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHYOF 40. ¢RI A2 AAEBERAAEBER

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The fair values of the non-current portion of other borrowings,
loan from a related party, convertible bonds and unsecured
bonds and notes have been calculated by discounting the
expected future cash flows using rates currently available for
instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining
maturities. The Group’s own non-performance risk for other
borrowings, loans from related parties and unsecured bonds
and notes as at 31 December 2017 was assessed to be
insignificant. The fair value of the liability portion of the
convertible bonds and notes is estimated by discounting the
expected future cash flows using an equivalent market
interest rate for a similar convertible bond or note with

consideration of the Group's own non-performance risk.

The fair values of listed available-for-sale equity investments

are based on quoted market prices.

The fair values of the embedded derivative in convertible
bonds and notes are determined by valuation techniques and
based on assumptions on market conditions existing at the
end of the reporting period. The valuation model requires the
input of subjective assumptions, including the stock price,
expected volatility and risk free rate. The fair values of the
liability portion of the convertible bonds and notes are
estimated by discounting the expected future cash flows
using an equivalent market interest rate for a similar
convertible bonds and notes with consideration of the

Group's own non-performance risk.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had available-for-sale
investments amounting to HK$82,464,000 (2016: HK$103,085,000)

measured at Level 1 fair value.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had derivative asset
amounting to HK$1,010,000 (2016: Nil) measured at Level 2

fair value.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had derivative financial
liabilities amounting to HK$1,033,000 (2016: HK$215,000)
measured at Level 2 fair value.

Bl (&)

HAfEsk - RE— BB 28R - AJ#]k
EFMERRESRRBFRDHL 2O
BEDNZEEREGRR  EERR LS TF
HAT B ay3R 5 A] A L R RGIR FRHRRIR IR
B -R_T—tF+_A=+—H &
SEARGHREAMER - REBB T <EFRK

BERESZMERZ TEORBRKF RALT
BEX - ABRESERBRAER D ANE
B JREEBRBRESKEBMARET
BHERYEBRAEERNS 2 TEORKE -
BRI AR AR 2R EE RS ©

ER AR ER AR A AR BETETS
BEHE -

AREEFARRBECBRAXTETAZAR
FTEJH%ETEH&FZ:E&&EA#&iHﬂﬂiﬂiﬁ

BmisAR 2 BRAE - HEEARETE

BRRZBAE  BRERE  BEHRKENRER
fRAE - AR EFRERAGHRD ZAN
EBEDRABABRESREBEZBETS
MEREBAREAG Z TEHARER - B
BRMARRR S RELEITIER

MRZE—tF+HA=1+—H xEEZA]
&R & 82,464,000 T(Z T —RF:
103,085,000/ 7C) JHRE— R AR BEE -

R-T—tF+-_A=1+—8 xEEZHT
£EE1,0100008TT(ZF—RF: &)J)
BRE_RMAREENE -

EA_7 tFE+-A=1t—H AEEZT
ﬁ'ﬂ,\1a1 033,000 (= F — R F:
008 TT) JTHRE MR REBEFE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

40. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

41.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial
liabilities (2016: Nil).

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than
derivatives, comprise other borrowings, loans from related
parties, convertible bonds and notes, unsecured bonds and
notes and cash and cash equivalents. The main purpose of
these financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group's
operations. The Group has various other financial assets and
liabilities such as trade receivables and trade payables, which

arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and equity
price risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies
for managing each of these risks and they are summarised
below. The Group's accounting policies in relation to
derivatives are set out in note 2.5 to the consolidated financial

statements.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from future commercial transactions,
recognised assets and liabilities, net investments in foreign
operations or expenditure of operating units in currencies
other than the units’ functional currencies. During the year,
the Group did not use any financial instruments for hedging

purposes.

The majority of its foreign currency exposure comprises assets
and liabilities denominated in US$. The exchange rate of the
HK$ is pegged to the US$ and has remained relatively stable
over the past years. The Group manages its foreign currency
risk by closely monitoring the movement of the foreign

currency rates.

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_T—+tH&+-_A=+—HILHFE

40. EWMTAZAABERAIAEBER

41.

Bl (&)
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e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-Z—tF+-A=1+—HILFE

41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Group to
concentrations of credit risk consist principally of trade

receivables.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. The Group issues credit in the form of markers
to approved casino customers following investigations of
creditworthiness. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual trade debt regularly to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the Directors consider

that the Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's exposure
to credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in

note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

1. BEEREEBRBERBER(#)

FERR
SRTAfREAREAR SR EERR(E
B HEWE R

SREEERR AKEEEBRIEKE
BEETEERA EEMEREMERRE
Fr o BERERENBRETE R A MIER - A%
BIABBRNEARBBEREENRESE
FB®LEE - 1IN AEEEREHZHE
RESEFNAIRE SR - BARMEEKRE
TRFEHRAREEERE -JULME &
ER/AEENEERR AR TEF

ERAEEEBYE SRR S EAR
B — 5 B B INR A B AN 519
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a
recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the
maturity of both its financial instruments and financial assets
(e.g. trade receivables) and projected cash flows from

operations.

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of loans
from related parties, other borrowings, convertible bonds and

notes and unsecured bonds and notes.

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the contractual

undiscounted payments, was as follows:

41.

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-_T—+tF+-A=+—HLEFE

MBEREEBERBXK )

RBESER
AEEERRFURDECRE TAERE
THERZER ZTAZESZRMIANDRE
BE(NERWE ZR) 2 BIHIER - LKA
AREEEESD CRERE °

AR E A 0 R B S M2 B
AR AR SRR A RIS
HREBER S HECBRE R HES
i -

AEERNREMRRBEAIFFMRAINS
BAEIHHBERET

In the third
Within one year Inthe  to fifth years After
orondemand  second year inclusive five years Total
E=ZERE
—FRFEEX E-F (BRERWE) nER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL TAT THT TAL TR
I ——
2017 “E+tF
Trade payables ERE 55RT 78,623 - - - 78,623
Accruals and other payables B FER AR FE 2,767,484 - - - 2,767,484
Other borrowings HifEn 1,247,636 899,891 - - 2,147,527
Loans from related parties REBH S ZER 197,593 151,764 - - 349,357
Convertible bonds and notes R ER L EE 2,000 50,970 - - 52,970
Unsecured bonds and notes BERESREE 21,971 1,313,306 629,636 31,845 1,996,758
4,315,307 2,415,931 629,636 31,845 7,392,719
Annual Report 2017 FE#R & 1 6 5



ohH
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-Z—tF+-A=1+—HILFE

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 41. B EKREEBEZRBER (#)

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)

nREBETREE &)

Within one year

or on demand Total
—FRREER #st
HK$'000 HK$'000

BT FH&TT

2016 ZERF
Trade payables FERTE 5 BR K
Accruals and other payables
Other borrowings HAth 55K

Loans from related parties RE T 2 ER
Convertible notes AR ER

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity
securities decrease as a result of changes in the levels of
equity indices and the value of individual securities. The
Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from individual
listed equity investments classified as available-for-sale
investments (note 17) as at 31 December 2017 and 2016. The
Group's listed investments are listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange and are valued at quoted market prices at the end
of the reporting period. The Group is also exposed to equity
price risk arising from changes in the price of the Company’s
own shares to the extent that the Company’s own equity
investments underlie the fair values of derivatives. The Group
was also exposed to this risk through the conversion rights
attached to the convertible bonds and notes (note 26) issued
by the Company.

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management
are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to

support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

JERT XA M B At B A 5KIR

22,061 22,061
1,386,212 1,386,212
701,270 701,270
1,124,382 1,124,382
628,900 628,900
3,862,825 3,862,825

A EEER

A ERER A E S A EERRERE

BOKF REREFEEZB MM 2R

BN _TE—+tFR_FT—-—X~F+=A
=+—8  AEEAEESBEAHLER
BEmER ERRAEE (K sE17) 3| A9 R
RERRR - AEBEZ ERERBBHR
Fr LT WS HARIZET R ERE - A
SETHEERAERNARBERNDERESZ
BAEIRRAR  ERRARRBEBRAKRE
BRITETAZAAEBE - XA&EETEAR
RIB AT Z TR EH R R IR (B3 26) Tt
2 A ERE AR -

X ERE

AEEERNEEZ TR A RABRARERE
WFFBIRE  WHFHRBROEARLE - A%
FEEBEENSGAREMIESRREE -

166

H

Imperial Pacific International Holdings Limited % K ¥ BB ZRGR A &



41.

22

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-_T—+tF+-A=+—HLEFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 41. BIEREEEERBE &)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Capital management (Continued) EXREE ()

The Group manages its capital structure and makes AEERBLCER R 2 B RABEE 2R
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions BEMEEEEAREELELTARE - B
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To SR EARERE  AEESSABIMN T
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust RZIEE  REERTRERZEITHA - &
the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to SEBABTERMIMINERRTE - BHEZ
shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not subject to E—+ER T RF+-_A=+—HItF
any externally imposed capital requirements. No changes B AEEEAETEZBZ - BORIOREL
were made in the objectives, policies or processes for IR B o

managing capital during the years ended 31 December 2017

and 2016.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net rEERBEEAREX(AVFEHKRLH
debt divided by the adjusted capital plus net debt. Net debt BERIFER) BEEER  FEBKBEIER
includes convertible bonds and notes, unsecured bonds and MR ESRERE EEREENEE KB
notes, loans from related parties, other borrowings, trade and Mt 2B HiER BENESEA L
other payables and accruals, less cash and cash equivalents HipENZIBERETRIE  HIBES RES
and restricted bank deposits. Capital includes convertible ZEMARZRBHIRITER - EABIER
bonds and notes and equity attributable to owners of the RIESF REBERANRDAIHES AELRRRE - R
Company. The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting EENFEHARNEEABLERNOT ¢

periods were as follows:

2017 2016
—E2—tF —E—REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T T
|
Convertible bonds and notes AR ES R EE 46,713 590,018
Unsecured bonds and notes EEHEEREER 1,753,301 -
Loans from related parties KEBE T CBER 349,357 1,037,241
Other borrowings Hib ek 1,962,842 644,917
Trade payables JERTE SRR 78,623 22,061
Other payables and accruals Hfth e B R FE T I8 2,795,471 1,408,724
Less: Cash and cash equivalents W BWERIREEEY (284,520) (93,945)
Restricted bank deposit 2R BIERITIF - (11,624)
Net debt FETS 6,701,787 3,597,392
Convertible bonds and notes MR ESE R ERE 46,713 590,018
Total equity BREZS 3,852,965 2,860,897
Adjusted capital 4R ER R N 3,899,678 3,450,915
Capital and net debt BN R FHETS 10,601,465 7,048,307
Gearing ratio BEAMRBLE 63.2% 51.0%
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e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE_T

—tEFFT-A=+—BLEE

42. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(@)

from January 2018 and up to the date of approval of
these consolidated financial statements, the Company
has obtained unsecured loans which are interest-bearing
at 6%-13% per annum in an aggregate amount of
HK$870,537,000 from independent third parties, of which
HK$410,000,000, HK$214,500,000 and HK$246,037,000

42. REPREE

(@)

B-Z— ) \F—AREERZRETH
WEBERE  NARIEBLFE =7
HY 15 4858 /5 870,537,000 7 7T Y 4 3 3

B BAEFIRFFXR6EZ13E
&, » 410,000,000/ 7T * 214,500,000
i%ﬁ&246037000§%ﬁ %IJ/AE"_Z\

are repayable in 2018, 2019 and 2020, respectively; — N\ - —NFERZZEZZFE
2
(b)  from January to March 2018, the Company has renewed by RZTE—NE—HE=H xEEE
and extended the repayment tenures of certain unsecured EIIMEERBRERRRKEELSEY
borrowings of approximately HK$842,958,000 outstanding /#842,958,00078 7T 2 & T IR {E K
at the end of the reporting period to 2019 and 2020 for 2 2 FHR - E H1398,000,0007% T &
amounts of HK$398,000,000 and HK$444,958,000, 444,958, ooo;‘%ﬁZ;%?xHH“%Uﬁi:
respectively; and E-NERZZBZF R
(@ on 21 March 2018, the Company has obtained an © R=ZZE-—NF=Z=A=Z+—H &R
additional unsecured credit facility of approximately BBV E=FIEY 781,000,000?5%
HK$781,000,000 from an independent third party, which ZENEBBEERE  ZFEME12
is interest-bearing at 12% per annum. EE SN
43. COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS 43. Lk 25
Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified and re- ETHREECEFHIAREY - EREZE
presented to conform with the current year's presentation. 225 —5 -
168 Imperial Pacific International Holdings Limited &% X ¥ BB ER B R A A
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e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-_T—+tF+-A=+—HLEFE

44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 44. XA R &R R T

COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

BMAARREE BR 2 B BRRER AR

2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
|
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - RENMEE 9,177 11,714
Investments in subsidiaries RETB AR ZIRE =* =
Deposits and other receivables & & [ B th fE W sRIE 10,373 10,257
Available-for-sale investments AEHERE 82,464 103,085
Total non-current assets IEMENEELE 102,014 125,056
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Prepayments, deposits and other TEFRIE ~ 1'e REHAD
receivables U SR IE 26,419 65,283
Derivative financial asset MESRERE 1,010 -
Due from subsidiaries FEUS KR A R IE 6,586,765 4,117,862
Restricted bank deposit SRR FIIRT TR - 11,624
Cash and cash equivalents Be RIREFEY 49,460 31,788
Total current assets MENEERE 6,663,654 4,226,557

Annual Report 2017 FE#RE 1 6 9
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-Z—tF+-A=1+—HILFE

44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 44. XA RBBEMRREK (&)

COMPANY (Continued)

2017 2016
—E—+tF —EB—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FET

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accruals, other payables and deposits

RBRE
FERT IR « BRI IR

received RElkize 1,145,239 334,738
Derivative financial liabilities TTESRmAas 1,033 215
Other borrowings H At &3k 1,189,492 644,917
Loan from related parties KRB R 2 B 197,593 1,037,241
Convertible notes Al =R - 590,018
Total current liabilities mEBEARZE 2,533,357 2,607,129
NET CURRENT ASSETS RENEEFE 4,130,297 1,619,428
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEAEBERRBER

LIABILITIES 4,232,311 1,744,484
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Other borrowings H At &3k 773,350 =
Loan from a related party REBHEH 28R 151,764 -
Convertible bonds AR ES 46,713 =
Unsecured bonds and notes EILIHELEREE 1,753,301 -
Total non-current liabilities EmB B EETE 2,725,128 -
Net assets BEFE 1,507,183 1,744,484
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARR EE
Share capital R& 2 71,492 70,826
Reserves (note) i (M) 1,435,691 1,673,658
Total equity frEs 1,507,183 1,744,484

& Less than HK$1,000

D1 1,0007 7T

H
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-_T—+tF+-A=+—HLEFE

44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 44. &2 BB EARR TR (&)
COMPANY (Continued)

45.

Note: BT -
A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: KRR ZEFEREZEQT -
Convertible ~ Share premium Share option Investment Accumulated
notes reserve account reserve reserve losses Total
TRREERE R EER BRERE REfkE ZitER it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________|
At 1 January 2016 RZZ-~E-A-H 1,480,332 1,847,219 41811 (35,797) (1,588,607) 1,745,018
Loss for the year FREE - - - - (240,402) (240,402)
Other comprehensive income EREfh2ERA
for the year
Changes in fair value of available-for-sale  ATEHERAMALER
investments, net 2EHTE - - - 2119 - 21195
Issue of new shares TR R - 137,500 - - - 137,500
Equity-settled share option arrangements BB HERERS STt 2 AR
BRI - - 10347 - - 10347
Transfer of reserve upon the lapse of BREXNNERRR
share options - - (1,444) - 1,444 =
At31 December 2016.and 1 January 2017~ W=E—AE+-A=+—-BEk
“$—t&-F-H 1,480,332 1,984,779 50,714 (14,602) (1,827,565) 1,673,658
Loss for the year EREE - - - - (555,221) (555,221)
Other comprehensive income for the year:  EREMZEKA :
Changes in fair value of availableforsale ~ AHHERENABE
investments, net gEEE - - - 14,602 - 14,602
Issue of shares upon conversion of AAREE AR
convertible notes E1Rk(p - 281,017 - - - 281,017
Equity-settled share option arrangements B HERERS STt 2 AR
BEH - - 21,635 - - 21,635
Transfer of reserve upon the lapse of BREXNNERGR
share options - - (1,557) - 1,557 -
At31 December 2017 RoZ-tFt=f=t-B 1,480,332 2,265,796 70,792 S w2 14341

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share options granted

which are yet to be exercised, as further explained in the accounting

policy for share-based payments in note 2.5 to the consolidated financial

statements. The amount will either be transferred to the share premium

account when the related options are exercised, or transferred to retained

profits should the related options expire or be forfeited.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 28 March 2018.

45.

BREFEREHRTESROBREZALEE
HiE—PREHNG S WBRRME 25 A H AE
B2 R X 2 @ETHOR - RSN A BB EE
TREERERMDEER - X E BB RER B
R BB R ER A o

it A B B SRR
RERBRRER-F—/\E=A=1/\H
HEEGIERTETIE -

H
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Five-Year Financial Summary

EFHBERE

The following table summarises the results, and the assets and AEEHE+-_A=+—HIABAFESEZE
liabilities of the Group for each of five years ended 31 December: BUARBENRBER TR B

RESULTS E 3]

For the year ended 31 December
BEt-A=+-HLEE
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
—T=F —T-mF —T-RF —T-RF ZB-tF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET TET

CONTINUING OPERATIONS REREXK
Revenue 25 544,824 558,267 714,549 7,488,979 13,155,608
Profit/(loss) before tax BR AN (EE) (14,951)  (1,558,351) 50,351 1,096,803 870,960
Income tax expenses FriaBiF 2 = = (160,100  (233,487)
Profit/(loss) for the year from REFEEE

continuing operations FREF,/(EE) (14,953)  (1,558,351) 50,351 935,893 637,473
DISCONTINUED OPERATION BRIEER
Loss for the year from a discontinued & &5 — B &R 1 %74

operation FAEE = = (68,392) (318) -
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable ~ AARI#EHH AfEHL

to owners of the Company EREN/(B1R) (14,953)  (1,558,351) (18,041) 935,575 637,473
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEERAEE

As at 31 December
R+=B=+-—8H
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
—E-=F TN —ZE-hF T F ZB—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT FHBT FHT FExT

Total assets BEHEE 183,271 931,667 3319260 9,613,103 15,641,294
Total liabilities BEEH (37,736) (60,384)  (1,571,735)  (6,752,206) (11,788,329)
Net assets EEFE 145,535 871,283 1,747,525 2,860,897 3,852,965

H
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